C-15-309578-1

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES November 29, 2016

C-15-309578-1 State of Nevada
VS
Steven Turner

November 29,2016 9:00 AM Calendar Call
HEARD BY: Scotti, Richard F. COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 11D
COURT CLERK: Kristen Brown

RECORDER: Sandra Pruchnic

REPORTER:
PARTIES
PRESENT: Beverly, Leah C Attorney for the State
Lisk, Steven Attorney for the Defendant
Public Defender Attorney
State of Nevada Plaintiff
Turner, Steven Defendant
JOURNAL ENTRIES

- Counsel stated they are working on negotiations and requested matter be continued. COURT
ORDERED, Trial date VACATED and RESET.

CUSTODY
7/06/17 9:00 AM CALENDAR CALL

7/10/17 10:00 AM JURY TRIAL

PRINT DATE: 12/09/2016 Page1of1 Minutes Date:  November 29, 2016
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C-15-309578-1

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES July 06, 2017

C-15-309578-1 State of Nevada
VS
Steven Turner

July 06, 2017 9:00 AM Calendar Call
HEARD BY: Scotti, Richard F. COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 11D
COURT CLERK: Aja Brown

RECORDER: Dalyne Easley

REPORTER:
PARTIES
PRESENT: Banks, Jeft Attorney for Defendant
Beverly, Leah C Attorney for State
State of Nevada Plaintiff
Turner, Steven Defendant
JOURNAL ENTRIES

- Mr. Banks advised Deft is open to negotiations. COURT SO NOTED. Colloquy regarding trial
setting. COURT ORDERED, trial VACATED and RESET.

CUSTODY
11/7/17 9:00 AM CALENDAR CALL

11/13/17 10:00 AM JURY TRIAL

PRINT DATE: 07/07/2017 Page1of1 Minutes Date:  July 06, 2017
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C-15-309578-1 DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES October 12, 2017
C-15-309578-1 State of Nevada
Vs
Steven Turner
October 12, 2017 09:00 AM All Pending Motions
HEARD BY: Saitta, Nancy COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 11D

COURT CLERK: Castle, Alan
RECORDER: Page, Robin

REPORTER:

PARTIES PRESENT:

Public Defender Attorney for Defendant
Tegan Machnich Attorney for Defendant
Michael Dickerson Attorney for Plaintiff
Steven Turner Defendant

State of Nevada Plaintiff

JOURNAL ENTRIES
Defendant's Joinder to Co-Defendant Clemon Hudson's Motion to Sever ... Pre Trial Conference

Co-Defendant, Clemon Hudson present. Craig Mueller, Esq. present on behalf of Co-Defendant.

Arguments by counsel. Co-Defendant cites the Chartier case and circumstances in their pleadings.
Arguments by counsel regarding the allegations and Defense's position that each Defendant will have to
defend two theories of liability. State's opposition that the record can be sanitize for the sake of each
Defendant as to statements made by parties in contravention to a fair trial. Colloquy regarding alleged
facts and circumstances. COURT does Find this case to be distinguishable from the Chartier case. Court
has considered whether or not there is a substantial risk the Jury will use factually incriminating
confession(s) of a non-testifying Defendant as evidence of guilt of his co-defendant; and, fundamental
unfairness at trial. FURTHER, Court notes State's offer of cooperation, and DENIES Motion and Joinder
to Sever WITHOUT PREJUDICE; State will offer both counsel the opportunity to see the redacted version
the State intends to use at trial. IF after review, Defense determines their client cannot be adequately
defended at trial, then Defense may renew its motion. State to prepare an order consistent with the
Court's ruling that both Defendants will have the opportunity to renew their motions. Court directed State
to provide its redacted version to Defense counsel NO LATER THAN 10/17/17 for review; and Defense to
respond to State's redactions NO LATER THAN 10/20/17. THIS COURT gives parties permission to
contact the Senior Judge Department for further consideration on these matters, if needed. Colloquy
regarding discovery requests. Mr. Pesci advised he just picked up this matter for trial and has instructed
his staff to provide requested discovery to both Defendants' counsel. Mr. Pesci clarified that the disk
received has been copied and will be provided to opposing counsel. COURT ORDERED, oral request to
compel discovery is GRANTED. Mr. Pesci acknowledged they State will comply. Court placed the burden
on both counsel to ensure that discovery production is satisfactorily complied with.

Upon Court's inquiry, State advised the case has been subpoenaed and anticipates ready. Defense
advised, they will have a better idea once redactions have been received, but otherwise anticipate ready.
COURT ORDERED, proposed Jury Instruction be prepared and provided by calendar call date. Defense
Proposed Jury Instructions to be submitted directly to chambers.

Printed Date: 10/18/2017 Page 1 of 2 Minutes Date: October 12, 2017
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Prepared by: Alan Castle



CUSTODY

Printed Date: 10/18/2017 Page 2 of 2 Minutes Date: October 12, 2017
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C-15-309578-1 DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES October 31, 2017
C-15-309578-1 State of Nevada
VS

Steven Turner

October 31, 2017 09:00 AM State's Request: Status Check to Address "Bruton Issues" with
the Defendant's Statements
HEARD BY: Bailus, Mark B COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 11D

COURT CLERK: Castle, Alan
RECORDER: Page, Robin

REPORTER:

PARTIES PRESENT:

Public Defender Attorney for Defendant
Tegan Machnich Attorney for Defendant
Leah C Beverly Attorney for Plaintiff
Steven Turner Defendant

State of Nevada Plaintiff

JOURNAL ENTRIES

COURT ORDERED, CONTINUED for review of objection to redactions submitted and to possible
negotiations.

CUSTODY

CONTINUED TO:
11/02/17 9:00 a.m.

Printed Date: 11/2/2017 Page 1 of 1 Minutes Date: October 31, 2017
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C-15-309578-1 DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES November 02, 2017
C-15-309578-1 State of Nevada
VS

Steven Turner

November 02, 2017 09:00 AM All Pending Motions

HEARD BY: Bailus, Mark B COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 11D
COURT CLERK: Castle, Alan

RECORDER: Page, Robin

REPORTER:

PARTIES PRESENT:

Public Defender Attorney for Defendant
Tegan Machnich Attorney for Defendant
Leah C Beverly Attorney for Plaintiff
Steven Turner Defendant

State of Nevada Plaintiff

JOURNAL ENTRIES

Defendant Turner's Motion to Continue Trial Date ... Status Check: Negotiations/Trial Setting
Co-Defendant Hudson, and counsel, Mr. Mueller also present. Redactions served on Defendants by
State. Mr. Mueller objected to the proposed redactions and advised he has no proposed submission as
he does not believe the record can be satisfactorily redacted. Further, Mr. Mueller stated there no
negotiation for his client; and, Defendant Hudson is prepared for trial. Ms. Machnich provided her

proposed changes in open court. Colloquy. Court continued state check for review of submissions and to
see if this Court may present its own redacted version.

Matter submitted. COURT Finds no opposition and good cause shown and ORDERED, Defendant
Turner's Motion to Continue Trial Date is GRANTED. FURTHER, Defendant Hudson's Motion to Sever is
DENIED Without Prejudice. Trial date reset. Parties estimated 2 to 3 weeks for trial with numerous
withesses.

CUSTODY

11/16/17 9:00 a.m. Status Check: Redactions

03/06/18 9:00 a.m. Pretrial Conference

04/10/18 9:00 a.m. Calendar Call

04/16/18 11:00 a.m. Jury Trial

Printed Date: 11/14/2017 Page 1 of 1 Minutes Date: November 02, 2017
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

STEVEN TURNER, ) No. 76465
)
)
Appellant, )
)
Vi, )
)
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
)
Respondent. )
)
APPELLANT’S APPENDIX VOLUME 111 PAGES 473-721
DARIN F. IMLAY STEVE WOLFSON
Clark County Public Defender Clark County District Attorney
309 South Third Street 200 Lewis Avenue, 3" Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2610 Las Vegas, Nevada 89155
Attorney for Appellant AARON FORD
Attorney General

100 North Carson Street
Carson City, Nevada 89701-4717
(702) 687-3538

Counsel for Respondent
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| hereby certify that this document was filed electronically with the Nevada

Supreme Court on the _4 day of _ February , 2019. Electronic Service of the foregoing
document shall be made in accordance with the Master Service List as follows:

AARON FORD DEBORAH L. WESTBROOK
STEVEN S. OWENS HOWARD S. BROOKS
| further certify that | served a copy of this document by mailing a true and

correct copy thereof, postage pre-paid, addressed to:

STEVEN TURNER, #1200863
HIGH DESERT STATE PRISON
P.O. BOX 650

INDIAN SPRINGS, NV 89070

BY /s/ Carrie M. Connolly
Employee, Clark County Public Defender’s Office




Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department

Partners with the Community

Firedrms Training and Tacrles Unie
6, Inepecis the confiscared fircarms for fuiction, tags the fircarm as serviceable or unserviceable.

Supply Section
7.

Betains servceable confiscored Frearms for Future issuance, Rerurns unserviesable firearms to che Bvidence
Wanle for desraction.

B. Morfis appropriate bureaufares commander when any confiscated fircarms ssned for training purposes are
recained in excess of sty days from the dare i was ssaed,

Bequests for confiscared Ffredems from odher low enforcenent agEncies, for official use, must be approved by the: Sheriff
and coordinared through the Supply Sccton. Confiscated weapons will not be withdmwn dircerly from the Evidence
Wanle for issue to other agencics. Normally, sl othee confsmted weapons will be destroved. (1/02, 109

el ”ﬁﬂfﬁ w’
mq&;-ﬂﬁf@_ﬁ!ﬂﬁ1m
+ et

Docket 76465 Document 2019-066)6
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‘Sisbimir requessa for! NIBIN entry ol i’ Fotensic Tabiortory Exuirinition Redies’ for (LVMEL
NTBIN Eniry® hox checked. This seruest s avaifible i hind copy ot Suphy oe us an e i ;
Requesy ey b sibmitsed én the Foreis b eleceioniealiy via Faresiel ab@ v cnrm (cmai

2]
o o ki
Examination 6f Evidencs
3oz USEOF THE DEPARTMENT ARMORY

g A A i N5 MG i 2003 o

The Las Vegas Mersopolitan Police Depariment Armory & 3 sestricted area and sccess is limiced 1o those individaals
fraving specific auhariny v encer

Omnly the following personmel shall have specific authonty o enter the Las Vegss Memopolican Police Dregrartoment
Armamy:

Shernff

Assizrant Sheriffs

Diwision Commander, Tedhmical Services Division

Bureals Commander. Logistics Boncau

Supply Sectapn Mansger and designes

Inezrnal Affairs Tnvestigating Cificer

All other persons, regasdless of mok or assgnment, shall conducr their business ar Supply Customer Service unless
escomed by or given pernidsslon to enter by an individual on the access list.

During an extreme emergency sruacon, or for porposes of moving equipment o¢ deaning weapons, certiin other
personned shall be dlowed in the Armory under the supervision of the Sapply Section. {109, {2/10)=

5208.24  SPECIAL WEAPONS AND MUNITIONS
AL 135D, 33.6.2, 46.2.3

The Logistics Burcas, Supply Scction, maintains an invenrory of specisl weapons 2nd munitons in the armory. These
it ase available oaly woefficers who have been appropriately tained, and wha are authorized to carry Depariment
saned special weapons in accopdance policy 3/208.02 {see special drenmstunces for SWAT personned lizsted hebow).

DEFINITIONS

Special Weipon Special wse weapons that are nilized by certain components of the deparmment {ie,,
sub-maching gans, sutomatic of semi-automanc assauls nfles, gas guns, shoguns with a
barsel leageh of Ieps vhan 187, con)e Dhoes not include dhe departmenc approved

bandguns, shotguns,

Special Munitions Drevices used i ractical operadaons which require speeial training for use and are not
rourinely castbediused by field officers. Such devices include chiemieal feritan: devices
(eucepd the personally carmed nonclethal serosol agent), scing ball gremades and swund
and distraee devices,

EROCEDURE

Special weapon/munitions will be signed our 1o the respeonive officer, All special weapons and munitons will be fssued
on an individual basis and the Supply Secrion will mainmin 4 listing of personnel and any special wespons they have
bememn bssued.

Any individual signing for amd fecevang a special weapon will be responsible for in safckeeping and maintenance.
Inspection and qualification for special weapons will be handled in sccordance wath Departmene Manual Secrion
5/108.14, Fircarms Traming, To remrn a special weapon, the member will either moke an appoinmment wich the
Fircartms Training and Tacoes Unis (FTTU) seaff or g cerrifiod stmorer assigned to SWAT for inspection. The special
weapon st be presented clean for inspection and wapging for serviesabilicy. The officer will then remun rhe special
weapon along with all omesed sinmunition oo the Sopply Section

e
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT FORENSIC LABORATORY _H il ¥

-
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e e

NIBIN HIT DISPOSITION FORM

This form is a fellow-ug to the NIBIN Hit Motification previously sent to you and available in OnBase. According to
¢ Pokicy 5/206.18, this form is reguired to be filled put and retumned to the Hit Rotification Datail within &0

days of the distribution date of this form. This fam should be submited stating the action to be taken regarding
aach listed assockation.

Assigned Detactive Name/P#/Agency: Det. M, OHalloran NEAC

A MIRIN Hit Notification repart was generated listing possible associations betwesn the evidence and/or test fired
cartridge cases from the following event numbers:

TEVENT NUMBER  Ttam Description B
T 150901-0059 One "Blazer: .40 S&W cartridge case

150903-4386 One "Blazer” 40 S&W cartridge case

-

For @ conclusive identification to be made, the above listed hits must be confirmed by a microscoplc
comparison of the actual cartridge cases.

In reference to the NIBIN hit for the above event number{s} the investigative action fs:

1 This association nesds to be confirmed and a supplemental request for this conflrmation has
been submitted to the Forensic Laboratory through Property Connect.

Information above provided by (Name/P#):_ M. OHalloran P# 9626
Date Torm returned to Hit Notiflcation Detai:

This form wil be retained as part of the Forensic Laboratory’s case record and 15 sulbject to Information Disclasure Reguests.
\rvestigative Sit. Approval and Dake: M, Bz P& 6704 07/20/16

*Completet forms can be emailed to HitNotificationDetaili@®iympd.com

Lratwmesn Nl TO23
legiied By: LT AT
Revision Dete: 11082008

Puge 1 of1 LVMPD Forensic Laboratory « 5605 W Badura Ave Sulte 120 B e Las Vegas, WV 83118
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facawared Propery Information

Recovernd Dale Racovared Vakue
Aecoverad Locatan Fecovaned Aagson
Facovered By Fecovened Stock §
Diwrrr TYpe Relsssud T
insurarce Bep. T Gompany

Type:  Wehicie-Other | Motoroycles | Guootefs (Mt Stolen of Recavarad)

Shtnus Dastra dallwed Cuardity: 1 highea 00,00 Color  White
Descriphion  Budlet fiole in rear DuMmpar.

Manalachure: uw? coial Nowin R

Wehicle Year Bedy Tyon
g Pinte ¥ Lic Plzte Lis Plale Exp [y

s uranas
Chpyer
Hotes:

Diedsitad Frapirty Infarmation

Lenpih Width Heighil
Horgs Power Progiutsian Searad #

Catibar Barmal Lergkn

Feahares

Regoverad Propery Infonmatian

Racovmied Data Feoovarad Viales
Recovanrd Localios Recowstiod Reasan
Rmm_:redﬂy mﬂms
Creanpr Type &3 o
surance Rap. Tira Tompany

Solvability

Modus Cperandi

M0 Gonoral

Cocupled? Yag Surrpipnding Aron  Middie of Blogk
Capatal Premise  Snghs Family Residence Spactic Premise  Room

MO Againat Propary

Entry Poeil Exit Pairt Enbry Lecatian
Erdryfttempt Matvad Bniry Toal VakRcle Enbryr
Sale Enary Suspact Actiong Aodittonal Faciars
Wiskim Lpcatan Ellronic Locks Witno Sursiianca
Mz mspachiess

MO Against Poople

Vigtimi-Suspect Relatiomshig Fre-Incideod Cantact

Wichim Cendilion Suspect 5 1

Syspec Pretended 1o Be Suspact Aclicns Fired Shats
Sedu] Ats Vehice Insglvement

NMarratlve

Om 0S4 S al appreskmately 0030 hours i e r B 2 pend . vy s misrioed patrol units
1!’22“!11“&!“#“5“” rrm AP e B i Tasls b ol z2rine oS c s el

artiving | mede contact i Btk

wiete aglsap In thelt bedroom on (RIOUTE B ApproxbmEsly L aurs whan they wers-awaken by 546 ahot d & lowd thud near thalr
badroomm; They went sitalide appreximetedy 20 mintss later and discovared ot there was & brand new heds in thenorth side of thelr nouss
mﬂwﬂnubﬂlnuﬁuhtmﬂﬂhummmunnﬂﬂuuh

During the sourse of the imestigation wa located (8) 40 calipar shell casings In the roadway oY

[maact undaer the west lacing win anet an Imnact inte the bumper of B 8isrcades Delortgi et

s T

2iarz04a 1124 PM




o budlet impacts went thiough the walis L. into their respective residences. Nonoof the . nts of sither residance saw any of the
ghooters dr any vehicks related to the shooting,
d frowmn

s officers wers closa to cloaring the call. He said that his ﬂﬂﬂh’ﬁunﬂ.” has
agnt him threatening ot mesasges throughaut the day telling lilm "don't aE8 pat merked” B WAL 00 0L WAL wiftien on

your iambstone”; bul nething spacificaily mentioning the word "shooling''. 50 statod that ariginally hie was not going to soniact
polien and he was atternpling to keep his presence unknown becaube ki dig not want to get Invohaed.

Fatrol FallowsUp

All ghell casings as woll as bullat fragments ware [ and impounded. Alse photographed ware the itk a6 the
aferamantionet threpiening text mes spnt from a consant ko sarch foem hi. On
Ilﬂn!i E:H

{iher hivee been docugardad assoc

phong wen lexts threata . i &t thin time i
its appeare that the at the time. Gangnet check was dene
tives responded to handle follaw-up. '

a0 18 1124 PM T Page 7 o 7
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Lml. \l’-gﬂ uutmp-:gnm Police pﬂﬁrmm %| Distribution Date:  December 28, 2015
N -Fdl'ﬂl'llh’:l:ﬂhnrltmjr | Rgeney: LVIAPD
' 4| Lesation: Homicide & Sex Crimes Bureau
'__ ZxD) Primary Case # 1606040018
<7 Tneidant: ois
w Reguester Craig Jex
sl Lab Cage i 16004583
Thie following evidenca was examined and resulis am resarsd balos.
Lab Hem # o # [ Im Fam # Dessr
1 o071 1 One Yuge BS/ES 7.82 x 39mm semiauiomalic rifs, sersl
numben MATEESZ _
2 D08177-1 1A EEMMMMMH
8 0081771 iB e "Tuismmo” 7.62 x 30men carlridges
One "71 83" 7.62 ¥ 35mm
4 COa177-1 1c "7 B3 TER w 30mm
8 DOatTT-2 2 ﬂnuiiéhuhmyibdﬂl BO0A 12 Gauge pump shotgun, serfal nemben
10
3 00BITF-2 ZA ufired WIN 12 Gauge shotzhelia
far
T ORE177-2 28 HESTER" 12
a O0E] 712 2C medai fragment N
g 0081773 3 One Bercta Model 25 Ao caliber samiguitimato pistol, senal
number: BRZ21880V
(1] 4973 Ak Cina AN E&arﬂﬁ.muﬂnnihi.ahhwnil
| 0081778 38 Eﬂﬂfﬂ'iﬁm
12 D077 3G Ona FG* .25
13 0081774 4 cm -
T 1774 aA X" 22 Long Rifie
z 158.2 2 Dnu Glock Model 17 5 18 {Bmm Luger] unu.-r mwm
artal numbar MESE eqgulpoac k! TLR-1 fla=higl
23 “OOG1ER-7 3
24 005158-3 4
25 O 58-3 B
28 005 1664 5
7 R 7
28 0051505 8
29 005 1585 8
30 0144004 ]
il 4]
a3z 1]
33 0144024 11
34 0143022 12
35 0144024 E
36 0144025 [
a7 0144025 B
58 HAREEE 18
3 0144025 17
40 0144025 18
it 0124035 18
4z 0124026 20
a3 014403246 21
A4 44025 22
a5 01440725 23
EL: 014402-7 24 gg_wlﬂ
0144028 — 25 & Tulmmme” 7.62 x S6mm & case
48 0144028 5 o "Tulameno” 7.62 x 3grmm 3

Page 1
LWAsP0 Foransic Laboratory | 5505 W% Badura Ae Suite 120-B | Las Vagas, NV 88118
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Primary Event # 160904-0516
Lat Case #, 15-09458.2

Lab Hom & 1EIIHE! lbem & Desonption
A5 o1 a Cippe 62 & 38mm =
] 144035 28 Cine relal
B [if ) rrietal Tran mend
[ 014402-8 3a it e Tragyrmnd
53 _ 0144025 Eil One metal fragm
54 01440213 35 O metal
Results and Conclusions:

Eirsarme and Magazines

The Yugo rifie was sxamined, tesd fired and found to ba operatioas) with ne nofed malfunctions. This s has & barel lengih of
appraximately 24 ¥ inches, an overad [ength of approdmmtely 42 % inches and & tigoer pull of 4 ¥ - 8 ¥ pounds, The submithed
fragazing (Lab Mem 2) has a capacty of bwanty-ane carlidpes.

Tha Mosaberg shotgun was examined and wes noled fo have an area of damage, consistert with a bullet impact, 1o the fore-end
and magerine tube, This damage renderad e sholgu inoperabie and watle o be test fired,

mmmmaw.mmmmmm be oparstional with no noled malfunctions. This pistol has & barmsl Bt of
Epprosimately 3 Sy inches, an overall length of approdmabely 4 % inches and & tigger pill of 5 % - 5 % pands, The submisied
magazine {Lab [fem 107 hes a aapasity of B cartridges,

The Glogk pistol was examined, test Sned and found fo be operational with no noted malfuncBons. This pistol hes @ bamel length of
approvimately 4 % inches, an overall length of approximately 8 inches and a trigger pull of § ¥ - 8 % pounds. The submied
magazines (Lab Bems 23, 25 & 27) aach have & capacity of 17 cartridges.

The rmagazine {Lab fiem 13) has a capacity of 8 .22 Long Rifle cartridges and does not 8 or function in any of the fireamms
sunmtied in fhis case,

Comparisong

The evisencs cartridge o#ses and bullets ware examined and microscapically companed io the test fired cartridge cases snd bullats
with fhe following results:

*  Tha twelve carridge cases (Lab Berms 30 - 41) wern identfiad as having besn fired by the submisied Glock pietol.

= The ihree cartridge cases (Lab Hems 47 - 49} shaned a simllar ganeral overall appearance and scme miled comesponding
microscopis informaton with fhe test fired canridge cases from the submised Yugo rfle; however, insufficlent microstopic
detail precudes a conclusive identScason to ihis rife.

+  Thebulled (Lab flem £6) shared smilar ganera| rifing charasbarisSisa with the test frad bullets fam fhe submited Glook
pisiol; howavear, damage lo this iem praciudes any further comparisona. This bulle? was not Gred by any of the ofher
fimanmys submitied in this case.

= The meetal fagmients (Lab tems 8, 50 < 54) bear no markings of value for microssopic comparisana,

Shot and Wads

»  The submitied ghot paliets (Lab itams 42 and 43} were detarmined 1o be consissent in size, weight and compasiian with
numbar § sieal shat:

+  The submiitted wad pieces (Lab Bem 44 & 45) were datermined b ba consistent i Size, appesrance snd compasitan with
the wad confained in the disessembled evidence shatshall (Lab Bem S),

Repressnlalive magses of « lest fired carridge cazs from the Yuge rifle and the Beratia pistol were entered inta and searched in te
Maliorsl Integrated Ballistc Infarmetion Networs (NIBIN}, Nollfications will be mede if thene are any essocistions 1o Bese eiies.

';‘hﬂidﬂfﬂlﬂmﬂ-ﬂﬂt&m T} did pot meet the minimum accoptanca criteria (breechface and Sring pin marks) for entry into the
I8

Fags 2 of 3
LVMPD Farensss Leborstody | 5605 W Badura Ave Sulte 120 B | Las Vegas, NV 80118
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Frimary Event #; 150004-0518
Lab Case #; 15-09468.3
The evidencea |s refurnad f secufe slorige,

=~This mpart does rod constitute 1he entive case Be. The case Be may ba comprised of workshests, images, analyfical data end
olhar documents, —

Anyn Lester, E13771 B F T
Fiarensic Scamlst 1

= EMD OF REPORT -

Page 3 of 3
LVMPD Forensic Laboratory | 5605 W Baduwa Ave Sulte 120 B | Las Vegas, NV 89118
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Electronically Filed
6/18/2018 10:28 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU,
oves o -

STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

LEAH BEVERLY

Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #12556

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
-Vs- CASE NO: (C-15-309578-1
STEVEN TURNER, .
25717636 DEPT NO: XVIII
Defendant.

STATE’S SUPPLEMENTAL OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S MOTION FOR NEW
TRIAL

DATE OF HEARING: June 19, 2018
TIME OF HEARING: 9:00 AM

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County
District Attorney, through LEAH BEVERLY, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and hereby
submits the attached Points and Authorities in Opposition to Defendant’s Supplemental
Motion For New Trial.

This Opposition is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if
deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.

/1
/1
1

W:\2015\2015F\133\07\1 SFI3307-0PPS»(TUR§7%VEN)—OOZ DOCX

Case Number: C-15-309578-1
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
STATEMENT OF THE CASE

An Indictment was filed on September 23, 2015 charging Steven Turner and Clemon
Hudson (Hereinafter “Defendant Turner” and “Defendant Hudson™) as follows: Count 1:
Conspiracy to Commit Burglary; Count 2: Attempt Burglary While in Possession of Firearm
or Other Deadly Weapon; Counts 3-4: Attempt Murder with Use of a Deadly Weapon; Count
5: Battery with Use of a Deadly Weapon Resulting in Substantial Bodily Harm and Count 6:
Discharging a Firearm at or Into Occupied Structure. On September 28, 2017, Defendant
Hudson filed a Motion to Sever. Defendant Turner filed a Joinder to that Motion on September
13, 2017. The State filed its Opposition on September 18, 2017. The Court denied both
Defendant’s Motions on October 12, 2017. Subsequently, the State, Defense Counsel and the
Court went through a series of redactions in regards to the various statements. On December
14,2017, the Court submitted its redactions of Defendant Hudson’s statements to Defendant’s
Turner’s attorneys. At that time, Defendant Turner indicated that based on the Court’s
redactions, Turner had no challenge to the statements of Hudson. Jury trial was held beginning
April 16, 2018. On April 27, 2018, the jury returned a verdict of guilty on all counts (except
count 6 which had previously been dismissed by the State prior to trial). It should be noted
that at no time during the trial did Defendant Turner object to the statements of Defendant
Hudson when they were introduced by the State. Sentencing is currently set for June 21, 2018.
The Motion for New Trial was filed on May 4, 2018. The Supplemental Motion was filed on
June 14, 2018. The State’s Supplemental Opposition follows:

ARGUMENT

In the instant Supplemental Motion, it appears that Defendant now claims that Metro
had a policy in place since August of 2015 that indicated when it would be appropriate to enter
casings or guns into the NIBIN database. Interestingly, Defendant fails to allege or provide
any evidence that it was mandated, prior to the crimes in this case, that any casings or guns
recovered from a crime scene or suspect be entered into NIBIN. As such, at the time of this

offense, Detectives did in fact have discretion about whether or not to enter items into NIBIN.
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Considering that the facts in this case were that the only two suspects in this case were
identified hours after the crime, both Turner and Hudson indicated multiple times in multiple
interviews that they were the only two people who were in the backyard of the home, and the
fact that the handgun was never even fired, it would not be surprising if Detectives specifically
decided not to enter anything into NIBIN. In addition to the fact that all handguns and all
casings were actually submitted directly to the forensic lab.

Defendant claims that the relevance of an NIBIN report is to see whether the handgun
in this case was tied to another case or another individual other than Turner or Hudson. The
answer to that question as stated by the State in our first opposition, is that the gun was NOT
tied to another crime or another individual. Had it been, there would have been an NIBIN hit
report from when the forensic lab entered the evidence after it was submitted and tested by
them. As the State has said over and over again, the report does not exist.

Defendant continues to talk about some other irrelevant case where an NIBIN hit
occurred. The State does not dispute that the NIBIN database was being used in 2015. But it
was not mandated. The casings from 2015 in this other case were entered into NIBIN because
the crime was unsolved and there were no suspects. The State has no idea how this is relevant
to the instant case where the crime was solved and there were suspects.

Defendant continues to allege that the handgun “could have” been used in another case
and could have been linked to a third suspect. Again, there was no NIBIN hit related to the
handgun and there is no report. While defense counsel made representations to this Court on
May 31, 2018 that “someone” in the Gun Crimes Unit of the District Attorney’s Office told
her that an NIBIN report existed in this case, that completely inaccurate statement has now
been addressed with the “someone” who supposedly told counsel this and was confirmed to
be completely false. The State can only hope that defense counsel merely misinterpreted
information.

For the first time now, Defendant claims that the State failed to turn over a “non- hit”
report and the failure to do so “may” have caused the defense to use a different strategy if they

knew the handgun could not affirmatively be linked to another suspect. Any “non” hit report
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is not exculpatory or Brady material. In fact, it is actually inculpatory because it gives more

credence to the fact that the only two people involved in the shooting were Turner and Hudson.

In McLemore v. State, 94 Nev. 237 (1978), the Nevada Supreme Court held

This Court has required that such HNI¥ newly discovered
evidence comply with additional criteria. The evidence must be
(1) newly discovered, (2) material to movant's defense, (3) such

that it could not with reasonable diligence have been discovered
and produced for the trial, (4) not cumulative, (5) such as to
render a different result probable upon retrial, (6) that it does

not attempt only to contradict a former witness_ [***4] or impeach
or discredit him, unless the witness to be impeached is so
important [*240] that a different result must follow, and (7) that
these facts be shown by the best evidence the case admits.

Defendant has not made any showing whatsoever that a “non hit” NIBIN on the

handgun is material or that it would render a different result. In fact, had the State presented a

non-hit NIBIN, it would have been further evidence of guilt against both Defendants and made

it even more likely that there were only two people and two shooters in the backyard. Finally,

Defendant completely ignores the fact that he repeatedly said there were only two people in

the backyard and he was one of them. As this Motion is completely without merit, it should

be denied.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing points and authorities, the State respectfully requests that

Defendant’s Supplemental Motion for New Trial be denied.

11

DATED this S%X\P day of June, 2018.

Respectfully submitted,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney

Nevada #00156 -
S A——
BY S~

LEAHC.B RLY
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #12556
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CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

I hereby certify that service of STATE'S SUPPLEMENTAL OPPOSITION TO
DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL, was made this }g[ day of June, 2018, by

Electronic Filing to:

ASHLEY L. SISOLAK, Deputy Public Defender
ashley.sisolak@clarkcountynv.gov

P

Ct-Hnienez
Secretary for the District Attorney's Office

LCH/cmj/L2
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PHILIP J. KOHN, PUBLIC DEFENDER
NEVADA BAR NO. 0556

TEGAN C. MACHNICH, DEPUTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
NEVADA BAR NO. 11642

PUBLIC DEFENDERS OFFICE

309 South Third Street, Suite 226

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

Telephone: (702) 455-4685

Facsimile: (702) 455-5112
Tegan.Machnich@clarkcountynv.gov
Attorneys for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
)
Plaintiff, )
)
V. )
)
STEVEN TURNER, )
)
Defendant, )
)

LETTERS IN SUPPORT OF SENTENCING

DEPT. NO. XVIII

_ Electronically Filed

6/19/2018 10:30 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERE OF THE COUE :I

CASE NO. C-15-309578-1

DATE: June 21, 2018
TIME: 9:00 a.m.

COMES NOW, the Defendant, STEVEN TURNER, by and through TEGAN C.

MACHNICH and ASHLEY SISOLAK, Deputy Public Defenders and hereby provides the

attached letters in support of sentencing scheduled for June 21, 2018.

DATED this 19th day of June, 2018.

PHILIP J. KOHN

CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By:_ /s/Tegan C. Machnich

TEGAN C. MACHNICH, #11642

Deputy Public Defender

Case Number: C-15-309578-1
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CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE

I hereby certify that service of the above and forgoing LETTERS IN SUPPORT
OF SENTENCING was served via electronic e-filing to the Clark County District Attorney’s

Office at motions &z clarkcountyda.com on this 19th day of June, 2018,

By: _ /s/Annie McMahan

An employee of the
Clark County Public Defender’s Office
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Honorable Judge Bailus,

I am sure that you have received thousands upon thousands of letters from mothers advocating for their
children that have been incarcerated and are now looking at being sentenced. Sentencing that will
impact their lives forever. | am now one of those mothers asking you to show mercy for my son, Steven,

Steven has always been the strength of our family. | have never been the kind of mom to use being a
single mother as a crutch. | embraced it and tried to make sure that my children had everything that
they needed and wanted. We (myself, Steven and Jade) have always been the “Team of We” and we
depend on each other. But, Steven has always been the strength of this union, he is the nucleus.

When my daughter (his little sister) started kindergarten, | had to get to work on her first day of school.
Steven was eight years old at the time but, he was the one who had to walk her to her school on the first
day and then cross over a major street to his elementary school (my helpmate). My children were
tatchkey children. Another example is there was a time his little sister was sick and | could not afford to
miss work. So, they had to stay home. | would call and check on them hourly and Steven would always
have his report ready. He would check her temperature and make sure that she had warm 7up and
chicken broth. This has been Stevens role in our family for 27 years.

Steven is a kind, caring, loving responsible man. He would help and has helped many people in all kind
of situations. Him being away has been very hard for me and | have had a couple of hospital stays from
the stress of not having my son. | was just most recently released from the hospital on June 9%,

Your honor, Steven is not a menace to society, he is an asset to society and he just needs a change to get
out here and pick back up with the positive life he was living before the whole incident took place. He
was an assistant manager at his place of employment and engaged his life was on the right track. | know
my son is a force to be reckoned with in this universe and he is going to accomplish greatness. But, if his
life is wasted with years of incarceration that is going to be such a waste of such a good, talented man's
life.

Steven already has job offers here in Las Vegas and in San Diego upon his release. He got his GED while
incarcerated and has plans to continue his education,

it was very heartbreaking to sit in that courtroom and listen to the States witnesses testify that my son’s
fingerprints were not at the scene of the crime. To hear that my son’s DNA was not at the scene of the
crime. That no one saw or could place my son at the scene and that no could identify that very loud
obnoxious ensemble that Steven was wearing. It was heartbreaking that a jury of “his peers” would find
him guilty of charges. To know that he could lose so many years of his beautiful life. | implore you to
please consider his future as | am sure you do in all cases that you handle. | am asking for leniency for
my son Steven. | know that he will be a success story and not a repeat offender because that is not my
son.

Thank you for taking out the time to hear my voice, my plea and my hopeful request.
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To Whom It May Concern:

I’'ve watch Steven grow up into a respectful young man who honors his mother in
a way that most young men don’t. He has always looked after his family and
made sure they were ok. He is awesomely creative with a passion for music. He
has always worked hard to accomplish his goals. If given the opportunity | know
for a fact that Steven will become an asset to his commu'nity. | believe in his
character so much that I am willing to employ him with my company QHC
Behavioral Health to aid him in getting back on his feet once released. He has
served enough jail time to impact him for the rest of his life. | hope you see fit to
help cultivate him instead of wasting such a talented young mans life. | believe in
him 100 percent and | know plenty others that do too.

Respectfully,

Aisha Butler
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Elaine Steels
7527 Alamo Ranch Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 88179

tune 5, 2018

Justice Court
200 Lewis Avenue
Las Vegas, NV 89101

Re: Steven Turner

Dear Justive Couwrt:

I have known Steven Turner since 2004 and am writing this letter 1o tell you about the voung man't
have come 1o know since. | hired his mother, Stephanie as my Administrative Assistant. Having been
a struggling single mother at one time, | saw no harm In allowing Stephanie’s children, Steven and
Jade to come to the office after school. Steven was the most polite, kind and respectful young man |
could have hoped to have around an office environment. His quiet and gentle manner was felt by ali
of the women in the office. After school, Steven and Jade would perform odd jobs around the office
after completing homework. Steven often took the initiative, even then, to help out before he was
asked, He offered to walk women to their cars if it was dark. He often accompanied a blind
employee and her dog to the bus stop and waited until she was safely onboard.

While Stephanie and | moved on in our careers, we remained friends. | came to know this family on
a much more intimate level in that capacity. Steven was not the child who was running in the
streets, getting in trouble and hanging out on corners. Steven was home if he wagc not at work. | was
a guest in this home on many occasions and witnessed Steven interact with his family. Steven
comes from a strong female led household, on & foundation of Christian faith, love and redemption.
In his home, mutual respect was taught and expected. As he got older, Steven took on more

responsibilities, cooking meals, cleaning and running errands for his mother and his grandmother
who lived nearby,

I had a conversation with Steven once regarding interacting with police. National riots had
compelled me to broach this subject with Steven. Steven expressed a very high positive opinion
towards law enforcement and the faw. Steven had a healthy respect and trust at the time and | was
satistied that he would never resist an officer if he was detained.

In my opinion, Steven took on many responsibilities of “the man of the house.” Once emploved, he
turned his paychecks over to his mother to help with rent, utilities and anything his vounger sister
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Justice Court
June 5, 2018
Page 2

might need. In his down time, Steven could be found writing or playing music in his room more
often than anywhers alse. He wirote songs and sang them so beautifully. He certainly is multi-
talented.

Steven should not be at the defendant’s table. Steven was compelled 1o trial because of his co-
defendant’s lack of willingness to take responsibility for his actions. Steven accepts his role in the
events that resulted in the wounding of an officer, 1t is painful to see this young man’s life on the
verge of being wasted. He has so much potential and desire to find meaning and purpose in his life
even as he faces sentencing in this case. He has written to me about writing books, Even under the
conditions he has endured in County jail, he has found a way to use his mind and gift of storytelling
to start writing novels. | encourage him to use his voice to effect change for the better and help
others.

Your Honor, | am respectfully requesting that you take these factors into consideration before
sentencing this promising young man, | know Steven will be a model prisoner. He will follow the
rules and do more than is expected of him, 3s is his nature. Prison will change him, Sir. Please
consider his potential. Please consider what impact his absence for an extended amount of time will
have on his family. His mother is devastated and heartbroken. Jade has moved to another state to
avoid this painful time. Steven had an integral rofe in his family and his absence has created a void
which has caused a lot of pain. | pray that this void will be temporary and short fived.

Thank vou for your consideration of my thoughts regarding this matter,

Hespectiully,

£laine Steele
Title
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june 1, 2018
To Whom it May Concern,

1 am writing on behalf of my cousin, Steven Turner Jr. and his pending sentencing
decision.

I have known this young man his entire life and am still stunned at the situation he
finds himself in with the Justice system.

Steven has always been a soft spoken, kind and helpful soul. His family has
depended on him for not only financial support, but practical assistance with
medical conditions, emergencies, transportation and other life issues. He has
always been dependable, willing to help out wherever needed and a pleasure to be
around.

His incarceration has not only affected his life, but has been traumatic for his
mother, sister and other family members, who rely on him.

Personally | still can’t believe this is happening and pray daily that his young life has
not been ruined by this incident. An extended term of incarceration will not serve
justice nor is it in the best interest of a family and community that will only benefit
from Steven’s return.

Please know Steven has a loving supportive family that believes in him and can
provide the encouragement and opportunities to get his life back on track and

redeem the time he has lost behind bars.

Respectfully Submitted,

Marri R. Cooper
Cousin

{619) 454-1602
P.O. Box 948
Lemon Grove CA 91846
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To Whom it May Concern:

My name is Carla Smith, T am a professional in the Post-Secondary Education field. Itis
hard for me to wrap my head around the fact that I even need to write a letter such as this for
Steven, this is not the young man I know.

1 have known Stephanie and her children Steven and Jade for over 15 years. 1 have admired
the way Stephanie has raised her children as a single mother — allowing and encouraging them to
grow and develop as individuals, be true to themselves, be kind-hearted, and pursue their dreams.
Stephanie’s relationship with her son Steven is especially special. She is able 1o be a mon to him
when he needs support and encouragement, a mother to him when he needs guidance, direction,
and discipline, and a friend — his BEST friend when he needs one. They have been an amazing
support system to each other — all three of them. They have stuck together through difficult times
for the family, death of family members, stressful financial situations, anything and everything
one of them would go through — they went through TOGETHER.

What { have always appreciated about Steven as a young Black man is his respect and kind
heart for others. Steven has been through situations where people close to him have let him down
and he has walked in his Christian upbringing and showed them grace and forgiveness when this
hasn’t always been shown to him. Steven, like his mother, cannot let anyone go hungry or
homeless, and would not let anvone who needed a friend be without, he would give anyone the
shirt off his back — it"s just who he is!

I consider myself a good and capable judge of character. In my profession as a Director
of Admissions for several colleges and ourrently a Director of Student Finance, I have to meet with
and assess a student’s likelihood for success in completing programs and being success in their
studies and training.

Since I"ve known Steven he has been very consistent in showing an aptitude for success if
given the opportunity. Steven has expressed having a passion for music and culinary. Steven was
looking into a local culinary school to attend here in the near future. He loves cooking and loves
writing music. I am confident that Steven will achieve his dreams one day. He is a nice young
man who wants to do so much with his life for himseif and for his family.
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Steven has a very large and commitied support system of fidends, uncles, aunts,
grandparents and cousins. I assure you this family intends to rally around this young man to make
sure that nothing like this ever happens to him again. In my conversations with Steven he as
cxpressed a very strong desire to return to a positive lifestyle.

Thank yvou for your time and congsideration,

Carla Smith
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June 11, 2018

To Whom It May Concern

We are John and Randa Robinson, the aunt and uncle of Steven Turner. Steven Turner is a very
caring and responsible adult. As a child of a single mother he was put in a position to care for his
younget sister Jade early on in his life. As an adult Steven worked very hard to make sure that all
needs of his family were met financially as he was the man of the house. We have also known
Steven to be a level headed man who has a great sense of responsibility to do the right thing,
Throughout his entire life, Steven has cared for and supported his mother, Stephanie and his sister.
Jade’s father and Steven’s step father Jerome passed away when they were teens and Steven made
a point to support and care for Jade and their mom. He is very loving and loyal to his family and 1
have no doubt that he will continue on this path.

Not having Steven around these past few years has been very difficult on the entire family. We
have a large family filled with cousins of Stevens ranging from 23 to 2 years old. We all miss him
very much and our family is not complete without him.

I, John Robinson, am a veteran of the United States Marine Corps, who served my country for 10
years during the wars in Afghanistan and Iraq. I currently run a multi-inspector firm based in San
Diego which Randa and I have ran successfully for 7 years. Upon Steven’s release, he has
guaranteed employment at my company. This is due to the fact that Steven has proven to be a hard
worker and he excels at whatever task or job that he chooses to take on. As his aunt and uncle, we
want to see Steven excel in all ways possible and be given the opportunity to show his true
potential. I feel he can do this with our guidance.

Thank you for taking the time to read this letter. It is greatly appreciated.

Jobhn and Randa Robinson
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To Whom It May Concern
Hi,

My name is Jade Wood and I am Steven’s younger sister. Since I was born, Steven has
been a constant source of love and support. When I was younger and my parents divoreed, Steven
became the man of the house. He provided my mother and me strength when we felt weak, When
we were children Steven looked out for me, encouraged me to excel in school and was always
there for me when 1 needed someone to lean on. He also acted as g disciplinarian when it was
needed (whether I liked it or not} and also stressed the importance of hard work and responsibility,

When I was 15, my father passed away suddenly. I would not have made it through that
time if it had not been for Steven supporting me emotionally and mentally. When Steven was old
enough, he worked to assist my mother and me for living expenses and things that I may have
needed. Seeing Steven work SO hard encouraged me io be the same way.

When Steven was first arrested, my mother and I were devastated. For the majority of our
lives it was just the three of us. When the trio was broken, we all felt as if our hearts were shattered.
Despite the current predicament, Steven once again made a point o be the source of strength for
our family. He has remained strong and determined to make sure that he uses this time to ensure
that hie is able to grow as a person. While he has been incarcerated, Steven has earned his GED
and taken multiple self-growth courses to ensure that he is a healthy contributing member to
society.

I currently live in San Diego where [ am attending school full time for my Bachelors in
Applied Biotechnology and working full time as well. Upon Steven’s release, I will help him in
any way that I can, whether it is financial or emotional. Steven is a good man with amazing
potential to excel if given the opportunity,

Jade Wood
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To whom it may concern,

I am writing to you in regard to my nephew Steven Anthony Turner Jr. who has
been incarcerated for quite some time now. | have obviously known Steven all of
his life through family connections and realize that makes me slightly biased. | feel
that 1 am a good enough judge of character to be considered a fair reference.

Steven is a person of good moral character who comes from a strong family. Our
family has always believed in hard work, integrity and goodwill toward others and
has been raised in the church. Steven has retained all of those beliefs.

Steven knows what it means to do an honest day’s work and also recognizes the
value of his personal obligations. In fact for all of his adult life Steven has been the
kind of person who took care of his family and friends without hesitation.

As far as his personal life he has many family members and friends among whom
he is loved, quite well respected and liked. Steven never has a bad word to say
about anyone and his kindness and generosity stands to the highest quality,

By now | hope you have gotten the impression that Steven is a good person and
could never do the crime that he is accused of doing he was just at the wrong
place at the wrong time. Please contact me personally if you would like to discuss
Steven’s case any further

Thank you for your time and consideration,

Project Assistant/Umoja Peer Mentor

School of Arts, Humanities, Communications, and Telecommunications
AH-S19A/ 619-388-3522

Cell: 619-779-9124

San Diego City College
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To Whom 1t May Concern:

My name is Jaylon Cory Robinson 1 am 19yrs old and Steven Turner is an older cousin of
mine. Steven always had an influence on my life. I still remember all the talks we had when I was
much younger he was full of dreams and aspirations and he still is. These last couple of years have
been really hard, not just the fact that he's gone but seeing the effect it has on my Aunt and other
cousin is really painful. T am cuwrrently enlisted in the Air Force and Steven pushing me to do that
is honesily the main reason why I enlisted, I know for a fact as soon as Steven is released he will
immediately put nothing but positivity into this world.
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To Whom If May Concerm:

Hello, my name is Asta Galaviz, I am 28, and I currently work in property management, in
North Dakota. T have known Steven Turner since we were in middle school. You could call us
close friends, as we spent most of our youth years, until today, as close friends. Everywhere from
school dances, sports events many birthdays, and one day hopefully weddings. Being close friends
with Steven, I grew close to his family as well. His family, who he loves more than anything in
this world. He is everything to his mother, and little sister. Steven worked hard his entire life, to
make sure his mom and sister were always taken care of. I know they miss him terribly, as he was
the male figure in both of their lives, for as long as I can remember. [ know they are missing him,
as much as he misses them, | have talked to Steven a few times since he has been incarcerated.
How he is ready for change, ready to live the life he is supposed to. He kaows he made a mistake.
I truly believe he has grown, and learned from his mistake. He is ready for another chauce to do
right, and be the man we all know he is. L hope you take in to consideration, giving this man another
chance, as well all deserve second chances. I am hoping my lifelong friend, gets to come home,
work hard, and one day start a family of his own. Starting a family was something we all would
talk about as young adults. T hope I get to share more of life's big milestones, with Steven for the
rest of our lives. And, hope that one day ray children, and his children, can admire secing their
parents, friends with the same friends since middle school. Thank you for taking the time to read
my letter.
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To whom this may concern

On behalf of my grandson Steven Anthony Turner Junior | speak from
the heart | speak as a grandmother to inform you that Steven Jr. is an
awesome grandson who helps his mother financially, Stevens a hard
worker who is loving, caring, considerate, protective, a God fearing
young man that doesn’t stray away from the Law. In all the years he’s
lived here on this earth troubles never found him because he’s been
an honorable young man that honored himself, and his family
values with the utmost respect.

When | was hospitalized for several months my grandson visited me as
often as two times a week while living in Las Vegas and | in San

Diego. Relentless to let nothing stop him from making sure | was being
cared for properly.

Steven would never put himself in a Compromising position that would
end his life behind a jail room wall that would bring shame to his
mother whom he adores.

Please consider his clean record and listen to the heart and know he's

an awesome young man that picked the wrong acquaintances that day
but never did he deviate from right and wrong that would make him
harm anyone.

With great consideration

Annie D, Turner
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Sincerely,
Courtney Banks-Dozier

Notary Public for the state of Texas
Licensed Life Insurance Agent
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Te Whom it May Concermn:

Steven Anthony Turner is an awesome individual. He's funny, intelligent, very driven,
hardworking and talented. He was working on his 3rd music project which now is on standby due
to his circumstances. | went to elementary school with Steven, we had the same ¢lass in fourth
grade at Cholas elementary in San Diego, ca. He always got his class and homework done on time
and anytime me and any other relative had issues amongst each other we could always count on
Steven to come up with a win win solution he was like the mediator of our circle of close cousins.

He was raised my his wonderful mother Stephanie who was pretty strict on him but it was
so he could understand the value of hard work and earning his way through his life. She always
made sure his school work was done before he could do the activities he'd like 1o do. Growing up
Steven always stayed level headed 1 always thought his intellect was ahead of its time. 1 don't feel
like the charges that Steven is facing represents his character and who he is a person I've never
known Steven to be in trouble with the law he's always kept a job. The last time we spoke when
he was a free man he spoke about enrolling back in school, we both did. I and the family of Steven
just hope there’s a second chance in the works for him because not only does he deserve it he is
not the menace that these charges make him out to seem to be. I send my deepest regards to the

victim(s) and I hope and pray that Steven gets a second chance to show that he has learned from
all of this
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To whom it may concern,

My name is Akaira Woods; 'm a child care Case Manager with the Las Vegas
Urban League. | have known Stephanie Robinson for seven years and her son
Steven Turner. When this situation first happened with Steven being arrested |
was in shock because that was not the Steven | know. Steven has also been a
respectable young man who loved his family. He was always there for his mother
and sister and would never intentionally do anything that would separate him
from them. Since this whole ordeal Stephanie has been by her son side but it has
been hard because she misses him truly and it takes a toll on her life, Steven was
never a bad kid, he worked and a good hard worker to say the least. He has a
good heart and would give the shirt off his back for someone if he had too. Please
take all of this in consideration when it comes to his sentencing. Thank You for
your time,
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To whom it may concern:
My name is Dimawi

I am Stevens Aunt by marriage and would like to attest to his character, kindness and maturity. He has
always been one to look out for others and especially his mother and sister. He is an asset to the
community and his presence is sorely missed by all close 16 him.

Sincerely, Dimawi
49305 Hwy 74 space 119
Palm Desert, CA 92260
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Dear Your Honor,

| am the father of the defendant, Steven Turner. | am writing you this letter as a plea for leniency for my
son. He and |, as well as the rest of our family are aware of the gravity of the crime for which he has
been convicted. It is difficult to grasp the reality of what has happened and that my son did it. However,
it is a reality that we must accept. Please allow me to give you more insight to my son's character, he is
much more than the sum of actions he demonstrated on that unfortunate night.

Steven has always been a good son, brother, and friend. He has never been in any serious trouble. But
what he has done is be there for his family and friends in their times of need.

With this being Steven's first conviction, and otherwise clean record. Please give him a second chance at
life with a lesser sentence.

Sincerely,

Steven Turner Sr.
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Electronically Filed
7/2/2018 11:36 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COUR
JOC Cﬁz«f A"‘“""""

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
CASE NO. C-15-309578-1
-vs_
STEVEN TURNER DEPT. NO. XVIiI
#2717636
Defendant.

JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION
(JURY TRIAL)

The Defendant previously entered a plea of not guilty to the crimes of COUNT 1
— CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT BURGLARY (Gross Misdemeanor) in violation of NRS
205.060; COUNT 2 — ATTEMPT BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A
FIREARM OR DEADLY WEAPON (Category C Felony) in violation of NRS 205.060.4;
COUNT 3 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B
Felony) in violation of NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.330, 193.165; COUNT 4 — ATTEMPT]|
MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony) in violation of NRS
200.010, 200.030, 193.330, 193.165; and COUNT 5 — BATTERY WITH USE OF A

g
£

Ploa with Sent. (dwring el e e

i
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DEADLY WEAPON RESULTING IN SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM (Category B
Felony) in violation of NRS 200.481, and the matter having been tried before a jury and
the Defendant having been found guilty of the crimes of COUNT 1 CONSPIRACY TO
COMMIT BURGLARY (Gross Misdemeanor) in violation of NRS 205.060; COUNT 2 —
ATTEMPT BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A FIREARM OR DEADLY
WEAPON (Category C Felony) in violation of NRS 205.060.4; COUNT 3 — ATTEMPT
MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony) in violation of NRS
200.010, 200.030, 193.330, 193.165; COUNT 4 — ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF
A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony) in violation of NRS 200.010, 200.030,
193.330, 193.165; and COUNT 5 — BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
RESULTING IN SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM (Category B Felony) in violation of
NRS 200.481, thereafter, on the 21% day of June, 2018, the Defendant was present in
court for sentencing with counsel TEGAN MACHNICH and ASHLEY SISOLAK, Deputy
Public Defenders, and good cause appearing,

THE DEFENDANT IS HEREBY ADJUDGED guilty of said offenses and, in
addition to the $25.00 Administrative Assessment Fee, $9,099.98 Restitution to be paid
jointly and severally with Co-Defendant to VC2253860 — Jeremy Robertson, and
$150.00 DNA Analysis Fee including testing to determine genetic markers plus $3.00
DNA Collection Fee, the Defendant is SENTENCED to the Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDC) as follows: COUNT 1 — THREE HUNDRED SIXTY-FOUR (364)
DAYS in the Clark County Detention Center (CCDC); COUNT 2 - a MAXIMUM of
SEVENTY-TWO (72) MONTHS with a MINIMUM parole eligibility of SIXTEEN (16)

2 S:\Forms\JOC-Jury 1 Ct/6/26/2018
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MONTHS, CONCURRENT with COUNT 1; COUNT 3 - a MAXIMUM of ONE
HUNDRED TWENTY (120) MONTHS with a MINIMUM parole eligibility of FORTY-
EIGHT (48) MONTHS, plus a CONSECUTIVE term of ONE HUNDRED TWENTY (120)
MONTHS with a MINIMUM parole eligibility of THIRTY-SIX (36) MONTHS for the Use
of a Deadly Weapon, CONCURRENT with COUNT 2; COUNT 4 - a MAXIMUM of ONE
HUNDRED TWENTY (120) MONTHS with a MINIMUM parole eligibility of FORTY-
EIGHT (48) MONTHS, plus a CONSECUTIVE term of ONE HUNDRED TWENTY (120)
MONTHS with a MINIMUM parole eligibility of THIRTY-SIX (36) MONTHS for the Use
of a Deadly Weapon, CONSECUTIVE to COUNT 3; COUNT 5 - a MAXIMUM of ONE
HUNDRED TWENTY (120) MONTHS with a MINIMUM parole eligibility of THIRTY-SIX
(36) MONTHS, CONCURRENT with COUNT 2; with ONE THOUSAND, TWENTY-TWO|
(1022) DAYS credit for time served. The AGGREGATE TOTAL sentence is FOUR
HUNDRED EIGHTY (480) MONTHS MAXIMUM with a MINIMUM PAROLE
ELIGIBILITY OF ONE HUNDRED SIXTY-EIGHT (168) MONTHS.

DATED this_ A& day of June, 2018. /

| 4
MARK B. BAILUS
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
3 S:\Forms\JOC-Jury 1 Ct/6/26/2018
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Electronically Filed
7/18/2018 12:23 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU,
NOAS W' ﬁuﬂnﬂ

PHILIP J. KOHN, PUBLIC DEFENDER
NEVADA BAR No. 0556

309 South Third Street, Suite 226
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

(702) 455-4685

Attorney for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintiff, 3 CASE NO. C-15-309578-1
V. % DEPT. NO. XVI1l1
STEVEN TURNER, %
Defendant. 3
) NOTICE OF APPEAL

TO: THE STATE OF NEVADA

STEVEN B. WOLFSON, DISTRICT ATTORNEY, CLARK COUNTY,
NEVADA and DEPARTMENT NO. XVIIl1 OF THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL
DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE
COUNTY OF CLARK.

NOTICE is hereby given that Defendant, Steven Turner,
presently incarcerated in the Nevada State Prison, appeals to the
Supreme Court of the State of Nevada from the judgment entered
against said Defendant on the 2 day of July, 2018, whereby he was
convicted of Ct. 1 — Conspiracy to Commit Burglary; Ct. 2 -
Attempt Burglary While in Possession of a Firearm or Deadly
Weapon; Cts. 3 & 4 — Attempt Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon;
Ct. 5 — Battery With Use of a Deadly Weapon and sentenced to $25
Admin. Fee; $9,099.98 restitution, paid jointly with co-defendant
to VC2253860-Jeremy Robertson and $150 DNA analysis fee; genetic
testing, $3 DNA collection fee; Ct. 1 — 364 days CCDC; Ct. 2 — 16-

72 months in prison concurrent with Ct. 1; Ct. 3 — 48-120 months
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plus a consecutive term of 36-120 months for the Use of a Deadly
Weapon, concurrent with Ct. 2 — Ct. 4 — 48-120 months plus a
consecutive term of 36-120 months for the Use of a Deadly Weapon,
consecutive to Ct. 3; Ct. 5 — 36-120 months concurrent with Ct. 2;
1022 days CTS; aggregate total 168-480 months in prison.

DATED this 18 day of July, 2018.

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By: _ /s/ Howard S. Brooks
HOWARD S. BROOKS, #3374
Deputy Public Defender
309 S. Third Street, Ste. 226
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155
(702) 455-4685
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DECLARATION OF MAILING

Carrie Connolly, an employee with the Clark County
Public Defender’s Office, hereby declares that she 1i1s, and was
when the herein described mailing took place, a citizen of the
United States, over 21 years of age, and not a party to, nor
interested in, the within action; that on the 18 day of July,
2018, declarant deposited In the United States mail at Las Vegas,
Nevada, a copy of the Notice of Appeal in the case of the State of
Nevada v. Steven Turner, Case No. C-15-309578-1, enclosed in a
sealed envelope upon which Ffirst class postage was fully prepaid,
addressed to Steven Turner, c/o High Desert State Prison, P.0O. Box
650, Indian Springs, NV 89070. That there 1i1s a regular
communication by mail between the place of mailing and the place
so addressed.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is
true and correct.

EXECUTED on the 18 day of July, 2018.

/s/ Carrie M. Connolly
An employee of the Clark County
Public Defender’s Office
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CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing

was made this 18 day of July, 2018, by Electronic Filing to:

District Attorneys Office
E-Mail Address:

PDMotions@clarkcountyda.com

Jennifer._Garcia@clarkcountyda.com

Eileen._Davis@clarkcountyda.com

/s/ Carrie M. Connolly
Secretary for the
Public Defender’s Office
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~ N\ Electronically Filed
9/5/2018 4:24 PM
Steven D. Grierson

NEVADA BAR NO. 0556

TEGAN C. MACHNICH, DEPUTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
NEVADA BAR NO. 11642

PUBLIC DEFENDERS OFFICE

309 South Third Street, Suite 226

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

Telephone: (702) 455-4685

Facsimile: (702) 455-5112
Tegan.Machnich@clarkcountynv.gov

Attorneys for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA  pephioiiont chanae
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintiff, % CASE NO. C-15-309578-1
v. : DEPT. NO. XV XX [ X
STEVEN TURNER, %
Defendant, §

ORDER
THIS MATTER having come before the Court on March 29, 2018, and good cause

appearing therefore,
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Defendant Turner’s statement taken on September 4,

2015 from 15:35 hours to 18:12 hours by Detective Jex is hereby suppressed.

DATED this z/ ¥ &{ day of a’b&.?y— ,2018.

2

P

COURT JUDGE
Submitted by: %

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

< q
By _/sfTeeanColich ch)7
TEGAN C. MACHNICH; %] 1642
Chief Deputy Public Defender

RECEIVED
AUG 2 4 2018

DISTRICT COURT

DEPARTMENT 15 7 O 8

Case Number: C-15-309578-1

CLERK OF THE COU
oRon Rl b A
PHILIP J. KOHN, PUBLIC DEFENDER




C-15-309578-1

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES September 23, 2015

C-15-309578-1 State of Nevada
VS
Steven Turner

September 23,2015 11:45 AM Grand Jury Indictment
HEARD BY: Barker, David COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 10C
COURT CLERK: Louisa Garcia

RECORDER: Cheryl Carpenter

PARTIES
PRESENT: Overly, Sarah Attorney
State of Nevada Plaintiff
Talim, Tina Singh Attorney
JOURNAL ENTRIES

- Ann Kling, Grand Jury Foreperson, stated to the Court that at least twelve members had concurred
in the return of the true bill during deliberation, but had been excused for presentation to the Court.
State presented Grand Jury Case Number 15AGJ055A to the Court. COURT ORDERED, the
Indictment may be filed and is assigned Case Number C309578-1, Department 2. State requested
warrant and agued bail. COURT ORDERED, WARRANT ISSUED, BAIL SET in the TOTAL
AMOUNT OF $500,000.00 and matter SET for initial arraignment. FURTHER ORDERED, Las Vegas
Justice Court case 15F13307A DISMISSED and exhibits 1-59 lodged with clerk of District Court.

LW. (CUSTODY)

10/1/15 9:00 AM INITIAL ARRAIGNMENT (DEPT 2)

PRINT DATE:  09/23/2015 Page1of1 Minutes Date:  September 23, 2015

709



C-15-309578-1

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES October 01, 2015

C-15-309578-1 State of Nevada
VS
Steven Turner

October 01, 2015 9:00 AM All Pending Motions
HEARD BY: Scotti, Richard F COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 11D
COURT CLERK: Tena Jolley

RECORDER: FElsa Amoroso

PARTIES
PRESENT: Beverly, Leah C. DA/ Attorney for State of Nevada
Machnich, Tegan PD/ Attorney for Defendant
Turner, Steven Defendant
JOURNAL ENTRIES

- INITTAL ARRAIGNMENT...INDICTMENT WARRANT RETURN

DEFT. TURNER ARRAIGNED, PLED NOT GUILTY, and WAIVED the 60-DAY RULE. COURT
ORDERED, matter SET for Trial.

CUSTODY
5/5/16 9:00 AM CALENDAR CALL

5/9/16 10:00 AM JURY TRIAL

PRINT DATE:  10/01/2015 Page1of1 Minutes Date:  October 01, 2015
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C-15-309578-1

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES November 10, 2015

C-15-309578-1 State of Nevada
VS
Steven Turner

November 10,2015 9:00 AM Deft's Motion for Bail Reduction
HEARD BY: Scotti, Richard F. COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 11D
COURT CLERK: April Watkins

RECORDER: FElsa Amoroso

PARTIES
PRESENT: Demonte, Noreen Attorney for PItf.
Machnich, Tegan Attorney for Deft.
State of Nevada Plaintiff
Turner, Steven Defendant
JOURNAL ENTRIES

- Matter submitted by counsel. COURT ORDERED, motion DENIED.

CUSTODY

PRINT DATE:  11/18/2015 Page1of1 Minutes Date:  November 10, 2015
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C-15-309578-1

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES May 03, 2016

C-15-309578-1 State of Nevada
VS
Steven Turner

May 03, 2016 9:00 AM Calendar Call
HEARD BY: Scotti, Richard F. COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 11D
COURT CLERK: Shelly Landwehr

RECORDER: FElsa Amoroso

REPORTER:
PARTIES Coumou, Frank Attorney
PRESENT: Machnich, Tegan Attorney
State of Nevada Plaintiff
Turner, Steven Defendant
JOURNAL ENTRIES

- Parties stipulated to continue trial. COURT SO ORDERED. Upon Court's inquiry, parties advised
this matter would take one week to try.

CUSTODY
11/29/16 9:00 AM CALENDAR CALL

12/05,/16 10:00 AM JURY TRIAL

PRINT DATE:  05/20/2016 Page1of1 Minutes Date:  May 03, 2016
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C-15-309578-1

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES July 12, 2016

C-15-309578-1 State of Nevada
VS
Steven Turner

July 12, 2016 9:00 AM Defendant’s Motion for Production of Discovery
HEARD BY: Scotti, Richard F. COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 11D
COURT CLERK: Shelly Landwehr

RECORDER: FElsa Amoroso

REPORTER:
PARTIES
PRESENT: Beverly, Leah C. Attorney
State of Nevada Plaintiff
Turner, Steven Defendant
Lisk, Steven Attorney
JOURNAL ENTRIES

- At the request of the parties, COURT ORDERED, matter CONTINUED to 7/26/16 at 9:00 a.m.

CUSTODY

PRINT DATE: 07/12/2016 Page1of1 Minutes Date:  July 12, 2016
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C-15-309578-1

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES July 26, 2016

C-15-309578-1 State of Nevada
VS
Steven Turner

July 26, 2016 9:00 AM Defendant’s Motion for Production of Discovery
HEARD BY: Scotti, Richard F. COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 11D
COURT CLERK: Shelly Landwehr

RECORDER: FElsa Amoroso

REPORTER:
PARTIES Turner, Steven Defendant
PRESENT: Yeager, Steven Attorney
Mendoza, Erika Attorney
JOURNAL ENTRIES

- Mr. Yeager requested a continuance on behalf of Ms. Machnich. There being no objection, COURT
SO ORDERED.

CUSTODY

CONTINUED TO: 8/04/16 9:00 AM

PRINT DATE: 07/26/2016 Page1of1 Minutes Date:  July 26, 2016
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C-15-309578-1

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES August 04, 2016
C-15-309578-1 State of Nevada
Vs

Steven Turner

August 04, 2016 9:00 AM Defendant's Motion For Production Of Discovery
HEARD BY: Scotti, Richard F. COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 11D
COURT CLERK: Tena Jolley

RECORDER: Patti Slattery

PARTIES
PRESENT: Beverly, Leah C. Attorney for the State
Machnich, Tegan Attorney for Defendant
Turner, Steven Defendant
JOURNAL ENTRIES

- Ms. Machnich indicated the parties do not appear to have a discovery dispute at this time; requested
that the Court grant the motion as to statutory and Brady; and that the motion was filed at this time
because there was a CD that was missing which holds the bulk of the discovery. Ms. Beverly stated
the CD was sent, however it apparently was not working and she will be sending another copy.
Based on the representations of counsel and good cause appearing, COURT ORDERED, Defendant's
Motion for Production of Discovery GRANTED to the extent that the State has the obligation to
produce the documents requested consistent with Brady, Giglio and their progeny.

CUSTODY

PRINT DATE:  08/10/2016 Page1of1 Minutes Date:  August 04, 2016
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INSTRUCTION fl g

If, during your deliberation, you should desire to be further informed on any point of
law or hear again portions of the testimony, S/ou must reduce your request to writing signed
by the foreperson. The officer will then return you to court where the information sought
will be given you in the presence of, and a‘fter notice to, the district attorney and the
Defendant and his counsel.

Play backs of testimony are time-consuming and are not enc‘;ouraged unless you deem
it a necessity. Should you require a play back, you must carefully describe the testimony to
be played back so that the court recorder can arrange her notes. Remember, the court is not

at liberty to supplement the evidence.

Docket 76465 Document 2019-(64[6
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INSTRUCTION No.,_ S O
Now you will listen to the argulhents of counsel who will endeavor to aid you to
reach a proper verdict by refreshing in your minds the evidence and by showing the
application thereof to the law; but, whatever counsel may say, you will bear in mind that it is
your duty to be governed in your deliberation by the evidenc;: as you understand it and
remember it to be and by the law as given to you in these instructibns, with the sole, fixed
and steadfast purpose of doing equal and exact justice between the Defendant and the State

of Nevada.

GIVEN:

DISTRICT JUDGE
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ED IN OPEN COURT
FnéTEVEN D. GRIERSON

VER CLERK OF THE COURT
APR 27 2018
DISTRICT COURT 1236 p-™
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA gy, )N

ALAN PAU STLE, SR, DEPUTY

THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintiff, § CASENO: C309578 — |
vs- j DEPT NO:  XVIII
STEVEN TURNER, )
CLEMON HUDSON )
Defendant. g
)
VERDICT

We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant STEVEN TURNER as
follows:
COUNT 1 - CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT BURGLARY
(please check the appropriate box, select only one)
E{Guilty of Conspiracy to Commit Burglary
[d Not Guilty | |

COUNT 2 — ATTEMPT BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A FIREARM
OR DEADLY WEAPON

E/Guilty of Attempt Burglary While in Possession of a Firearm or Deadly
Weapon :
[ Guilty of Attempt Burglary

(3 Not Guilty

COUNT 3 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH DEADLY WEAPON
{3/ Guilty of Attempt Murder with Deadly Weapon

O Guilty of Attempt Murder
O Not Guilty

¢-15-309878 -1
., VEA
i Vardlct
4741914

[
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COUNT 4 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH DEADLY WEAPON
& Guilty of Attempt Murder with Deadly Weapon

O Guilty of Attempt Murder
(] Not Guilty

COUNT 5 - BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON RESULTING IN
SUBSTANTIAL:BODILY HARM

E(Guilty of Battery with Use of a Deadly Weapon Resulting in Substantial
Bodily Harm

[J Guiity of Battery with Use of a Deadly Weapon
0 Guilty of Battery Resulting in Substantial Bodily Harm

O Guilty of Battery
O Not Guilty

DATED this & | day of April, 2018

(e
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Electronically Filed
5/4/2018 3:48 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU,
PHILIP J. KOHN, PUBLIC DEFENDER &,‘M_A »ﬁ.""“"""

NEVADA BAR NO. 0556

309 South Third Street, Suite 226
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

(702) 455-4685

Attorney for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
)
Plaintiff, ) CASE NO. C-15-309578-1
)
V. ) DEPT. NO. XVIII
)
STEVEN TURNER, ) DATE: MAY 15,2018
) TIME: 9:00 A.M.
Defendant. )
)

MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL
COMES NOW, the Defendant, STEVEN TURNER, by and through ASHLEY L.
SISOLAK, Deputy Public Defender and hereby file this Motion For New Trial.
This Motion is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached Declaration of Counsel, and oral argument at the time set for hearing this Motion.
DATED this 4th day of May, 2018.

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By: /s/ ASHLEY L. SISOLAK
ASHLEY L. SISOLAK, #13958
Deputy Public Defender
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DECLARATION

ASHLEY SISOLAK makes the following declaration:

1. I am an attorney duly licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada; I am
the Deputy Public Defender assigned to represent the Defendant in the instant matter, and am
familiar with the following facts and circumstances of this case.

2. On August 23, 2017 Craig Muller filed a Motion to Sever on behalf of Co-
Defendant Clemon Hudson. Please see attached Exhibit A.

3. On October 12, 2017, Joinder was filed on behalf of Mr. Turner by the
Office of the Public Defender. Please see Exhibit B'.

4. On October 12, 2017 Judge Nancy Saitta denied Mr. Turner’s Joinder to the
Motion to Sever without prejudice based on the belief of the Court that any Bruton® issues could
be remedied through redactions to proposed statements. Please see Exhibit C.

5. The Motion to Sever by Co-Defendant was renewed on November 16, 2017,
and was denied by Judge Bailus. Please see Exhibit D.

6. On December 14, 2017, the Court issued the official redaction to the
statements based on the denial of the Motion to Sever. Based upon the Courts denial of the Motion
to Sever and decision to instead redact the statements to comply with Bruton, Mr. Turner did not
challenge the Court’s redactions. Please see Exhibit E.

7. It is the belief of the defense that the redactions as used at trial could not
erase the implication of either Co-Defendant based upon the State’s argument that there were only
two people present.

8. It is further the belief of the defense that severance was warranted and
necessary based on the direct implication of the other party at trial and further, the antagonistic
defenses by each Co-Defendant.

9. The Defense asserts that based on failing to sever the Co-Defendants in this
matter and instead to redact the statements the ability of Mr. Turner to present a complete theory of

defense was diminished.

! “Exhibit B” does not include the statements attached to the original filing. They will be submitted upon request.
2 Bruton v. United States 391 U.S. 123 (1968)

2
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9. It has come to the attention of the defense, based on conversations with law
enforcement, that any time there are firearms or shell casing involved in a crime an entry is made
into the National Integrated Balistics Information Network also known as NIBIN.

10.  Where there is a NIBIN entry, that entry can then be used to compare shell casings
from a firearm or those found at a crime scene to other such casings or firearms in the database and
a report is generated. Please see attached Exhibit F for an example of such report (unrelated case).

11. Based upon the facts in the case herein there may be a NIBIN report and/or entry
related to each firearm present at the scene. This includes the Berretta handgun that was not fired.

12. It was the Defense’s contention at trial that there was a third person involved in this
shooting. Based on that contention, the existence of a NIBIN entry and/or report as to the guns in
this case, particularly the hand gun is potentially exculpatory, whether or not there was a “hit”
based on the database.

13. No such NIBIN reports regarding any of the firearms were turned over to the
Defense. This report constitutes Brady® material because of its potential exculpatory value to the
Defense.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. (NRS
53.045).

EXECUTED this 4th day of May, 2018.

_/s/ ASHLEY L. SISOLAK
ASHLEY L. SISOLAK

3 Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83 (1963)
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

NRS 176.515 sets out when a motion for a new trial can be brought:

1. The court may grant a new trial to a defendant if required as a
matter of law or on the ground of newly discovered evidence.

2. If trial was by the court without a jury the court may vacate the
judgment if entered, take additional testimony and direct the entry of a new
judgment.

3. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 176.0918, a motion for a new
trial based on the ground of newly discovered evidence may be made only within 2
years after the verdict or finding of guilt.

4. A motion for a new trial based on any other grounds must be
made within 7 days after the verdict or finding of guilt or within such further
time as the court may fix during the 7-day period.

This motion is brought pursuant to NRS 176.515, section 1 and section 4. This motion is
brought based on the fact that the Court did not properly sever the matter at hand prior to trial, and
based on violated discovery rules resulting in potential new evidence. An evidentiary hearing is
requested in order to make a more complete record on these matters.

Motion to Sever

In Chartier v. State of Nevada, 124 Nev. 760 the Court held that “severance may be

required where a failure to sever hinders a defendant’s ability to prove his theory of the case.”
Here, based on the Court’s redactions, Mr. Turner could not address the potential second vehicle
described by the Co- Defendant. Nor could Mr. Turner inquire about that vehicle specifically with

law enforcement who testified. Like in Chartier had the cases been severed prior to trial, Mr.

Turner could have brought out the statements of the Co-Defendant at his separate and distinct trial

without the worry of prejudice to the Co- Defendant that Bruton is designed to protect. Bruton v.
United States, 391 U.S. 123 (1968).

Rueda-Denvers v. State of Nevada, 128 Nev. 931, which distinguishes Chartier, the Court

found that a defendant’s right to confrontation was violated by the detective’s use of the word
“they” in referencing the crime that occurred. The Court found this to be a harmless error based on
the same fact being clearly established by other evidence. However, the Court also found that a

Bruton violation did occur. Citing Stevens, the Court stated that it was “not only natural, but
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seemingly inevitable, that the jury would infer appellant to be the person referred to in the blanks

in [the codefendant’s] statements”. Stevens v. State, 97 Nev. 443, 444 (1981).

Unlike in Rueda-Denvers there was no video surveillance in the case herein. Additionally,

when compared with Stevens it could be argued that the same inferences could be made regarding

the Co-Defendant’s statements, the detectives testimony, and other officers testimony as it related
to Co-Defendant’s statements and an the additional suspect being sought at the time of the
shooting.

Discovery in the Case

Prosecutors must turn over all material related to the case in the possession, control and

custody of any government agent or agency. See U.S. v. Blanco, 392 F.3d 382, 388 (9th Cir.

2004). Prosecutors are responsible for disclosing evidence in their possession as well as evidence
held or maintained by other government agents, as “it is appropriate to charge the State with
constructive knowledge” of evidence held by any investigating agency. Bennett, 119 Nev. at 603.
This constructive possession rule applies to evidence that is withheld by other agencies.
Bennett, 119 Nev. at 603. Even if investigating officers withhold reports without the prosecutor’s
knowledge, “the state attorney is charged with constructive knowledge and possession of evidence
withheld by other state agents, such as law enforcement officers.” Id. (internal quotations and
citation omitted) (emphasis added). “Exculpatory evidence cannot be kept out of the hands of the
defense just because the prosecutor does not have it, where an investigative agency does.” U.S. v.

Zuno-Arce, 44 F.3d 1420, 1427 (9th Cir. 1995). “It is a violation of due process for the prosecutor

to withhold exculpatory evidence, and his motive for doing so is immaterial.” Jimenez, 112 Nev.
at 618.

In fact, a prosecutor has an affirmative obligation to obtain Brady material and provide it to
the defense, even if the prosecutor is initially unaware of its existence. ‘“The prosecution’s
affirmative duty to disclose evidence favorable to a defendant can trace its origins to early 20th
century strictures against misrepresentation and is of course most prominently associated with this

2

Court’s decision in Brady . . . Kyles, 514 U.S. at 432. This obligation exists even where the

defense does not make a request for such evidence. Id. As the U.S. Supreme Court explained:
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This in turn means that the individual prosecutor has a duty to learn of any favorable
evidence known to the others acting on the government’s behalf in the case, including
the police. But whether the prosecutor succeeds or fails in meeting this obligation
(whether, that is, a failure to disclose is in good faith or bad faith), the prosecution's
responsibility for failing to disclose known, favorable evidence rising to a material
level of importance is inescapable. . . . Since then, the prosecutor has the means to
discharge the government’s Brady responsibility if he will, any argument for
excusing a prosecutor from disclosing what he does not happen to know about boils
down to a plea to substitute the police for the prosecutor, and even for the courts
themselves, as the final arbiters of the government’s obligation to ensure fair trials.

Kyles, 514 U.S. at 437-38 (emphasis added) (citations and footnotes omitted); see also Carriger,
132 F.3d at 479-82 (holding that “the prosecution has a duty to learn of any exculpatory evidence
known to others acting on the government’s behalf. Because the prosecution is in a unique
position to obtain information known to other agents of the government, it may not be excused
from disclosing what it does not know but could have learned.” (citations omitted) (emphasis
added). Thus, the disclosure obligations outlined above extend not only to material directly in the
possession of prosecutors, but material prosecutors constructively possess, as well.
Because the defense was entitled to the potentially exculpatory NIBIN entries and/or
reports generated as a result of this case, Mr. Turner’s discovery rights were violated.
Conclusion
Due to the Court’s failure to sever the case and the discovery violations by the State

regarding the NIBIN entries/reports, Mr. Turner should be granted a new trial.

DATED this 4th day of May, 2018.

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By: /s/ ASHLEY L. SISOLAK
ASHLEY L. SISOLAK, #13958
Deputy Public Defender
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NOTICE OF MOTION

TO: CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY, Attorney for Plaintift:

YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Public Defender’s Office will bring

the above and foregoing Motion on for hearing before the Court on the 15th day of May, 2018, at

9:00 a.m.
DATED this 4th day of May, 2018.
PHILIP J. KOHN

CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By: /s/ ASHLEY L. SISOLAK

ASHLEY SISOLAK, #13958
Deputy Public Defender

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE

A COPY of the above and foregoing was sent via electronic to the District

Attorney’s Office at Motions@clarkcountyda.com on this 4th day of May, 2018.

By: /s/ KONIE BALDWIN

An employee of Clark County Public
Defender’s Office
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CRA G A, .MUELLE-R_) Es.
d] Nevada'Ba_r No. 4?03

| CLEMON HUDSON,
14§

Electronically Fllad
8/28/2017 7:35-AM

Steven D. Grierson.
CLERK OF THE COURT,

MUELLER HINDS & ASSOCIATES, CHTD
600 S. Eighth St.

iLas Vegas, NV 89101

Tel  (702) 940-1234

Fax  (702) 940-1235
|| emugller@muellerhinds. com

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA.
STATE OF NEVADA,

CASE NO.: C:15-309578-2

Plaintiff, DEPT. NO.: XVII

V8.

MOTION TQ SEVER; NOTICE

Defendants,

'COMES NOW, CLEMON HUDSON, by and through his attorney, Craig A, Mueller, Bsq., of the |

i law fitm Mueller Hinds & A_S_seciates;herehy move the court to sever the codefendants in this case into |

|[two separate cases. This Tmotion is made based on the following points and authorities and any oral |

YOO

arguments made at the time of the hearing of this
DATED this 23" August, 2017. '

| 5 A '_ UELLE& ESQ.
Nevada Bar No: 4703

1~

Case Number: C-15-308578-2 62 8
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. 2.0, ot as soon thereatier as counsel may be heard,

NOTICE OF MOTION

J|TO:  THE STATE OF NEVADA, Plaintiff,
YOU AND EACH OF YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the above and foregoing
|| MOTION will be heard before the above entitied. Court onthe 7t _day of-'-S'e_p_iemb_e,f 2016,

-'2:'_" :
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
I FACTUAL BACKGROUND

According to the police report, an September 4, 2015 Eric Clarkson heard a noise:and saw an

1| unknown subject on his- patio, got out of bedd, got his cell phone and woke up his Toommate,
-Willoughby Grimaldi, and called 9-11. Ultimately, police officers Robertson and Greco-Smiith arrived,
{saw Stevers Turner and Clemon Hudson, on the patio. Officers took & position, unlocked the door when:
1 Turnier fired an AKA7 rifle striking Officer Robertson inthe feg, and Clemon Hudson allegedly fired

| one shot from the shotgun into the doorway issing the officers.

Turner fled but was seen limping and jaywalking nearby where a person stop was condugted.

1] The officers interviewed Turner who-identified his friend Clemon Hudson, AKA “Mar,” as the person
_' | who he'was with when they planned i go to someone’s house to “steal their weed” on Westeliff and
| Rainbow. After chianging his story a couple of times, Tumer stated he waited in a car while “Mar”

{ erabbed a SKS rifle and shotgun and jumiped in the backyard of the house, Turner thought Mar was

| taking too. Jong so he jumped over the fence too, Turner clainis that “Mar™ walked towsrd the glass

_: { patio door, that e saW'the.cloor--apsn and “Mar” started o shoot,

L APPLICABLE LAW

Section 173,135 of the Nevada Revised Statutes provides:

Two or more defendants may be charged in the same indictmient or inforsiation if they. are

alleged 1o have.parﬁc'ipated- in ‘the sariie act or transaction or in the same series of acts or .

transactionis constituting an offense or offenses. Such defendants may be charged in of'or more

counts together or separately and all of the defendants need not be charged in each count.

Under section 174.163 of the Nevada Revised Statutes:

1. If it appears that a defendant or the State of Nevada is prejudiced by 4 joinder of offenses or
of defendants in an indictrient or information, or by such joinder for trial together, the court |
may order an €lection. or separate tridls of counts, grant a severance of defendants or |

provide whatever other relief justice requires.

.'3_.
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2. In ruling on a motion by a defendant for severance the court may order the district attorney
to-deliver to the court for inspection in chambers-aﬁy statements or _f;onfessi'ons made by the
defendanits which the State intends to introduce in evidence 4t trial,

Of course, the ability'to Jjoin defendants is not unlimited. The Confiontation Clause in the Sixth

|Amendmient to-the United States Constitation provides the right to confront and cross-examine the

{accuser in' a eriminal case, See Bruion v, "Uni_’{_:gq.__States-, 391 US, 123, 135-37 (1968), ‘That right is

{violated where a non-testifying codefendant makes a confession that incriminates the defendant. See |
:_Ro'mem v, Statg, 2016 Nev. LEXIS 512, 9, 2016 WL 3257826, Nev. SC No. 67731 {filed Tune 10,
112016) citing. Bruton v. United States, 391 U.S. 123 (1968).

The party seeking severance bears the burdeit of proof of prejudice and such a case must be - |

:‘ severed “9F there is u serious risk that [it] would compromise a specific trial fght of one of t;he':
1| defendants, or'prevent_the-jary. from makiitg a reliable judgment about guilty or innocence.” See Rimer |
|| ¥..State, 351 P.3d. 697, 711 (Nev. 2015), citing Maishall . State, 118 Nev. 642, 647 (2002) (quoting
Zafiro v. United States, 506 U.S. 534, 539'(1993)). Aniother way to state the law was also provided in

&mgg “To require -severance, the defendant must demonstrate that a joint tial would manifestly "
1] prejudicial. The simultaneous trial of the offenses. must render the trial fandamentally unfair, -and
:h_enc-e,._ result in the violation of due process.” See Rimer v. State, 351 P.3d 697, 710-11 (Nev. 2015), -

| citing Honeyeutt v. State, 118 Nev. 660 (2062_),- overruled on other grounds by Carter v. State; 121
1 Nev. 759, 7635 (2005).

IH. ANALYSIS

The case must be severed tnder Bruion. The State intends to introduce the: statements of a nén-

| test:iymg defendant Steven Turner, the codefendant in this case, against Clemon Hudson by the alias
f “Mar” that tend to implicate Hudson. Becaiise Hudson will not have the ability to.confront and cross-
: -exdmine Turner, his righis under the Confrontation Clause would be: violated by the intréduction of

| these statemenis. This would render the trial fundamentally uofair and result'in a violation of due

process. Therefore, the case must be severed.
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CONCLUSION Y

'Wegpray--that the defendants in this ¢ i '_e_ be .sﬁveréz

] -into-\igws separate cases.

CRAIG A, MUELLER, F8Q,
Nevada Bar No; 4703

~u
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, an employee of Mueller Hinds & . Associates, Chtd., certify that this document was served to

DATED this 23"

day of August, 2017. .

k? the following persotis or entities through the Wiznet e-service system;

3

G

oyee of Mueiieg}:kﬁds & Assocaates, C}:{TD
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PHILIP J. KOHN, PUBLIC DEFENDER

NEVADA BARNO. 0556 -
TEGAN C. MACHNICH, DEPUTY PUBLIC DEFENDER:
NEVADA BAR NO. 11642

PUBLIC DEFENDERS OFFICE

309 South Third Street, Suite 226

Las Vegas, Nevada 82155

Telephone: (702) 455-4685

Facsimile: (702) 455-5112

- Attornevs for Defendant

Electronically Filed

9M13/2017 2:58 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERIK OF THE cougﬁ

DISTRICT COURT
'CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
‘THE STATE.OF NEVADA, )
Plaintiff, ) CASE NO. C-15-309578-1
V. ) DEPT. NO. XVIII
_ _ ).
‘STEVEN TURNER, ) - _
) DATE: October 12, 2017
Defendant; ) TIME: 9:00 a.m.
)

JOINDPER TO CO-DEFENDANT CLEMON HUDSON'S MOTION TO SEVER

COMES NOW, the Defendant, STEVEN TURNER, by and through TEGAN C,

MACHNICH, Chief Deputy Public Défender and respectfully joins the Co-Defendant,

CLEMON HUDSON, by and through his attomey,; CRAIG MUELLER, and heréby adopts said

Motion as though fully set forth here in its entirety.
DATED this 12th day of September, 2017.
PHILIP J. KOHN

CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By:_ /s/Tegan C. Machnich

- TEGAN.C. MACHNICH, #11642
Chie‘f-D_e_puty Public Defender

Case Number: G-15-309578-1
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DECLARATION
‘TEGAN C. MACHNICH makes the following declaration:

1, Tam an attorney duly licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada; 1.am a Chief
Deputy Public Defender for the Clark County Public Defender’s: Office appointed to represent
Defendant Steven Tumer.in thie present matter;

2. Co-Defendants Steven Turner and Clemon Hudson both made ‘multiple statements

to police. Mr. Hudson’s statements are attached hereto has Exhibits A and B. Mr. Turner’s first

threg statements (relevant to this issue) are attached hereto as Exhibits C, D, and E:

3. While the Defendants’ statements arguably implicate themselves in a robbery-
type situdtion, both deny shooﬁng the weapon that allegedly caused sefious injury to the police
officer-in this case,

4, It is Mr. Turner’s belief that the State intends to use Mr. Hudson’s. statements at
trial. 1t is currently unknown whether Mr, Hudson will testify. The statements implicate Mr.
Turner.

3. The law greatly disfavors limiting instructions when co-defendants statements. are

used at trial, as this Court is well aware. See Ducksworth v, State, 114 Nev. 951, 953 (1998)

citing Bruton v. United States, 391 U.S. 123, 127-128 (1968).

6. Thus, Mr. Turner joins in Defendant Clemon Hudson’s Motion to Sever currently
set for heating on October 12, 2017,

7. I am more than 18 years of age.and am competent to testify as to the matters
stated herein. I am familiar with the procedural history of the case and the substantive
allegations made by The State of Nevada. | also have personal knowledge of the facts stated

herein or T have been informed of these facts and believe them to be true..

i
i
1
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I declare under penalty of petjury that the foregoing is true and correct. (NRS

EXECUTED this 12th day-of -'Scp_tcmbcr, 2017.

/siTegan C. Machnich
TEGAN C. MACHNICH
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CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE

T hereby certify that service of the above and forgoing MOTION was served via

clectronic e-filing tothe Clark County District Attorney’s Office at motionsi@clarkcountyda.com

oni this 13th ddy of September, 2017

By: /s/ Erin Prisbrey
An employee of the _
Clark County Public Defender’s Office
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C-15-309578-1 DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES October 12, 2017
C-15-309578-1 State of Nevada
VS
Steven Turner
October 12, 2017 09:00 AM Al Pending Motions
HEARD BY: Saitta, Nancy COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 11D

COURT CLERK: Castle, Alan
RECORDER:  Pags, Robin

REPORTER:

PARTIES PRESENT:

Public Defender Attorney for Defendant
Tedgan Machnich Attorney for Defendant
Michael Dickerson Attorney for Plaintiff
Steven Turner Defendant

State of Nevada Plaintiff

JOURNAL ENTRIES
Defendant’s Jainder to Co-Defertdant Clemon Hudson's Motion to-Sever ... Pre Trial Conference

Co-Defendant, Clemon Hudson present. Craig Mueller, Esq. present on behalf of Co-Defendant.

Arguments by counsel. Co-Defendant cites the Chartier case and circumstances in their pleadings.
Arguments by counsel regarding the-allegations and Defense's position that each Defendant will Have to
defend two theories of liability. State's epposition that the record can be sanitize for the sake of each
Defendant as to statements made by parties in contravention to a fair trial. Colloquy regarding alleged
facts and circumstances. COURT does Find this case to be distinguishable from the Chartier case. Count
has considered whether or not there is a substantial risk the Jury will use-factually incriminating
confession(s) of a non-testifying Defendant as evidence of guilt of his co-defendant; and, fundamental
unfairness at tfial. FURTHER, Court notes State's offer of cooperation, and DENIES Motion and Joinder

to Sever WITHOUT PREJUDICE; State will offer both counsel the opportunity to see the redacted version
the State intends to use at-trial. |F after review, Defense detérmines’ their client cannot be adequately

defended at trial, then Defense. may renew its motion. State to prepare an order consistent with the.
Court's ruling that both Defendants will have the opportunity 16 renew their motions. Court directed State
to provide its redacted version to Defense counsel NO LATER THAN 10/17/17 for review; and Defense to'
respond to State's rédactions NO LATER THAN 10/20/17. THIS COURT gives parties permission to
contact the Senior Judge Department for further consideration on these matters, if needed. Colloquy
regarding discovery requests. Mr. Pesci advised he just picked up this matter for trial and has instructed
his staff to provide requested discovery to both Defendants' counsel. Mr. Pesci clarified that the disk
réceived has been copied and will be provided to.opposing counsel. COURT ORDERED, oral request to
‘compel discovery is GRANTED: Mr. Pesci acknowledged they State will comply. Court placed the burden
on both counsel to ensure that discovery production is satisfactorily complied with.

Upon Court's inquiry, State advised the case has been subpoenaed and anticipates ready. Defense:
advised, they will have a betteridea once redactions have been received, but otheiwise anficipate ready.
COURT ORDERED, proposed Jury Instruction be prepared and provided by calendar call date. Defense
Proposed.Jury Instructions to be.submitted directly to chambers.

Printed Date: 10/18/2017 Page 1of2 Minutes Date: October 12, 2017
Prepared by: Alan Castle
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Printed Date: 10/18/2017 Page. 2 of 2 Minutes Date: October 12, 2017
Prepared by: Alan Castle
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C-15-3095781 DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Feloriy/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES

November 16, 2017

C-15-309578-1 State of Nevada
VS
Steven Turher
November 16, 2017 09:00AM  Status Check: Status of Case - Redactions

HEARD BY:
COURT CLERK:
RECORDER:
REPORTER:
PARTIES PRESENT:
Fublic Defender
Leah-C Beverly

Bailus, Mark B
Castle, Alan

COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 11D

Page, Robin

Attorney for Defendant .
Attorney for Plaintiff

Geordan G. Logan Atterney for Defendant
Steven Turner Defendant
State of Nevada’ Plaintiff

JOURNAL. ENTRIES

Co-Defendant and his counsel also present. Mr. Logan present on behalf of Ms. Machnich for Defendant.
Court advised this court is more inclined to go with Defendants' redactions than State's. Court further
advised, this court will be submitting its own more extensive version for consideration, noting Mr. Mueller
is-of the opinion the transcript cannot be redacted. Court DENIED Defendant Hudson's renewed motion to
sever Defendants Without Prejudice. Court advised parties that if the Court's redactions are not.
satisfactory to parties and following further arguments, Defense may renew its motion to seéver trials. Mr.
Mueller tabled Defendant Hudson's objection pending Couns presentation of its redactions. COQURT

ORDERED, status check continued.
CUSTODY

CONTINUED TO:
11/30M17 9:00 a.m.

Printed Date: 11/21/2017 Page 1 of 1 Minutes Date:

Prepared by: Alan Castle.

November 16, 2017
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C-15-309578-1 DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Felony/Gross Misdemeanor COURT MINUTES December 14, 2017
C-15-309578-1 State of Nevada
AL

Steven Turner

Dacember 14, 2017 09:00 AM  Status Conference - Redactions

HEARD BY: Bailus, Mark B COURTROOM: RJC Courtroom 11D
COURT CLERK: Castle, Alan

RECORDER: Page, Robin

REPORTER:

PARTIES PRESENT:

Leah C Beverly Attorney for Plaintiff
Public Defender Attorney for Defendant
State of Nevada Plaintiff

Steven Turner Defendant

Tegan Machnich Attorney for Defendant

JOURNAL ENTRIES

Co-Defendant and.counsel also present. Upon Court's inquiry, State submitted on Court's redactions. Ms.
‘Machnich stated based on the redactions, Defendant Turner has no challenges at this time. Mr. Plummer

‘stated Mr. Mueller will likely be fi ling a renewed motion to sever. Court so-noted.

CUSTODY

Printed Date: 12/19/2017 Pa:ge 10f1 Minutes Date:
Prepared by: Alan Castle

December 14, 2017
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NIBIN HIT DISPOSITION FORM

This form is-a follow-up to the NIBIN Hit Notification previously sent to you-and available in OnBase, Actarding to-
Departrnent Policy 5/206.18, this form is required to- be filled out and returned to the Hit Notification Detail within 60
days. of the distribiition date of this form. This forfn should be submitted stating the action o be taken regarding
each listed association.

Assigned Detective Name/P#/Agency: Det. M. O'Halloran NEAC

A NIBIN Hit Notification report was generated listinig: possible associations bebween the evidence and/or test fired
_cartridge cases from the foliowing event numbers:

EVENT NUMBER | ftem Description
One “Blazer” .40 S&W cartridge case
One “Blazer” .40 S&W cartridge case

For'a conclusive Identifi ntion to be made, the above listed hits must be- eonf”rmed by a mICrDS{:OpIc
comparison of the actual cartridge cases.
In reference to the NIBIN hit for the above event number(s) the investigative action is:
7. This association needs to be confirmed and a suppiemental request for this confirmation has
been submitted to the Forensic Laboratory through Property Connect..

It Thns associatlon does not need to I:e conf‘ rmad at this time.

Information above provided by (Name{ P#Y: M. OHafloran P# 9626
Date form returned to Hit Notification Detaii: 7/20/2016

This form will be retained as part.of tiie Forensic Laboratory’s case record and s subject to Information Disclosure Requests,

Inwestigative Sgt, Approval and Date: M, Ruiz P# 6794 07/20/16

*Completed forms can be emalled to HitNotificationDetail@lvmpd.com

Bocument Number: 7023
“Tssyed By: F EM-EATM
Atevision Date: 24015

Page1 of1 LVMPD Forensic Labaratery e 5605 W Badura Aye Suite- 120B = Las Vegas, MNY'88118
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Electronically Filed
5/8/2018 12:40 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
OPPS &“_A M

STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

LEAH BEVERLY

Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #12556

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

-Vs- CASENO: C-15-309578-1

STEVEN TURNER, :
2717636 DEPT NO: XVIII

Defendant.

STATE’S OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL

DATE OF HEARING: May 15,2018
TIME OF HEARING: 9:00 AM

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County
District Attorney, through LEAH BEVERLY, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and hereby
submits the attached Points and Authorities in State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion for
New Trial.

*This Opposition is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if
deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
STATEMENT OF THE CASE

An Indictment was filed on September 23, 2015 charging Steven Turner and Clemon
Hudson (Hereinafter “Defendant Turner” and “Defendant Hudson™) as follows: Count 1:
Conspiracy to Commit Burglary; Count 2: Attempt Burglary While in Possession of Firearm
or Other Deadly Weapon; Counts 3-4: Attempt Murder with Use of a Deadly Weapon; Count
5: Battery with Use of a Deadly Weapon Resulting in Substantial Bodily Harm and Count 6:
Discharging a Firearm at or Into Occupied Structure. On September 28, 2017, Defendant
Hudson filed a Motion to Sever. Defendant Turner filed a Joinder to that Motion on September
13, 2017. The State filed its Opposition on September 18, 2017. The Court denied both
Defendant’s Motions on October 12, 2017. Subsequently, the State, Defense Counsel and the
Court went through a series of redactions in regards to the various statements. On December
14, 2017, the Court submitted its redactions of Defendant Hudson’s statements to Defendant’s
Turner’s attorneys. At that time, Defendant Turner indicated that based on the Court’s
redactions, Turner had no challenge to the statements of Hudson. Jury trial was held beginning
April 16, 2018. On April 27, 2018, the jury returned a verdict of guilty on all counts (except
count 6 which had previously been dismissed by the State prior to trial). It should be noted
that at no time during the trial did Defendant Turner object to the statements of Defendant
Hudson when they were introduced by the State. Sentencing is currently set for June 21, 2018.
The instant Motion for New Trial was filed on May 4, 2018. The State’s Opposition follows:

ARGUMENT

In the instant Motion, it appears that Defendant first claims that he is entitled to a new
trial based on the denial of the Motion to Sever. Additionally, Defendant claims that he is
entitled to a new trial because there may be a “newly discovered” NIBIN report. Both claims
are without merit and should be denied.
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APPLICABLE LAW:

NRS 176.515 states:

1. The court may grant a new trial to a defendant if required as a
matter of law or on the ground of newly discovered evidence.

2. Iftrial was by the court without a jury, the court may vacate the
judgment if entered, take additional testimony and direct the
entry of a new judgment.

3. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 176.09187, a motion for a
new trial based on the ground of newly discovered evidence may
be made only within 2 years after the verdict or finding of guilt.

4. A motion for a new trial based on any other grounds must be
made within 7 days after the verdict or finding of guilt or within
such further time as the court may fix during the 7-day period.

Motion to Sever:

It appears Defendant qlaims he is entitled to a new trial because the Court denied his
Motion to Sever. In the instant Motion, Defendant Turner merely recites arguments he already
made during argument on the Motion to Sever on October 12, 2017 and in subsequent
discussions on redactions. He then recites case law already argued in the written Motion to
Sever. Denial of a Motion to Sever is not a basis for a new trial. This is an issue to be raised
on appeal and is not within the limited scope of exceptions allowed for by NRS 176.515.
Furthermore, it should be noted that Defendant had no challenges to the Court’s redactions of
Hudson’s statements nor did Defendant Turner object at all to the introduction of the redacted
statements of Hudson during trial. Defendant Turner does not get a new trial now simply |
because he disagrees with the Court’s prior ruling. As this is an issue for appeal, the instant
Motion should be denied.

Discovery in the Case:

Defendant next claims that he is entitled to a new trial based on “newly discovered”
evidence. It appears that Defendant claims there may be some NIBIN report in existence which
is a report used to compare shell casings from a firearm or casings found at a scene to other
shell casings in a database. Defendant claims that some NIBIN report “may be exculpatory”
as it may relate the Berretta handgun found in this case. However, Defendant acknowledges

3

W:A20152015R133\07\1 5Fl3307-OPPM—(OPPglgI 6UAL)-001 .DOCX




O 0 3 N W B W N

l\)[\)l\)l\)l\)l\)t\)[\)l\)»—ar—tr—lr—-\»—a»—lr—-v—-p—av—d
OO\]O\U’I-PUJ[\)'—‘O\OOO\]O\UI-P-WNHO

that the Berretta handgun was never fired in this case. Defendant’s claim is without merit and
should be denied.

As an initial matter, there is nothing in Defendant’s Motion that alludes to any type of
“newly discovered” evidence. In fact, the opposite is true. Defendant and Defense Counsel

have had the firearms report including all comparisons made to any shell casings found at the

scene and all firearms examined for years. In Burton v. State, the Nevada Supreme Court held:
“To satisfy NRS 175.535, there must be a factual showing that the newly discovered evidence
could not have been obtained through due diligence prior to trial, and that it would have the
probable effect of a different verdict on retrial.” Burton v. State, 84 Nev. 191, 437 P.2d 861
(1968). In McLemore v. State, 94 Nev. 237 (1978), the Nevada Supreme Court held

This Court has required that such HNIF newly discovered
evidence comply with additional criteria. The evidence must be
(1) newly discovered, (2) material to movant's defense, (3) such
that it could not with reasonable diligence have been discovered
and produced for the trial, (4) not cumulative, (5) such as to render
a different result probable upon retrial, (6) that it does not attempt
only to contradict a former witness [***4] or impeach or discredit
him, wunless the witness to be impeached is so
important [*240] that a different result must follow, and (7) that
these facts be shown by the best evidence the case admits.

See also Sanborn v. State, 107 Nev. 399 (1991). Counsel has made nothmg other than

a bare bones statement that any NIBIN report would be exculpatory in any manner to
Defendant Turner. In fact as correctly stated by defense counsel, the purpose of an NIBIN
form is to compare unknown cartridges at a scene to a data base of similar cartridges or
firearms to see if there is a match. As noted by defense counsel and the witnesses at trial, the
Beretta handgun was never fired. As such, there would be no casings at the scene to compare
to the Beretta or any other handgun.

In fact, there were only 15 cartridge cases found at the scene plus wadding and shells.
Of these 15 casings fired, 12 of them returned to Officer Greco-Smith’s gun. Three of them
were similar in comparison to the SKS rifle at the scene. The shotgun pellets and wads were

also compared examined. No other casings were recovered. The one bullet recovered was
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similar to the bullets fired by Officer Greco-Smith. All of this was testified to at trial by
firearms expert Anya Lester. Furthermore, all of this information was contained in the firearms
report prepared by Anya Lester and provided to Defendant months and months in advance of
trial. See Exhibit 1.

Finally, Defendant Turner cannot request a new trial based on newly discovered
evidence when the evidence does not exist. In this case there is no NIBIN report. The State
confirmed with one of the lead case agents in this case that the report does not exist. The reason
for that is that all three guns recovered at the scene, Officer Greco-Smith’s weapon, all
cartridge cases and wads, bullets and fragments were submitted to the actual forensic
laboratory for testing. As noted on Defendant’s own exhibit F to his Motion, even if there is
an NIBIN hit, it still has to be confirmed by actual forensic testing. That testing was already
done in this case. As such, even if an NIBIN report existed, it would be cumulative. Defendant
has made no showing that any non-existent NIBIN report would render any different result
upon retrial. Defendant has failed to meet any of the requirements under McLemore for a new

trial based on “newly discovered” evidence. As such, this claim should be denied.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing points and authorities, the State respectfully requests that
Defendant’s Motion for New Trial be denied.

DATED this 8th day of May, 2018.

Respectfully submitted,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY /s/ LEAH BEVERLY
LEAH BEVERLY
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #12556
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CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

I hereby certify that service of State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion for New Trial,
was made this 8th day of May, 2018, by Electronic Filing to:

DEPUTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
E-Mail: pdclerk@clarkcountynv.gov

BY:/s/J. MOSLEY
Secretary of the District Attorney’s Otfice
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Distribution Date: December 29, 2015

Agency: LVMPD

Location: Homicide & Sex Crimes Bureau
Primary Case #: 150904-0516

Incident: ols

Requester: Craig Jex

Lab Case #: 15-09456.3

V ‘Steven Tkurner'(Sus‘pect)
Clemon Hudson (Suspect)

Subject(s):

The following evidence was examined and results are reported below.

Lab item# | Impound Pkg# | Impound Item # Description

1 008177-1 1 One Yugo Model 59/66 7.62 x 39mm caliber semiautomatic rifle, serial
number: M478852

2 008177-1 1A One magazine (fits and functions in Lab ltem 1)

3 008177-1 1B Five "Tulammo" 7.62 x 39mm cartridges
One "71 93" 7.62 x 39mm cartridge

4 008177-1 1C One "71 93" 7.62 x 39mm cartridge

5 008177-2 2 One Mossberg Mode! 500A 12 Gauge pump shotgun, serial number:
P081210

6 008177-2 2A Four unfired "WINCHESTER" 12 Gauge shotshells
(disassembled one for exam)

7 008177-2 2B One fired "WINCHESTER" 12 Gauge shotshell

8 008177-2 2C One metal fragment

9 008177-3 3 One Beretta Model 950BS .25 Auto caliber semiautomatic pistol, serial
number: BR21889V

10 008177-3 3A One magazine (fits and functions in Lab ltem 9)

11 008177-3 3B Eight "FC" .25 Auto cartridges

12 008177-3 3C One "FC" .25 Auto cartrldge

13 008177-4 4 One magazine
14 008177-4 4A Five "Super-X" .22 Long Rifle cartridges
22 005158-2 2 One Glock Model 17 9 x 19 (9mm Luger) caliber semiautomatic pistol,

serial number: MGS941 equipped with a Streamlight TLR-1 flashlight

23 005158-2 3 One magazine (fits and functions in Lab ltem 22)
24 005158-3 4 One "SPEER" 9mm Luger +P cartridge

25 005158-3 5 Seventeen "SPEER" 9mm Luger +P cartridges
26 005158-4 6 One magazine (fits and functions in Lab ltem 22)
27 005158-4 7 One magazine (fits and functions in Lab ltem 22)
28 005158-5 8 Seventeen "SPEER" 9mm Luger +P cartridges
29 005158-5 9 Seventeen "SPEER" 9mm Luger +P cartridges
30 014402-4 8 One "SPEER" 9mm Luger +P cartridge case

31 0144024 9 One "SPEER" 9mm Luger +P cartridge case

32 014402-4 10 One "SPEER" 9mm Luger +P cartridge case

33 014402-4 11 One "SPEER" 8mm Luger +P cartridge case

34 014402-4 12 One "SPEER" 9mm Luger +P cartridge case

35 014402-4 13 One "SPEER" 9mm Luger +P cartridge case

36 014402-5 14 One "SPEER" 9mm Luger +P cartridge case

37 014402-5 15 One "SPEER" Smm Luger +P cartridge case

38 014402-5 16 One "SPEER" 9mm Luger +P cartridge case

39 014402-5 17 One "SPEER" 9mm Luger +P cartridge case

40 014402-5 18 One "SPEER" 9mm Luger +P cartridge case

41 014402-5 19 One "SPEER" 9mm Luger +P cartridge case

42 014402-6 20 Shot pellets

43 014402-6 21 Shot pellets

44 014402-6 22 One partial wad

45 014402-6 23 One partial wad

46 014402-7 24 One bullet

47 014402-8 25 One "Tulammo" 7.62 x 39mm cartridge case

48 014402-8 26 One "Tulammo” 7.62 x 39mm cartridge case

Page 1
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Primary Event #: 150904-0516
Lab Case #: 15-09456.3

Lab Item # | Impound Pkg# | impound lfem # Description
49 014402-8 27 One "Tulammo" 7.62 x 39mm cartridge case
50 014402-9 28 One metal fragment
51 014402-9 29 One metal fragment
52 014402-9 30 One metal fragment
53 014402-9 31 One metal fragment
54 014402-13 35 One metal fragment

Results and Conclusions:

Firearms and Magazines

The Yugo rifle was examined, test fired and found to be operational with no noted malfunctions. This rifle has a barrel length of
approximately 24 % inches, an overall length of approximately 42 % inches and a trigger pull of 4 % - 5 % pounds. The submitted
magazine (Lab ltem 2) has a capacity of twenty-one cartridges.

The Mossberg shotgun was examined and was noted to have an area of damage, consistent with a bullet impact, to the fore-end
and magazine tube. This damage rendered the shotgun inoperable and unable to be test fired.

The Beretta pistol was examined, test fired and found to be operational with no noted malfunctions. This pistol has a barrel length of
approximately 2 %/ inches, an overall length of approximately 4 % inches and a trigger pull of 5 ¥% - 5 % pounds. The submitted
magazine (Lab Item 10) has a capacity of 8 cartridges.

The Glock pistol was examined, test fired and found to be operational with no noted malfunctions. This pistol has a barre! length of
approximately 4 % inches, an overall length of approximately 8 inches and a trigger pull of 6 ¥ - 6 % pounds. The submitted
magazines (Lab ltems 23, 26 & 27) each have a capacity of 17 cartridges.

The magazine (Lab item 13) has a capacity of 8 .22 Long Rifle cartridges and does not fit or function in any of the firearms
submitted in this case.

Comparisons

The evidence cartridge cases and bullets were examined and microscopically compared to the test fired cartridge cases and bullets
with the following results:

The twelve cartridge cases (Lab Items 30 - 41) were identified as having been fired by the submitted Glock pistol.

» The three cartridge cases (Lab Items 47 — 49) shared a similar general overall appearance and some limited corresponding
microscopic information with the test fired cartridge cases from the submitted Yugo rifle; however, insufficient microscopic
detail precludes a conclusive identification to this rifle.

e The bullet (Lab ttem 46) shared similar general rifling characteristics with the test fired bullets from the submitted Glock
pistol; however, damage to this item precludes any further comparisons. This bullet was not fired by any of the other
firearms submitted in this case.

* The metal fragments (Lab Items 8, 50 — 54) bear no markings of value for microscopic comparisons.

Shot and Wads

* The submitted shot pellets (Lab ltems 42 and 43) were determined to be consistent in size, weight and composition with
number 6 steel shot.

The submitted wad pieces (Lab ltem 44 & 45) were determined to be consistent in size, appearance and composition with
the wad contained in the disassembled evidence shotshell (Lab Item 6).

NIBIN

Representative images of a test fired cartridge case from the Yugo rifle and the Beretta pistol were entered into and searched in the
National Integrated Ballistic Information Network (NIBIN). Notifications will be made if there are any associations to these entries.

The fired shotshell (Lab ltem 7) did not meet the minimum acceptance criteria (breechface and firing pin marks) for entry into the
NIBIN.

Page 2 of 3
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Primary Event # 150904-0516
Lab Case #: 15-09456.3

The evidence is returned to secure storage.

-—This report does not constitute the entire case file. The case file may be comprised of worksheets, images, analytical data and
other documents.—

Hoy Loy

Anya Lester, #13771 12/23/2015
Forensic Scientist Il

- END OF REPORT -
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Electronically Filed
6/14/2018 3:03 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU,
PHILIP J. KOHN, PUBLIC DEFENDER &,‘M_A »ﬁ.""“"""

NEVADA BAR NO. 0556

309 South Third Street, Suite 226
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

(702) 455-4685

Attorney for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
)
Plaintiff, ) CASE NO. C-15-309578-1
)
V. ) DEPT. NO. XVIII
)
STEVEN TURNER, ) DATE: JUNE 19, 2018
) TIME: 9:00 A.M.
Defendant. )
)

SUPPLEMENTAL BRIEFING FOR MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL
COMES NOW, the Defendant, STEVEN TURNER, by and through ASHLEY L.
SISOLAK, Deputy Public Defender and hereby file this Supplemental Briefing For Motion For
New Trial.
This Motion is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached Declaration of Counsel, and oral argument at the time set for hearing this Motion.
DATED this 14th day of June, 2018.

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By: /s/ ASHLEY L. SISOLAK
ASHLEY L. SISOLAK, #13958
Deputy Public Defender
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DECLARATION

ASHLEY L. SISOLAK makes the following declaration:

1. I am an attorney duly licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada; I am

the Deputy Public Defender assigned to represent the Defendant in the instant matter, and I am

familiar with the facts and circumstances of this case.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.
53.045).

EXECUTED this 14th day of June, 2018.

/s/Ashley L. Sisolak
ASHLEY L. SISOLAK
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ARGUMENT

Purpose and Relevance of the NIBIN report

The National Integrated Ballistics Identification Network (NIBIN) is designed to assist law
enforcement in tying firearms and shell casings from known cases to cold or unknown cases. It is
managed by the ATF and provided as a resource to agencies across the country and has been
utilized since 1990 to assist law enforcement.

The state misunderstands the relevance of the NIBIN report as it relates to this case. The
Defense does not contend that the state cannot tie the firearms in question to THIS case; the
Defense contends that we cannot know if the firearms are tied to any OTHER cases, and therefore
if the firearms can be tied any other individuals.

Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department’s Policy on NIBIN

The state contended that it is Metro’s NEW policy that casings and firearms be entered into
NIBIN. While it may be accurate that this policy is addressed in the most recent Metro policy
manual, the state’s assertion is plainly inaccurate.

The policy manual implemented in August of 2015, approximately thirty-five days prior to
the incident in question, addresses NIBIN and its uses extensively. (Attached, in pertinent part, as
Exhibit A) In fact, the Metro policy manual plainly states that our police department has been
participating in NIBIN since 2002 based on many successes resulting in numerous “hits.” The
policy states that, “For the database to be successful, it is important that both cartridge cases from
crime scenes and test fired cartridges be entered.” The policy further lays out what is “appropriate”
for NIBIN, as follows:

e C(Cartridge Cases
o Recovered from crime scenes such as homicides, robberies, gun assaults
o Which may be associated with a series of robberies or shootings
o Recovered from incidents (such as drive-by shootings), vehicles, residences or
person that may be tied to criminal activities
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¢ Crime Related Guns
o Collected during crime investigations that either automatically or semi-
automatically eject fired cartridge cases (This includes semiautomatic, fully
automatic, pump action, lever action, bolt action, and any other firearms that
eject fired cartridge cases)
o Recovered from suspected criminals such as ex-felons, suspected gang members
or drug dealers
Possibly used in a series of shootings, robberies, etc.
Collected in search warrants or recovered under suspicious circumstances which
are thought to be associated with criminal activity
NOTE: revolvers are not appropriate for NIBIN entry.
e Evidence/Safekeeping Guns
o In the possession of suspected criminals such as ex-felon, a suspected gang
member or drug deal
o Where the owner is unable to produce the gun registration/concealed weapon
permit, proof of Nevada residency, or legitimate identification
Which are brandished during a domestic disturbance
Guns which, based on officer discretion, may be associated with criminal
activity

Most alarming to the Defense is that outside of ANY of the other factors listed above, the
officers on the scene of the incident believed at their own discretion that entry of these firearms
into NIBIN was appropriate and warranted, yet the Defense was never made aware if any link to
these firearms could be made or not.

Proof of NIBIN compliance during the time period in question

In the Defense’s initial motion we referenced another case in which a NIBIN hit was found,
the state retorted that the existence of NIBIN was a consequence of the fact that the Metro’s
current requirements are stringent on the issue of shell cases and that this was a newly filed case.
However, it is important to note that while the case referenced is, in fact, a new case, the incident
linked to the firearm in the example case was a shooting that occurred on September 1, 2015, three

days prior to the instant event. This proves that, outside of the statements made in the policy
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manual, Metro was in fact using the database at the time this event occurred in September 2015.
(Redacted reports attached as Exhibit B)

Delay in entering of the data could have also been a concern on behalf of the state, however
it is proven that any delay would have been overcome prior to the trial in the instant matter. It is
important to remember that there were multiple settings in this case and that the time between the
event and that of trial was extensive, amounting to more than two years.

State’s assertions

The state alleged in their opposition that no such NIBIN report exists. It is also in the
state’s opposition, specifically page two of exhibit one, where it is expressly stated that entries
were made into NIBIN for both the rifle and the handgun in this case. Remember, the handgun in
this case was never fired during this event; the issue at hand is that the handgun could have been
fired in any other event leading us to potentially more suspects in this matter through the
association to the gun itself. (Please see LVMPD Forensic Laboratory Report attached as Exhibit
C, specifically pg 2)

It logically follows that if a search is run through any database and there is a match a report
is generated. Common sense dictates that if there is a means by which a positive result occurs there
must be a means by which a negative result also occurs. For example if you search on Amazon for
a product to purchase there is either a listing to purchase that product or a notification that noting
satisfies your query. The same concept applies here, if there is a report generated from a “hit” in
the database there must also be a non-“hit” notification. At the very least, someone entered the data
and saw that there were, or were not results.

Prejudice
The Defense has asserted from the beginning that there were more than two people present

at the scene the day of this incident. The states failure to disclose potential NIBIN results relating
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to this case created an inability to prove the handgun was not tied to another crime or another
individual, where if present, leaves doubt as to who could have been present at the scene of this
event.

The existence or nonexistence of a “hit” in NIBIN materially affects the defense that was
used at trial. Had the Defense known that the gun on scene could affirmatively NOT be linked to
any other incident the Defense may have chosen a different strategy by which to defend Mr.

Turner.

DATED this 14th day of June, 2018.

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By: /s/ ASHLEY L. SISOLAK
ASHLEY L. SISOLAK, #13958
Deputy Public Defender
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CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE
A COPY of the above and foregoing was sent via electronic to the District

Attorney’s Office at Motions@clarkcountyda.com on this 14th day of June, 2018.

By: /s/ KONIE BALDWIN
An employee of Clark County Public
Defender’s Office
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INSTRUCTION NO. 2

If, in these instructions, any rule, direction or idea is repeated or stated in different
ways, no emphasis thereon is intended by me and none may be inferred by you. For that
reason, you are not to single out any certain sentence or any individual point or instruction
and ignore the others, but you are to consider all the instructions as a whole and regard each
in the light of all the others.,

The order in which the instructions are given has no significance as to their relative

importance.

Docket 76465 Document 2019-(5:66
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INSTRUCTION NO. '2

An Amended Indictment is but a formal method of accusing a person of a crime and
is not of itself any evidence of his guilt.

In this case, it is charged in an Amended Indictment that on or about the 4" day of
September, 2015, the Defendants coxﬁmittéd the offenses of CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT
BURGLARY, ATTEMPT BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A FIREARM OR
DEADLY WEAPON, ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON, AND
BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON RESULTING IN SUBSTANTIAL
BODILY HARM, within the County of Clark, State of Nevada, contrary to the form, force
and effect of statutes in such cases made and provided, and against the peace and dignity of
the State of Nevada as follows:

COUNT 1 - CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT BURGLARY

did willfully and unlawfully conspire with each other and/or an unknown co-

conspirator to commit a burglary, by the aefendants committing the acts as set forth in Count

2, said acts being incorporated by this reference as though fully set forth herein.

COUNT 2 - ATTEMPT BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A FIREARM OR
DEADLY WEAPON ' °

did then and there wilifully, unlawfully, and feloniously attempt to enter, with intent
to commit larceny and/or a felony, to-wit: robbery, that certain residence occupied by ERIC
CLARKSON and/or WILL.OUGHBY GRIMALDI, located at 6729 Oveja Circle, Las
Vegas, Clark County, Neyada, saic'i.Defe_ndants did possess and/or gain 'possession of a
firecarm during the 'corlnm.ission of tﬁe criﬁ‘ne and/or before leaving the structure, by the
Defendants being criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal
liability, to-wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the
commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by counseling,
encouraging, hiring, commanding, inducing and/or otherwise procuring the other to commit
the crime; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy_to commit this crime, with the intent that this

¢ .
' )

crime be committed, Defendants aiding' or -abetting and/or conspiring in the following
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manner, to wit: by entering into a course of conduct whereby one or more of the defendants
and/or unknown co-conspirator went to the residence of ERIC CLARKSON and/or
WILLOUGHBY GRIMALDI to steal marijuana, repeatedly knocked on the front door of the
residence, rang the doorbell and poun'ded on the security door to the residence, one or more
of the defendants and/or unknown co-conspirators ran into the backyard of the residence,
thereafter Defendant STEVEN TURNER shot at Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department
Officers J. ROBERTSON and M. GRECO-SMITH with an SKS rifle, striking Officer J.
ROBERTSON in the right leg, Defendant CLEMON HUDSON fired one round from a
shotgun toward said officers, striking the doorway of the residence, Defendants acting in
concert throughout. - I B
COUNT 3 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did willfully, unlawfljlly, feloniously and with malice aforethought attempt to kil J.
ROBERTSON, Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department, a human being, with use of a
deadly weapon, to-wit: a firearm, by shootmg at the body of the said J. ROBERTSON; the
Defendants being criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal
liability, to-wit: (1) by dlrectly commlttmg this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the
commissien of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by counseling,
encouraging, hiring, commanding, inducing and{or otherwise procuring the other to commit
the crime; and/or (3) pursuant to a consp‘iraey; to commit this crime, with the intent that this
crime be committed, Defendants aiding or abetting and/or ‘conspiring in the following
manner, to wit: by entering into a course of conduct ;vhereby one or more of the defendants
and/or unknown co-cpﬁspifaters reij'eatealy knocked on the front door of the residence of
ERIC CLARKSON and/or WiLLOUGHBY GRIMALDI, rang the doorbell and pounded on
the security door to the residence, one of mere of the defendants and/or unknown co-
conspirators ran into the backyard of the residence, thereafter Defendant STEVEN TURNER
shot at Las Vegas Metropolltan Pollce Department Officers J. ROBERTSON and M.
GREGO-SMITH wnth a SKS rifle, strlkmg Officer J. ROBERTSON in the right leg,
Defendant CLEMON HUDSON fired one round from a shotgun toward said officers,
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striking the doorway of the residence, Defendants acting in concert throughout.
COUNT 4 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did willfully, unlawfully, fe]o;'}iously and with malice aforethought attempt to kill M.
GREGO-SMITH, Las Vegas .Metropolitan Police Department, a human being, with use of a
deadly weapon, to-wit: a ﬁre"ﬁrm, by shooting at the body of the said M. GREGO-SMITH,;
the Defendants being criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of
criminal liability, to-wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or
abetting in the commission of this ér_ime, ,with the intent that this crime be committed, by
counseling, encouraging, hiring, comménding, inducing and/or otherwise procuring the other
to commit the crime; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the
intent that this crime be committed, Defendants aiding or abetting and/or conspiring in the
following manner, to wit: by entering into a course of conduct whereby one or more of the
defendants and/or unknown co-conspirators repeatedly knocked on the front door of the
residence of ERIC CLARKSON and/or WILLOUGHBY GRIMAILDI, rang the doorbeli and
pounded on the security door to the I‘CSldenCC one of more of the defendants and/or
unknown co-conspirators ralg into the backyard of the residence, thereafter Defendant
STEVEN TURNER shot at Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department Officers J.
ROBERTSON and M. GREGO-SMITH with a SKS rifle, striking Officer J. ROBERTSON
in the right leg, Defendant CL'EMQN HUDSON fired one round from a shotgun toward said

officers, striking the doorway of the résid;c‘:r;'ce, Defendants acting in concert throughout.

COUNT 5 - BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON RESULTING IN
SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM

did willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously use force or violence upon the person of
another, to-wit: J, ROBERTSO'N, Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department, with use of a
deadly weapon, to-wit: a firearm, by shooting into the body of the said J. ROBERTSON with
said firearm, resulting in substar_ltﬁal .-bf(:)di‘]y harm to J. ROBERTSON, Las Vegas
Metropolitan Police Departme;ﬁt, by,t'he' Déféndants being criminally liable under one or

more of the following principles of criminal liability, to-wit: (1) by directly committing this

569




O e -1 N B W N —

MNOOMNOR RN ORNORNORNN RN e e e e e et ek pemt pem s

crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commiseion of this crime, with the intent that
this crime be committed, by equnseling,:en‘couraging, hiring, commanding, inducing and/or
otherwise procuring the other to commit the crime; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to
commit this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, Defendants aiding or
abetting and/or conspiring in the following manner, to wit: by entering into a course of
conduct whereby one or more of the defendants and/or unknown co-conspirators repeatedly
knocked on the front door of the residence of ERIC CLARKSON and/or WILLOUGHBY
GRIMALDI, rang the doorbell and_aﬁound‘ed' on the security door to the residence, one of
more of the defendants antl_)or unknown. eo-conspirators ran into the backyard of the
residence, thereafter Defendant STEVEN TURNER shot at Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
Department Officers J]. ROBERTSON and M. GREGO-SMITH with a SKS rifle, striking
Officer J. ROBERTSON in the right leg, Defendant CLEMON HUDSON. fired one round
from a shotgun toward said ofﬁcere, striking the doorway of the residence, Defendants
acting in concert throughout. |

It is the duty of the jury to apply the rules of law contained in these instructions to the
facts of the case and determine whether or not each Defendant is guilty of one or more of the
offenses charged. , -

Each charge and the evidence pertaining to it should be considered separately. The
fact that you may find e1ther defendant gu11ty or not guilty as to one of the offenses charged

should not control your verdlct as to any other Defendant or offense charged.
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INSTRUCTION NO. l

In this case, the State hle}s cha:réed Eﬁédefendants under three (3} theories of liability:
(1) By directly com‘rrllitting the crimes charged,;
(2) By aiding or abetting in the commission of the crimes charged; or
(3) Pursuant to a conspiracyl to commit the crimes charged.
If you do not find, béydnd a reasonabl;z douBt, that a defendant is guilty under any one of
these theories for a specific count charged, you must find that defendant not guilty of that
count. In other words, whether each defepdant is guilty or not guilty of each individual count

charged in this case is a separate determination for you to make.
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INSTRUCTION NO.

/

2

To prove that a defendant directly committed a crime, the State must prove, beyond a

reasonable doubt, each element of a charged offense.
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INSTRUCTION NO. (¢

A conspiracy Is an agreement between two or more persons for an untawful purpose.
To be guilty of conspiracy, a defendant must intend to commit, or to aid in the commission
of, the specific crime agreed to. The crime is the agreement to do something unlawful; it
does not matter whether it was successful or not.

A person who knowingly does any act to further the object of a conspiracy, or
otherwise participates therein, is criminally liable as a conspirator. However, mere
knowledge or approval of, or acqﬁiescence in, the object and purpose of a conspiracy
without an agreement to cooperate in achieving such object or purpose does not make one a
party to conspiracy. Conspiracy is seldom susceptible of direct proof and is usually
established by inference from the conduct 6f the parties. In particular, a conspiracy may be
supported by a coordinated series of acts, in furtherance of the underlying offense, sufficient
to infer the existence of an agreement.

A conspiracy to commit a crime does not end upon the completion of the crime. The
conspiracy continues until the co-con§pirat0rs have successfully gotten away and concealed

the crime.
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INSTRUCTION NO. Z

It is not necessary in proving a conspiracy to show a meeting of the alleged
conspirators or the making of an express or formal agreement. The formation and existence
of a conspiracy may be inferred from all circumstances tending to show the commeon intent
and may be proved in the same way as any other fact may be proved, either by direct
testimony of the fact or by circumstantial evidence, or by both direct and circumstantial

evidence.
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INSTRUCTION NO. %
Evidence that a person was in the company or associated with one or more other
persons alleged or proven to Have been members of a conspiracy is not, in itself, sufficient to
prove that such person was a member of the alleged conspiracy. However, you are
instructed that presence, companionship, and conduct before, during and after the offense are

circumstances from which one's participation in the criminal intent may be inferred.
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INSTRUCTION NO. i
A conspirator can withdraw from a conspiracy by (1) disavowing the unlawful goal of
the conspiracy; (2) affirmatively acting to defeat the purpose of the conspiracy; or (3) taking
definite, decisive and positive steps to disassociate himself from the conspiracy. However,
he remains liable for actions taken before withdrawing from the conspiracy.
The State has the burden to prove beyond a reasonable doubt that the Defendant did

not withdraw from the conspiracy.
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INSTRUCTIONNO. [ D

A defendant aids and abets the commission of a crime if he knowingly and with
criminal intent aids, promotes, encourages or instigates by act or advice, or by act and

advice, the commission of such crime with the intention that the crime be committed.

Every person concerned in the commission of a crime, whether he directly commits
the act constituting the offense or aids or abets in its commission is guilty as a principal.
Nevada law does not distinguish between an aider or abettor to a crime and an actual

perpetrator of a crime; both are equally culpable.

The State is not required to prove precisely which defendant actually committed the

crime and which defendant aided and abetted.
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INSTRUCTION NO,_{|

Mere presence at the scene 6f a crime ‘or knowledge that a crime is being committed
is not sufficient to establish that a defendant is guilty of an offense, unless you find beyond
reasonable doubt that the defendant was a participant and not merely a knowing spectator.

However, the presence of a person at the scene of a crime and companionship with
another person engaged in the commission of the crime and a course of conduct before and
after the offense are circumstances which may be considered in determining whether such

person aided and abetted the commission of that crime.
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INSTRUCTION NO. _\Z
The elements of an attempt to commit a crime are:
1) the intent to commit the crime;
2) performance of some act towards it commission; and

3) failure to consummate its commission.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 12
Every person who, by day or night, enters any shop, warehouse, store or other
building, with the intent to commit Larceny, and/or Robbery, therein is guilty of Burglary.

Force or a “breaking” is not a necessary element of the crime.
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INSTRUCTION NO. |"\

Every person who commits the crime of Burglary, who has in his possession or gains

possession of any firearm at any time during the commission of the crime, at any time before
leaving the structure, or upon leaving the structure, is guilty of Burglary While in Possession
of a Firearm.

“Firearm” includes:

1. Any device desigﬁed to be used as a weapon from which a projectile may be
expelled through the barrel by the force of any explosion or other form of
combustion.

2. Any device from which a metallic projectile, including any ball bearing or pellet,
may be expelled by means of spring, gas, air or other force.

A firearm is a deadly weapon whether loaded or unloaded, operable or inoperable.
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A INSTRUCTIONNO. |2

Attempt murder is the performance of an act or acts which tend, but fail, to kill a
human being, when such acts are done with express malice, namely, with the deliberate
intention unlawfully to kill.

Express malice is that deliberate intention unlawfully to take away the life of a human

being, which is manifested by external circumstances capable of proof.
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INSTRUCTION NO. t lP

The intention to kill may be ascertained or deduced from the facts and circumstances

of the attempted killing, such as the use of a deadly weapon, the manner of its use, and the

attendant circumstances characterizing the act.
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INSTRUCTION NO. | l

A defendant’s state of mind does not require the presentation of direct evidence as it
existed during the commission of a crime. The jury may infer the existence of a particular

state of mind of a party from the circumstances disclosed by the evidence.
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INSTRUCTION NO. \‘L

In this case, the Defendants are accused of attempted murder under three theories of
liability. In order to find either Defendant guilty of attempted murder, the State must prove
beyond a reasonable doubt that:

(1) With the deliberate intention to unlawfully kill the victim, the Defendant

committed an act which tqnded, but failed, to kill the victim; or

(2) With the deliberate intention to unlawfully Kill the victim, the Defendant aided,

abetted, counseled, or encouraged another person to kill the victim and that other
person committed an act which tended, but failed, to kill the victim; or

(3) With the deliberate intention to unlawfully kill the victim, the Defendant

conspired with another person to kill the victim and that the other person

committed an act which tended, but failed, to kill the victim.
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INSTRUCTION NO. ]QS

Battery means any willful and unlawful use of force or violence upon another person.
As uvsed in this instruction, the word “willfully”, when applied to the intent with which an act
is done or omitted, implies simply a purpose or mere willingness to commit the act or to
make the omission in question. The word does not require in its meaning any intent to

violate law, or to injure another, or to acquire any advantage.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 2 E

You are instructed that if you find either defendant guilty of Battery, you must also
determine whether or not substantial bodily harm resulted.

If you find beyond a reasonable doubt that substantial bodily harm resulted in the
commission of such an offense, then you shall return the appropriate guilty verdict reflecting
“Resulting in Substantial Bodily Harm”.

If, however, you find that substantial bodily harm did not result in the commission of
such an offense, but you find that it was committed, then you shall return the appropriate
guilty verdict reflecting that substantial bodily harm did not result.

You must find a defendant not guilty of Battery, with or without resulting substantial
bodily harm, if the State fails to prove each element of the offense beyond a reasonable

doubt.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 2\

Substantial bodily harm means:

1. Bodily injury which creates a substantial risk of death or which causes serious,
permanent disfigurement or protracted loss or impairment of the function of any
bodily member or organ; or

2. Prolonged physical pain.

“Prolonged physical pain” encompasses some physical suffering or injury that lasts

longer than the pain immediately resulting from the wrongful act.
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instrRUCTION NO. D

You are instructed that if you find the defendant guilty of Attempt Murder or Battery,
you must also determine whether or not a deadly weapon was used in the commission of this
crime.

If you find beyond a reasonable doubt that a deadly weapon was used in the
commission of such an offense, then you shall return the appropriate guilty verdict reflecting
“With Use of a Deadly Weapon™.

If, however, you find that a deadly weapon was not used in the commission of such an
offense, but you find that it was committed, then you shall return the appropriate guilty
verdict reflecting that a deadly weapon was not used.

You must find a defendant not guilty of Attempt Murder or Battery, with or without
use of a deadly weapon, if the State fails to prove each element of the offense beyond a

reasonable doubt
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INSTRUCTION NO. 6
A “deadly weapon” is either: 1) any instrument, which, if used in the ordinary
manner contemplated by its design and construction, will or is likely to cause substantial
bodily harm or death; or 2) any weapon, device, instrument, material or substance which,
under the circumstances in which it is used, attempted to be used or threatened to be used, is
readily capable of causing substantial bodily harm or death.

A firearm is a deadly weapon.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 2 S

If more than one person commits a crime, and one of them uses a deadly weapon in
the commission of that crime, each may be convicted of using the deadly weapon even
though he did not personally himself use the weapon if you find that he aided and abetted or
conspired to commit the offense.

An unarmed offender “uses” a deadly weapon when the unarmed offender is liable for
the offense under aiding and abetting or conspirator liability, another person liable for the
offense is armed with and uses a deadly weapon in the commission of the offense, and the

unarmed offender had knowledge of the use of the deadly weapon.
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INSTRUCTION NO. _2¥2

Attempt Burglary and Attempt Murder are specific intent crimes. A defendant cannot
be liable under conspiracy and/or aiding and abetting theory for Attempt Burglary or
Attempt Murder for acts committed by a co-conspirator, unless the individual Defendant also
had the requisite specific intent.

Battery is a general intent crime. As such, a defendant may be liable under
conspiracy theory for Battery for acts chm‘itted by a co-conspirator which are one of the
probable and natural consequences of the.object of the conspiracy.

Counts 1-4 of the Indictment are specific intent crimes. Count 5 of the Indictment is a

general intent crime,
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INSTRUCTION NO. Z Q

Specific intent is the intent 0 ac'éémplish the precise act which the law prohibits.
General intent is the intent to do that which the law prohibits. It is not necessary for the
prosecution to prove that the defendant intended the precise harm or the precise result which
eventuated if a crime is a general intent crime. Counts 1-4 of the Indictment are specific

intent crimes.
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INSTRUCTION NO. ZS

You are instructed that the doctrine of transferred intent provides that where a person
unlawfully attempts to kill a person and, by mistake or inadvertence during such attempt,
commits a Battery With Use of a Deadly Weapon against another person, the law
nevertheless holds the assailant responsible for his felonious intent, merely transferring its

direction from the original object to the person battered.
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INSTRUCTION NO. %
If you believe that at tﬁe time of the shooting in this case a defendant intended to kill
any person, or to aid and abet his co-defendant with the deliberate intention to unlawfully
kill any person, it is of no legal consequence that he or his co-defendant mistakenly injured a

different person. His intent to kill transfers to the person actually harmed.
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INSTRUCTION NO. - ag

During an aftack upon a group, a defendant’s intent to kill need not be directed at any
one individual. Tt is enough if the intent to kill is directed at the group. The State 1s not

required to prove that a Defendant intended to kill a specific person in the group.
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INSTRUCTION NO. ,%D

Justifiable battery is the battery of a human being, which does not result in death
and is necessary for self-defense against one who manifestly intends to commit a felonyj
by using violence or surprise, or when there is reasonable ground to apprehend a designl
on the part of the person injured to do some great personal injury to the person inflicting

the injury.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 9\

The battery of another person in self-defense is justified and not unlawful when the
person who does the battery actually and reasonably believes:

1. That there is imminent danger that the assailant will either batter him or cause him

great bodily injury; and

2. That it is absolutely necessary under the circumstances for him to use in self-defense
force or means that might cause the death of the other person, for the purpose of avoiding

death or great bodily injury to himself.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 3%

A bare fear of death or great bodily injury is not sufficient to justify a battery. To justify
battery of another in self-defense, the circumstances must be sufficient to excite the fears
of a reasonable person placed in a similar situation. The person battering must act under
the influence of those fears alone and not in revenge.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 56

The right of self-defense is not available to an original aggressor, that is a person who has
sought a quarrel with the design to force a deadly issue and thus through his fraud,
contrivance or fault, to create a real or apparent necessity for making a felonious assault.

However, where a person, without voluntarily seeking, provoking, inviting, or willingly

engaging in a difficulty of his own free will, is attacked by an assailant, he has the right to
stand his ground and need not retreat when faced with the threat of deadly force.
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INSTRUCTION NO. ﬁ‘*

Actual danger is not necessary to justify a battery in self-defense. A person has a right to
defend from apparent danger to the same extent as he would from actual danger. The
person battering is justified if:

1. He is confronted by the appearance of imminent danger which arouses in his mind an
honest belief and fear that he is about to be killed or suffer great bodily injury; and

2. He acts solely upon these appearances and his fear and actual beliefs; and

3. A reasonable person in a similar situation would believe himself to be in like danger.

The battery is justified even if it develops afterward that the person killing was mistaken
about the extent of the danger.
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INSTRUCTION No, D2

If evidence of self-defense is present, the State must prove beyond a reasonable doubt
that the defendant did not act in self-defense. If you find that the State has failed to prove
beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant did not act in self-defense, you must find
the defendant not guilty.
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INSTRUCTION NO. fzf

Although your verdict must be unanimous as to the charge, you do not have to agree
on the theory of liability. Therefore, even if you cannot agree on whether the facts establish
that the defendant is liable as a principal, aider and abettor, or co-conspirator, so long as all
of you agree that the evidence establishes the defendant’s guilt of the offense, you shall find
him guilty of the offense.

However, if you do not find, beyond a reasonable doubt, that a defendant is guilty
under any theory of liability for a charged offense, you must find that defendant not guilty of

that charge.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 5 l

In this case, you must decide separately whether each of the two defendants is guilty
or not guilty. If you cannot agree upon a verdict as to all the defendants, but do agree upon a
verdict as to one of them, you must render a verdict as to the one upon which you agree.

It is your duty to give separate, personal consideration to the case of each individual
defendant. When you do so, you should analyze what the evidence shows with respect to
that individual, leaving out of consideration entirely any evidence admitted solely against
some other defendant or defendants. Each defendant is entitled to have his case determined
from his own acts and statements and the other evidence in the case which may be applicable

to him.
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INSTRUCTION NO. ?2 2‘2

The flight of a person immediately after the commission of a crime, or after he is
accused of a crime, is not sufficient in itself to establish his guilt, but is a fact which, if
proved, may be considered by you in light of all other proved facts in deciding the question
of his guilt or innocence. The essence of flight embodies the idea of deliberately going away
with consciousness of guilt and for the purpose of avoiding apprehension or prosecution.
Whether or not evidence of flight shows a consciousness of guilt and the significance to be

attached to such a circumstance are matters for your deliberation.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 5?&

To constitute the crime charged, there must exist a union or joint operation of an act
forbidden by law and an intent to do the act.

The intent with which an act is done is shown by the facts and circumstances
surrounding the case.

Do not confuse intent with motive. Motive is what prompts a person to act. Intent
refers only to the state of mind with which the act is done.

Motive is not an element of the crime charged and the State is not required to prove a
motive on the part of the Defendant in order to convict. However, you may consider

evidence of motive or lack of motive as a circumstance in the case.
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INSTRUCTION NO. ‘;{D

The Defendant is presumed innocent unless the contrary is proved. This presumption
places upon the State the burden of proving beyond a reasonable doubt every element of the
crime charged and that the Defendant is the person who committed the offense.

A reasonable doubt is one based on reason. It is not mere possible doubt but is such a
doubt as would govern or control a person in the more weighty affairs of life. If the minds of
the jurors, after the entire comparison and consideration of all the evidence, are in such a
condition that they can say they feel an abiding conviction of the truth of the charge, there is
not a reasonable doubt. Doubt to be reasonable must be actual, not mere possibility or
speculation.

If you have a reasonable doubt as to the guilt of the Defendant, he is entitled to a

verdict of not guilty.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 4 \

It is a constitutional right of a defendant in a criminal trial that he may not be
compelled to testify. Thus, the decision as to whether he should testify is left to the
defendant on the advice and counsel of his attorney. You must not draw any inference of
guilt from the fact that he does not testify, nor should this fact be discussed by you or enter

into your deliberations in any way.
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INSTRUCTION NO. f& J

You are here to determine if each Defendant is guilty or not guilty based on the
evidence in the case. You are not called upon to return a verdict as to the guilt of any other
person. So, if the evidence in the case convinces you beyond a reasonable doubt of the guilt
of the Defendant, you should so find, even though you may believe one or more persons are

also guilty.
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INSTRUCTION No,_ 4%

The evidence which you are to consider in this case consists of the testimony of the
witnesses, the exhibits, and any facts admitted or agreed to by counsel.

There are two types of evidence; direct and circumstantial. Direct evidence is the
testimony of a person who claims to have personal knowledge of the commission of the
crime which has been charged, such as an eyewitness. Circumstantial evidence is the proof
of a chain of facts and circumstances which tend to show whether the Defendant is guilty or
not guilty. The law makes no distinction between the weight to be given either direct or
circumstantial evidence. Therefore, all of the evidence in the case, including the
circumstantial evidence, should be considered by you in arriving at your verdict.

Statements, arguments and opinions of counsel are not evidence in the case,
However, if the attorneys stipulate to the existence of a fact, you must accept the stipulation
as evidence and regard that fact as proved.

You must n,dt speculate to be true any insinuations suggested by a question asked a
witness. A questibn is not evidence and may be considered only as it supplies meaning to
the answer. ‘. | ..

You must disregard all:ly evidlenc‘el td which an objection was sustained by the court
and any evidence ordered stric;l{en by the court.

Anything you may have seen or heard outside the courtroom is not evidence and must

also be disregarded.
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. INSTRUCTION NO. 1'\

The credibility or believability of a witness should be determined by his manner upon

the stand, his relationship to the parties, his fears, motives, interests or feelings, his

opportunity to have observed the matter to which he testified, the reasonableness of his
statements and the strength or weakness of his recollections.

If you believe that a witness has lied about any material fact in the case, you may

disregard the entire testimony of that witness or any portion of his testimony which is not

proved by other evidence.,
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INSTRUCTION NO,_ 4+

A witness who has special knowledge, skill, experience, training or education in a
particular science, profession or occupation is an expert witness. An expert witness may
give his opinion as to any matter in which he is skilled.

You should consider such expert opinion and weigh the reasons, if any, given for it.
You are not bound, however, by such an opinion. Give it the weight to which you deem it
entitled, whether that be great or slight, and you may reject it, if, in your judgment, the

reasons given for it are unsound.
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INSTRUCTION NO. f{ \_-E

Although you are to consider only the evidence in the case in reaching a verdict, you
must bring to the consideration of the evidence your everyday common sense and judgment
as reasonable men and women. Thus, you are not limited solely to what you see and hear as
the witnesses testify. You may draw reasonable inferences from the evidence which you feel
are justified in the light of common experience, keeping in mind that such inferences should
not be based on speculation or guess.

A verdict may never be influenced by sympathy, prejudice or public opinion. Your
decision should be the product of sincere judgment and sound discretion in accordance with

these rules of law.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 4
In your deliberation you may not discuss or consider the subject of punishment, as
that is a matter which lies solely with the court. Your duty is confined to the determination

of whether the State has proven that the Defendant is guilty beyond a reasonable doubt.
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INSTRUCTION NO. L( g

When you retire to consider your verdict, you must select one of your number to act
as foreperson who will preside over your deliberation and will be your spokesperson here in
court,

During your deliberation, you will have all the exhibits which were admitted into
evidence, these written instructions and forms of verdict which have been prepared for your
convenience.

Your verdict must be unanimous. As soon as you have agreed upon a verdict, have it

signed and dated by your foreperson and then return with it to this room.
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JERABEK, JOSEPH - LVMPD P#13352

JEX, CRAIG - LVMPD P#5597

JOHNSON, G. - LVMPD P#10208

JONES, RICHARD - LVMPD P#8876

KABBANI, JOSEPH - LVMPD P#15078

KELLER, THOMAS - LVMPD P#12750

KERNS, ERIC - LVMPD P#4331

KOWALSKI, JOHN - LVMPD P#13399

KRUEGER, MICHAEL - LVMPD P#13512

KRYLO, JAMES - LVMPD P#5945 (or designee) - He is expected to testify regarding
the collection, comparison and analysis of firearms, ammunitions, ballistics and toolmark
evidence as it relates to this case.

KUNZ, PAUL - LVMPD P#10047

KYGER, KYLE - LVMPD P#13430

LANDERS, JEREMY - LVMPD P#8073

LEAMAN, VIRGIL - LVMPD P#9628

LEDOGAR, JAMES - LVMPD P#7411

LEE 111, BERNARD - LVMPD P#9072

LESTER, ANYA “SANKO” - LVMPD P#13771 (or designee):
FIREARMS/TOOLMARK EXAMINER with the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department.
She is an expert in the field of firearm and toolmark comparisons and is expected to testify
thereto.

LEVASSEUR, BRETT - LVMPD P#14163

LINDBERG, ERIK - LVMPD P#14824

LINDSEY-THAYER, JOHN - LVMPD P#9171

LIPINSKI, JONATHAN - LVMPD P#15004

MAAS, STEVEN - LVMPD P#13015

MADLAND, MICHAEL - LVMPD P#9978
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MARIN, JASON - LVMPD P#15026
MARLOW, MATTHEW - LVMPD P#6204
MARQUEZ, ALEX - LVMPD P#6240
MARSHALL, LUCAS - LVMPD P#13755
MARTINE, DARREN - LVMPD P#4751
MCCARTHY, MATHEW - LVMPD P#4431
MCHALE, SHANNON - LVMPD P#4750
MCLAUGHLIN, RANDAL - LVMPD P#4170
MCMAMHILL, KELLY - LVMPD P#5307
MCMAMHILL, KEVIN - LVMPD P#3948
MCMURTRY, TRAVIS - LVMPD P#8375
MCPHAIL, RANDALL - LVMPD P#3326
MECKLER, KRISTEN - LVMPD P#14402
MELWAK, JOHN - LVMPD P#8060
MILLER, MONA - LVMPD P#8378
MITCHELL, DREXEL - LVMPD P#643
MOSES, MARC - LVMPD P#13637

MQOSS, JOHN - LVMPD P#9212

MOYER, JASON - LVMPD P#7905
NELSON, R. - LVMPD P#14002
NEVILLE, PATRICK - LVMPD P#2949
NIEVES, GEORGE - LVMPD P#13213
NOGLE, KENNETH - LVMPD P#8051
NOLAN, MICHAEL - LVMPD P#8794
O’CONNOR, MATTHEW - LVMPD P#14817
O’NEILL, TIMOTHY - LVMPD P#6067
ORTEGA, EDWARD - LVMPD P#6747
OSCAR, STEVEN - LVMPD P#14325
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OVERSON, CORD - LVMPD P#6035
OWENS, JAMES - LVMPD P#3409
PANNULLO, JOSEPH — LVMPD P#5455
PARRISH, STEPHAN - LVMPD P#12899
PATTON, JOSEPH - LVMPD P#8289
PAZOS, EDUARDO - LVMPD P#6817
PELLETIER, JOHN - LVMPD P#6433
PLUMMER, ROBERT - LVMPD P#4042
POULSEN, JOHN - LVMPD P#9023
PRALL, JEFFREY - LVMPD P#8714
QUILES, ANDRE - LVMPD P#7433
QUINN, PETER - LVMPD P#4377

RACE, KYLE - LVMPD P#9196

RALYEA, CHARLES - LVMPD P#13357
RAVELO, ERIC - LVMPD P#6538
REDMANN, KATHRYN - LVMPD P#6478
RENFER, EDWARD - LVMPD P#13122
ROBERTSON, JEREMY — LVMPD P#7626
RODRIGUEZ, MICHAEL - LVMPD P#12717
ROGERS, JESSICA - LVMPD P#13525
ROSE, DANNY - LVMPD P#9830

ROSE, MATTHEW - LVMPD P#13114
ROWBERRY, JOSHUA - LVMPD P#13894
ROWE, MATTHEW - LVMPD P#13114
ROYBAL, JESSE - LVMPD P#7523
RUMERY, FRANK - LVMPD P#5817
RUSSO, LOUIS — LVMPD P#14737
RYNDAK, ERIC - LVMPD P#13245
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SCHMITT, RUSSEL - LVMPD P#14000
SCHULTZ, GREGORY - LVMPD P#4132
SCHUMAKER, STEPHEN - LVMPD P#9076
SCOTT, JJEFFREY - LVMPD P#9618
SHANNON, JR., GILBERT - LVMPD P#4111
SHARK, ANDREW - LVMPD P#14815
SHATRAW, BRANDON - LVMPD P#7304
SHEAHAN, JOHN - LVMPD P#3989
SINK, JAMES - LVMPD P#8757
SKENANDORE, STEVEN - LVMPD P#13341
SMINK JR., JEFFREY - LVMPD P#6556
SMITH, JEFFREY - LVMPD P#8177
SMITH, JOSEPH - LVMPD P#13218
SOKOLOWSKI, ERIC - LVMPD P#14190
STEPHENS, EBONY — LVMPD P#6650
STODDARD, DAVID - LVMPD P#7419
TOMAINO, DANIEL - LVMPD P#8278
TOMPKINS, SCOTT - LVMPD P#13223
TRUAX, MARIANNE - LVMPD P#13752
TURNER, STEVEN - ID #2717636 — CCDC
UMC TRAUMA DOCTORS - Will testify as a medical expert and to his/her
observations, treatment, diagnosis and prognosis of the injuries sustained by the victim Officer
Jeremy Robertson on September 9, 2015.
VALLE, ELVIN-RON - LVMPD P#12932
VANCE, JEREMY - LVMPD P#9004
VAUGHN, TERRENCE - LVMPD P#8417
VELICESCU, JAMES - LVMPD P#8410
VIDAL, LUIS - LVMPD P#14802
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VIGIL, CODY - LVMPD P#14100
VILLAGRANA, Officer - LVMPD P#8426
VIRAY, PAUL-MICHAEL - LVMPD P#9981
WALKER, DARRIN - LVMPD p#8533
WALLACE, MARK A. - 6913 Acorns Ct., LV, NV 89145
WALT, MARK - LVMPD P#9828
WATKINS, GREGORY - LVMPD P#5471
WATTS, DAVID - LVMPD P#8463
WHEATLEY, DAVID - LVMPD P#5298
WOOLARD, BRYAN - LVMPD P#7558
WOOSNAM, JOHN - LVMPD P#6236
WRIGHT, RONALD - LVMPD P#7560

These witnesses are in addition to those witnesses endorsed on the Information or

Indictment and any other witness for which a separate Notice of Witnesses and/or Expert

Witnesses has been filed.

The substance of each expert witness’ testimony and copy of all reports made by or at

the direction of the expert witness has been provided in discovery.

I
I
I

A copy of each expert witness’ curriculum vitae, if available, is attached hereto.

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY /s LEAH BEVERLY
LEAH BEVERLY
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #12556

10
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| certify that on the 4th day of April, 2018, | e-mailed a copy of the foregoing State’s

Third Supplemental Notice of Witnesses and/or Expert Witnesses, to:

BY:

DEPUTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
pdclerk@clarkcountynv.gov

CRAIG MUELLER, ESQ.
cmueller@muellerhinds.com

/sl J. MOSLEY
Secretary for the District Attorney’s Office

11

W:\2015\2015F\133\07\15F13307—SLOW—(3RDssSOOZ.DOCX



mailto:pdclerk@clarkcountynv.gov
mailto:cmueller@muellerhinds.com

© 0 N o o B~ wWw NP

S T N T N L T T R N e e T = T T T e e e
0o ~N o OB W N P O © 0 ~N o o b~ W N Rk O

NOTC

PHILIP J. KOHN, PUBLIC DEFENDER

NEVADA BAR NO. 0556

ASHLEY L. SISOLAK, DEPUTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
NEVADA BAR NO. 13958

PUBLIC DEFENDERS OFFICE

309 South Third Street, Suite 226

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

Telephone: (702) 455-4685

Facsimile: (702) 455-5112

Attorneys for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
V.
STEVEN TURNER,
Defendant,

N N N N N N N N N

Electronically Filed
4/9/2018 4:32 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLER? OF THE COUE :I

CASE NO. C-15-309578-1
DEPT. NO. XVIII

DEFENDANT’S NOTICE OF WITNESSES, PURSUANT TO NRS 174.234

TO: CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY:

You, and each of you, will please take notice that the Defendant, STEVEN TURNER, in

addition to any and all witnesses noticed by the State of Nevada and/or Defendant Clemon Hudson,

STEVEN TURNER intends to call the following witness in his case in chief:

Gayland Seaberry, Investigator C/O Public Defender’s Office

Toni A. Worthman, Investigator C/O Public Defender’s Office

Bruce McAllister, Investigator C/O Public Defender’s Office

Custodian of Records Animal Foundation, 655 North Mojave Rd. Las Vegas NV 89101

Custodian of Records Converse Factory Store, 875 S. Grand Central Pkwy #2179 Las Vegas

NV 89106

DATED this 9" day of April, 2018.
PHILIP J. KOHN

CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By: /s/ Ashley L. Sisolak

Ashley L. Sisolak, #13958

Deputy Public Defender

Case Number: C-15-309578-1

556




© 0o N o o B~ W N

NN NN N N N NN R B R R Rl )l |l
o N o 0 B~ O N P O © 0O N o Ol M W N L O

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE

| hereby certify that service of the above and forgoing MOTION was served via electronic e-

filing to the Clark County District Attorney’s Office at motions@clarkcountyda.com on this 9™ day

of April, 2018.

By: _ /s/Roxana A Valladares

An employee of the
Clark County Public Defender’s Office

Case Name:  Steven TUrner
Case No.: C-15-309578-1
Dept. No.: District Court, Department XV 11|
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AIND
STEVEN B. WOLFSON FILED IN OPEN coyRy
Clark County District Attorney STEVEND. GRIERSON
Nevada Bar #001565 CLERK OF THE COURT
LEAH BEVERLY

Chief DeBputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #012556

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff, CASENO: C-15-309578-1/2
-vs- DEPT NO: XVIII

STEVEN TURNER, #2717636
CLEMON HUDSON, #7025101

AMENDED
Defendant(s). INDICTMENT
STATE OF NEVADA
sS.
COUNTY OF CLARK

The Defendant(s) above named, STEVEN TURNER, CLEMON HUDSON, accused
by the Clark County Grand Jury of the crime(s) of CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT
BURGLARY (Gross Misdemeanor - NRS 205.060, 199.480 - NOC 50445); ATTEMPT
BURGLARY~ 'WII*IILE IN POSSESSION OF A FIREARM OR DEADLY WEAPON
(Category C Felony - NRS 205.060.4 - NOC 50443); ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF
A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony - NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.330, 193.165 -
NOC 50031) and BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON RESULTING IN
SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM (Category B Felony - NRS 200.481 - NOC 50226),
committed at and within the County of Clark, State of Nevada, on or about the 4th day of

September, 2015, as follows:

/1
¢ 16-309578 -1
1 AIND

Amended Indiciment

i
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" COUNT 1 - CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT BURGLARY
did willfully and unlawfully conspire with each other and/or an unknown co-
conspirator to commit a burglary, by the defendants committing the acts as set forth in Count

2, said acts being incorporated by this reference as though fully set forth herein.
COUNT 2 - ATTEMPT BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION OF A FIREARM OR

DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously attempt to enter, with intent
to commit larceny and/or a felony, to-wit: robbery, that certain residence occupied by ERIC
CLARKSON and/or WILLOUGHBY GRIMALDI, located at 6_729 Oveja Circle, Las Vegas,
Clark County, Nevada, said Defendants did possess and/or gain possession of a firearm during
the commission of the crime and/or before leaving the structure, by the Defendants being
criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal liability, to-wit: (1)
by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this
crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by counseling, encouraging, hiring,
commanding, inducing and/or otherwise procuring the other to commit the crime; and/or (3)
pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed,
Defendants aiding or abetting and/or conspiring in the following manner, to wit: by entering
into a course of conduct whereby one or more of the defendants and/or unknown co-

conspirator went to the residence of ERIC CLARKSON and/or WILLOUGHBY GRIMALDI

to steal marijuana, repeatedly knocked on the front door of the residence, rang the doorbell
and pounded on the security door to the residence, one or more of the defendants and/or
unknown co-conspirators ran into the backyard of the residence, thereafter Defendant
STEVEN TURNER shot at Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department Officers J.
ROBERTSON and M. GRECO-SMITH with an SKS rifle, striking Officer J. ROBERTSON
in the right leg, Defendant CLEMON HUDSON fired one round from a shotgun toward said
officers, striking the doorway of the residence, Defendants acting in concert throughout.

"

"
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CdeNT 3 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did willfully, unlawfully, feloniously and with malice aforethought attempt to kill J.
ROBERTSON, Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department, a human being, with use of a
deadly weapon, to-wit: a firearm, by shooting at the body of the said J. ROBERTSON; the
Defendants being criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of criminal
liability, to-wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2) by aiding or abetting in the
commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by counseling,
encouraging, hiring, commanding, inducing and/or otherwise procuring the other to commit
the crime; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that this
crime be committed, Defendants aiding or abetting and/or conspiring in the following manner,
to wit: by entering into a course of conduct whereby one or more of the defendants and/or
unknown co-conspirators repeatedly knocked on the front door of the residence of ERIC
CLARKSON and/or WILLOUGHBY GRIMALDI, rang the doorbell and pounded on the
security door to the residence, one of more of the defendants and/or unknown co-conspirators
ran into the backyard of the residence, thereafter Defendant STEVEN TURNER shot at Las
Vegas Metropolitan Police Department Officers J. ROBERTSON and M. GREGO-SMITH
with an SKS rifle, striking Officer J. ROBERTSON in the right leg, Defendant CLEMON
HUDSON fired one round from a shotgun toward said officers, striking the doorway of the
residence, Defendants acting in concert throughout.
COUNT 4 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did wilifully, unlawfully, feloniously and with malice aforethought attempt to kill M.
GREGO-SMITH, Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department, a human being, with use of a
deadly weapon, to-wit: a firearm, by shooting at the body of the said M. GREGO-SMITH;
the Defendants being criminally liable under one or more of the following principles of
criminal liability, to-wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or (2} by aiding or abetting
in the commission of this ¢crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, by counseling,
encouraging, hiring, commanding, inducing and/or otherwise procuring the other to commit

the crime; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this crime, with the intent that this

WAZ01520LSRI3INOT 5F5¢60)-001 .DOCX
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" crime be committed, Defendants aiding or abetting and/or conspiring in the following manner,

to wit: by entering into a course of conduct whereby one or more of the defendants and/or
unknown co-conspirators repeatedly knocked on the front door of the residence of ERIC
CLARKSON and/or WILLOUGHBY GRIMALDI, rang the doorbell and pounded on the
security door to the residence, one of more of the defendants and/or unknown co-conspirators
ran into the backyard of the residence, thereafter Defendant STEVEN TURNER shot at Las
Vegas Metropolitan Police Department Officers J. ROBERTSON and M. GREGO-SMITH
with an SKS rifle, striking Officer J. ROBERTSON in the right leg, Defendant CLEMON
HUDSON fired one round from a shotgun toward said officers, striking the doorway of the

residence, Defendants acting in concert throughout.

COUNT 5 - BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON RESULTING IN
SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM

did willfully, unlawfully, and feloniously use force or violence upon the person of
another, to-wit: J. ROBERTSON, Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department, with use of a
deadly weapon, to-wit: a firearm, by shooting into the body of the said J. ROBERTSON with
said firearm, resulting in substantial bodily harm to J. ROBERTSON, Las Vegas Metropolitan
Police Department, by the Defendants being criminally liable under one or more of the
following principles of criminal liability, to-wit: (1) by directly committing this crime; and/or
(2) by aiding or abetting in the commission of this crime, with the intent that this crime be
committed, by counseling, encouraging, hiring, commanding, inducing and/or otherwise
procuring the other to commit the crime; and/or (3) pursuant to a conspiracy to commit this
crime, with the intent that this crime be committed, Defendants aiding or abetting and/or
conspiring in the following manner, to wit: by entering into a course of conduct whereby one
or more of the defendants and/or unknown co-conspirators repeatedly knocked on the front
door of the residence of ERIC CLARKSON and/or WILLOUGHBY GRIMALDI, rang the
doorbell and pounded on the security door to the residence, one of more of the defendants
and/or unknown co-conspirators ran into the backyard of the residence, thereafter Defendant

STEVEN TURNER shot at Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department Officers J.
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I ROBERTSON and M. GREGO-SMITH with an SKS rifle, striking Officer J. ROBERTSON
in the right leg, Defendant CLEMON HUDSON fired one round from a shotgun toward said
officers, striking the doorway of the residence, Defendants acting in concert throughout.

DATED this day of April, 2018,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney

Nevada Ba 00156é
BY —/C@

LEAH BEVERLY
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #012556

1SAGJ055A-B/15F13307A-B/jm/L2
LVMPD EV# 1509040516; 1508271259
(TKS8)
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VS
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RICKY BULLARD
CYNTHIA LENETT
BEATRIZ CRUZ
ROSA REYES
SUSAN PHILLIPS
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STATE OF NEVADA
VS
STEVEN TURNER

CLEMON HUDSON

FILED IN OPEN COURT
STEVEN D. GRIERSON
CLERK OF THE COURT

APR 27 2018
BY, A

ALAN PAUL CASTLE, DEPUTY
DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

A

CASE NO.: C-15-309578-1 & 2

DEPARTMENT 18

RICKY BULLARD
CYNTHIA LENETT
BEATRIZ CRUZ
ROSA REYES
SUSAN PHILLIPS
KRISTI FELDMAN
ERIC LIMBACHER
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1. PAMELA ADAMS

AMENDED JURY LIST

8. JASON WRIGHT

9. TAMIKO KEYES

10. ERIC GEISLER

11 JAMES ROY

12. LISA MILLER-ROCHE

ALTERNATES

2. JACQUELINE JOHNSON
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STEVEN D. GRIERSON

INST | P FILED IN OPEN COURT
: CLERK OF THE COURT

APR 27 2018
o By, Ol Do )
DISTRICT COURT ALAN PAUL CASTLE, SR, DEPUTY
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintiff, % CASENO: 309578
-vs- ) DEPT NO:  XVIII
STEVENTURNER |
~ Defendant. 3

INSTRUCTIONS TO THE JURY (INSTRUCTION NO. I)
MEMBERS OF THE JURY:

It is now my duty as judge to instruct you in the law that applies to this case. It is
your duty as jurors to follow these instructions and to apply the rules of law to the facts as
you find them from the evidence.

You must not be concerned with the wisdom of any rule of law stated in these
instructions. Regardless of any 0ﬁini0n yoﬁ may have as to what the law ought to be, it
would be a violation of your oath to base a verdict upon any other view of the law than that

given in the instructions of the Court.

. C-15-309578-1
INST
Instructions to the Jury

[T
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1368, 1370 (4th Cir. 1992)) (internal quotations omitted). The Nevada Supreme Court has
concluded that, “when there has been an objection to admissibility of a text message, see NRS
47.040(1)(a), the proponent of the evidence must explain the purpose for which the text message
is being offered and provide sufficient direct or circumstantial corroborating evidence of
authorship in order to authenticate the text message as a condition precedent to its admission.”
See id. at 849 (citing NRS 52.015(1), NRS 47.060; NRS 47.070). Specifically, the Rodriquez
Court held that the trial court’s admission of ten (10) text messages sent from a victim’s cell
phone, which was taken during the crime, was an abuse of discretion because the State could not
further authenticate the author of the texts. See id. at 849-50. Only two (2) text messages were
found to be properly authenticated by the State — the two sent during a time when the Defendant
was seen in the possession or the phone on a surveillance video recovered by the State. Id.

In this case, the State has not produced any evidence that Mr. Turner was the person who
sent the text messages. The number is not his (although he was in possession of a phone and
police have pulled phone records relating thereto — without locating anything associating these
messages with him), and Mr. Turner does not typically go by “Steve.” Notably, the complainant
did not even associate the messages with Mr. Turner until after seeing that a “Steven Turner”
was arrested in relation to the robbery.

Because the messages cannot be authenticated, they are devoid of probative value.
Further, they continue to be incredibly prejudicial to Mr. Turner, as their content includes stated
animosity towards the complaining witness in this case.

RELIEF REQUESTED

Based on the foregoing, Mr. Turner requests that the Court preclude the State and co-
defendant’s counsel from introducing the messages at trial.

DATED this 23rd day of February, 2018.

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By_ /s/Tegan C. Machnich
TEGAN C. MACHNICH, #11642
Chief Deputy Public Defender
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NOTICE OF MOTION

TO: CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY, Attorney for Plaintiff:

YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the foregoing MOTION IN LIMINE

will be heard on March 6, 2018, at 9:00 a.m. in District Court, Department X VIII.
DATED this 23rd day of February, 2018.

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By__/s/Tegan C. Machnich
TEGAN C. MACHNICH, #11642
Chief Deputy Public Defender

CERTICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE

I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing motion was served via e-mail to

the Clark County District Attorney’s Office at Motions@clarkcountyda.com on this 27" day of

February, 2018.

By /s/ Annie McMahan
Annie McMahan — Employee of the Clark County
Public Defender’s Office
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Electronically Filed
3/7/2018 1:12 PM
Steven D. Grierson

. CLERK OF THE COU,
oprs | b A

STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

LEAH BEVERLY

Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #12556

200 Lewis Ave

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2211
(702) 671-2600

Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
Plaintiff, 3 CASENO. C-15-309578-1
-vs- 3 DEPTNO. XVIII
STEVEN TURNER, 3
#2717636
Defendant. §
)

STATES OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S MOTION IN LIMINE

DATE OF HEARING: March 22, 2018
TIME OF HEARING: 9:00 AM

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, By STEVEN B. WOLFSON, District Attorney,
through LEAH BEVERLY, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and files this State’s Opposition
to Defendant’s Motion in Limine.

This Opposition is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if

deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.

I
1
I
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE:

An Indictment was filed on September 23, 2015 charging Steven Turner (hereinafter
“Defendant”) as follows: Count 1: Conspifacy to Commit Burglary; Count 2: Attempt
Burgléry While in Possession of Firearm or Deadly Weapon; Count 3-4: Attempt Murder with
Use of a Deadly Weapon; Count 5 :'Battery with Use of a Deadly Weapon Resulting in
Substantial Bodily Harm; and Count 6: Discharging Firearm At or Into "Occupied Structure,
Vehicle, Aircraft or Watercréft. Trial is currently set for April 16, 2018. Defendan;: filed the
instant Motion on February 27, 2018. The State’s Opposition follows:

STATEMENT OF FACTS:

On September 4, 2015, at approximately 3 :45AM, the Defendant and his co-defendant,
armed with multiple firearms, startled the victims awake in their home. The residents of the
home, Eric Clarkson and Willoughby Grimaldi, were sleeping when they heard suspicious
noises in their backyard. They observed two figures, who were later identified as the two
defendants, running across tﬁe backyard. The police were notified and dispatched and Officers
Robertson and Greco-Smith arrived to investigate. Officer Robertson spotted the co-
defendants in the backyard and began to open the back door when Defendant Turner fired
three rounds from an AK-47 rifle. One of the rounds hit Officer Robertson in the leg and
immediately after, Defendant Hudson fired a round at the officers from his shotgun, hitting
the doorway next to them. Officer Greco-Smith returned fire at Defendants Hudson and
Turner. Defendant Turner dropped his rifle and fled the scene while Hudson hid in the
backyard. A canine police dog from the K9 unit had to physically remove Defendant Hudson

" from where he was hiding because he would not respond to Officers when ordered to

surrender.

Officer Robertson was extracted from the residence and was transported to UMC
Trauma to be treated for his shattered right femur. He was taken into surgery where he required
a titanium rod and plates to be inserted into his broken femur. Defendant Turner was later
appréhended by police.

/1
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I. THE TEXT MESSAGES TO THE VICTIM ARE ADMISSIBLE

- In the instant case, Defendant claims that the State should be prevented from introducing
photos related to text messages sent from Defendant Turner to the victim Eric Clarkson shortly
before the crime in this case. Defendant claims that the text messages cannot be authenticated
and therefore are inadmissible. This claim is without merit and should be deﬁied.'

- NRS 48.025 states that “All relevant evidence is admissible.” In Rodriguez v. State, the

Nevada Supreme Court indicated:

Establishing the identity of the author of a text message through
the use of corroborating evidence is critical to satisfying the
authentication requirement for admissibility... Circumstantial
evidence corroborating the sender’s identity may include the
context or content of the messages themselves such as where the
messages contain factual information or references unique to the
parties involved...Other jurisdictions similarly have focused on
the sender’s identity and looked to the context and content of the
text messages for sufficient circumstantial evidence identifying
the sender....We note that once a text message is admitted into
evidence, the opponent may rebut its authentication, and it is for
the jury to decide whether the proponent sufficiently proved his
or her claims regarding the text message.

Rodriguez v. State, 128 Nev. 155 (2012).

In the instant case, identification is an issue. Defendant claims he had a friendship with
the Qictim Eric Clarkson. That is not entirely accurate. In fact, Defendant and Clarkson had a
sexual relationship where, prior to the instant crime, Defendant would come to Clarkson’s
home where they would engage in sexual acts. Several days before the instant crime, Clarkson
received text messages from Defendant on Saturday August 29, 2015. While, Defendant
claims the messageé cannot be authenticated, this is not accurate. While the messages did come
from a “text free” number not associated with a phone, victim Clarkson can authenticate the

messages based on the content of the messages and personal knowledge.

1
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Clarkson can testify that the messages indicate they are from “the black Steve”. Clarkson
will testify that he only knows one black Steve who would have his phone number- the
Defendant Steven Turner. Furthermore, the text messages state “I need you in my.life baby,
I’'m ready right now”. Clarkson will testify that he only knows one black Steve who would be
calling him “baby” or saying “I need you in my life” based on their prior sexual relationship.
As the text messages can be sﬁfﬁciently authenticated based on the content of the messages,

they should be admitted.

CONCLUSION

For the forgoing reasons, the State respectfully requests that this Court deny the Motion
in Limine.

DATED this 7th day of March, 2018.

| STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY /s/ LEAH BEVERLY

LEAH BEVERLY
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #0012556

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

I hereby certify that service of State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion in Limine,

was made this 7th day of March, 2018, by Electronic Filing to:

DEPUTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
E-Mail: pdclerk@clarkcountynv.gov

BY:/s/J. MOSLEY
Secretary of the District Attomey s Ofﬁce
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PR Electronically Filed
3/23/2018 9:45 AM
Steven D. Grierson

| : CLERK OF THE COU,
ExyT o - -

STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

LEAH BEVERLY

Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #12556

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

-Vs- ' CASENO.  C-15-309578-1/2

STEVEN TURNER, #2717636 '
CLEMON HUDSON, #7025101 DEPTNO.  XVIII

Defendants.

EX PARTE MOTION and ORDER
FOR RELEASE OF MEDICAL RECORDS

- COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County

‘District Attorney, through LEAH BEVERLY, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and moves this

Honorable Court for an Order Releasing evidence which includes protected health information
being held by UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER consisting of any and all medical records
for patient: STEVEN TURNER, DOB: 12/23/1990, concerning diagnosis, prognosis and/or

' treatment given or provided on or about 09/04/2015, to be released to a representative of the

DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S OFFICE for the purpose of prosecuting the above referenced case
charging the crimes of CONSPIRACY TO COMMIT BURGLARY (Grosquisdemeanor -
NRS 205.060, 199.480 - NOC 50445); ATTEMPT BURGLARY WHILE IN POSSESSION |
OF A FIREARM OR DEADLY WEAPON (Category C Felony - NRS 205.060.4 - NOC

W:\2015\2015R\133\07\15F13307-DEXMT-(TURNER)-001.DOCX

____Case Number: C-15-309578-1
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50443), ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony
- NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.330, 193.165 - NOC 50031); BATTERY WITH USE OF A
DEADLY WEAPON RESULTING IN SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM (Category B
Felony - NRS 200.481 - NOC 50226) and DISCHARGING FIREARM AT OR INTO
OCCUPIED STRUCTURE, VEHICLE, AIRCRAFT, OR WATERCRAFT (Category B
Felony - NRS 202.285 - NOC 51442).

Pursuant to 45CFR164.512(f), Movant represents that the information sought is
relevant and material to a legitimate law enforcement inquiry; that the request is specific and
limited in scope to the extent reasonably practicable in light of the purpose for which the
information is sought; and that de-identified information could not reasonably be used.

NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to 45CFR164.512(f), and GOOD CAUSE
APPEARING, UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER, shall release to a representative of the
DISTRICT ATTORNEY'S OFFICE, any and all medical records concerning diagnosis,
prognosis, and/or treatment of STEVEN TURNER, whose date of birth'is 12/23/1990, for the
time period 09/04/2015.

~ IT IS HEREBY ORDERED.

DATED this _ZZ-__ day of February, 2018. /
Marth (

DISTRIC GE

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
NEVADA BAR #001565

BY gm (2 ig&\;
o RLY

Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #12556

jm/L2
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Electronically Filed
4/4/2018 2:51 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU,
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STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
LEAH BEVERLY
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #12556
200 Lewis Avenue
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
XOZ) 671-2500

ttorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,

-Vs- CASE NO: (C-15-309578-1/2

STEVEN TURNER, #2717636 _
CLEMON HUDSON, #7025101 DEPTNO: XV

Defendants.

STATE’S THIRD SUPPLEMENTAL NOTICE OF WITNESSES AND/OR EXPERT
WITNESSES
[NRS 174.234]
TO: STEVEN TURNER and CLEMON HUDSON, Defendants; and

TO: DEPUdTY PUBLIC DEFENDER and CRAIG MUELLER, ESQ., Counsel of
Record:

YOU, AND EACH OF YOU, WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the STATE OF
NEVADA intends to call the following witnesses and/or expert witnesses in its case in chief:

*Indicates additional witnesses and/or modifications

ABDAL-KARIM, SHAKEEL - LVMPD P#13724

ADKISSON, JONATHAN - LVMPD P#14314

ADCOX, MICHAEL - LVMPD P#8416

AGUILOS, JOSEPH - LVMPD P#15042

ALBERSON JR., WILLIAM - LVMPD P#8562

ALSUP, TREVER - LVMPD P#5782

W:\2015\2015F\133\07\15F13307-SLOW-(3RD_SUPP)-002.DOCX
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ASHE JR., JAMES - LVMPD P#7302
BAKER, STEPHEN - LVMPD P#9136
BALDASSARRE, BENJAMIN - LVMPD P#13977
BARNETT, JOHN - LVMPD P#8733
BASILOTTA, EUGENIO - LVMPD P#8447
BASS JR., RICHARD - LVMPD P#6259
BATES, ANDRE - LVMPD P#6892

BECK, KEVIN J. - LVMPD P#9629

BELL, KENDALL - LVMPD P#6752

BELL, LEVAR - LVMPD P#13591

BELT, CHRISTIAN - LVMPD P#13694
BITSKO, JOSHUA - LVMPD P#6928
BONAGUIDI, JOSEPH - LVMPD P#7967
BORDEN, BRANDON - LVMPD P#7519
BOWERS, JEFFREY - LVMPD P#13419
BOWMAN, STUART - LVMPD P#10030
BRADSHAW, SARA - LVMPD P#4998
BRANDON, JOHN - LVMPD P#9631
BREWER, MICHAEL - LVMPD P#7426
BRICKER, ANTHONY - LVMPD P#6941
BROOKS, DAVID - LVMPD P#7947
BROWN, BOYD - LVMPD P#13080
BROWN, JAIR - LVMPD P#9182
BRUMAGHIN, ANTHONY — LVMPD P#13756
BUCHANAN, RUSSELL - LVMPD P#15094
BURNETT, ANDREW — LVMPD P#4907
BYRD, TRENT - LVMPD P#13958

CAINE, JASON - LVMPD P#6593

W:\2015\2015F\133\07\15F13307—SLOW—(3RDsutﬁOOZ.DOCX
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CALLEJA, ANTHONY - LVMPD P#9185
CARREON, ALBERT - LVMPD P#9025
CARRILLO, SAMUAL - LVMPD P#7165

CHIO, NATHAN - LVMPD P#5109

CHURCHES, JAMES - LVMPD P#6184
CLARKSON, ERIC - 6729 Oveja Cr., LV, NV 89107
COATES, LAURA - LVMPD P#8717

COLLINS, JOHN - LVMPD P#9322

COLLINS, MAURICE - LVMPD P#4719

COLON, MARC — LVMPD P#7585

CONAWAY, KEVIN - LVMPD P#8402
CONNELL, STEPHEN - LVMPD P#6991
CONOVER, JONATHAN - LVMPD P#9344
CORDERO JR., DANNY - LVMPD P#13963
CROSBY, HOWARD - LVMPD P#6827

CRUZ, JOHN - LVMPD P#14742

CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS - Cricket Communications
CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS - LVMPD Dispatch
CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS - AT&T
*CUSTODIAN OF RECORDS; UMC HOSPITAL
DAHN, ROBBIE - LVMPD P#5947

DALLEY, MICHAEL - LVMPD P#4218
DANNENBERGER, K. - LVMPD P#13772
DAVIDEIT, SHAWN - LVMPD P#6246
DIEBOLD, JUSTIN — LVMPD P#8790

DITMAR, SHAUN - LVMPD P#6404
DONALDSON, MATTHEW - LVMPD P#12935
DONEGAN, CARMEN- LVMPD P#5591

W:\2015\2015F\133\07\15F13307—SLOW—(3RDslAthOZ.DOCX




© 00 N o o A W N P

N N N N N DN N NN P B P PR R R R R e
0 N o O B~ WO N P O © 0 N o o b W N P O

DOWLER, CHRISTOPHER - LVMPD P#13730

DOWNING, MATTHEW - LVMPD P#8260

DRURY, ERIC - LVMPD P#15143

DUKES, JASON - LVMPD P#5656

ELLIS, JAMES - LVMPD P#9298

FARESE, NICHOLAS - LVMPD P#7313

FERNANDEZ, JOSEPH - LVMPD P#15132

FERNANDO, SHIRAN - 6805 White Sands Ave., LV, NV 89145
FETHERSTON, MONTY - LVMPD P#15022

FIELDS, EARNEST — LVMPD P#14799

FITZ, MARKUS - LVMPD P#8564

FLETCHER, RICHARD - LVMPD P#4511

FLETCHER, STEPHANIE - LVMPD P#6650

FONBUENA, RICHARD - LVMPD P#6834

FOSTER, MICHAEL - LVMPD P#13221

FRASER, DOUGLAS - A medical doctor with the University Medical Center. He is

an expert in the area of emergency medicine and will give scientific opinions related thereto.

He is expected to testify regarding the observations, treatment, diagnosis and prognosis of

injuries sustained by the victim Officer Jeremy Robertson on September 9, 2015.

I

GARNER, DARRIS - LVMPD P#7077

GOMEZ, JASON - c/o Clark County DA’s Office

GRAMMAS, KRISTIN - LVMPD P#7808

GRANTHAM, ROBERT - LVMPD P#9841

GREGO-SMITH, MALIK — LVMPD P#13451

GRIMALDO, WILLOUGHBY - 6729 Oveja Cir., LV, NV 89107
GUYER, JEFFREY - LVMPD P#7430

HADFIELD, LAWRENCE - LVMPD P#7171

W:\2015\2015F\133\07\15F13307—SLOW—(3RDsutsOOZ.DOCX
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HAKKI, NASER — A medical doctor with the University Medical Center. He is an
expert in the area of emergency medicine and will give scientific opinions related thereto. He
IS expected to testify regarding the observations, treatment, diagnosis and prognosis of injuries
sustained by the victim Officer Jeremy Robertson on September 9, 2015.

HANSBARGER, NEVIN - LVMPD P#5965

HANOFF, KEITH - LVMPD P#13739

HANSEN, JASON - LVMPD P#7071

HARDWICK, JASON - LVMPD P#6056

HARPER, JEFF - LVMPD P#6471

HARRIS, JOSEPH - LVMPD P#9801

HASKINS, ROGER - LVMPD P#5774

HEMSEY, THOMAS - LVMPD P#14040

HENRY, JACOB - LVMPD P#14753

HERNANDEZ, JOSE - LVMPD P#5850

HERRING JR., JOSEPH - LVMPD P#5241

HERRING, NOELLE - LVMPD P#9725

HEWES, JEFFREY - LVMPD P#6797

HIESTAND, RAMON - LVMPD P#15115

HINKEL, PATRICK - LVMPD P#15074

HOPSON, BEAUMONT - LVMPD P#8906

HORSLEY, RAY - LVMPD P#4652

HOWELL, THOMAS - LVMPD P#8907

HUBBARD, ALVIN - LVMPD P#13980

HUDSON, CLEMON - ID #7025101 - CCDC

HUDSON, KAREN - c/o Clark County DA’s Office

HUGHES, PATRICK - LVMPD P#9084

JACKSON, BRIAN - LVMPD P#9690

JAEGER, RYAN - LVMPD P#5587
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

PAGE 30
EVENT#: 150904-0516

STATEMENT OF: STEVEN TURNER
At a gun range with my uncle, like, a while ago. We went to the gun range and we
were shootin’ it up there but, other than that, no. That was the only time T've ever
shot it was at that gun range. That's what I'm tellin’ you right now, Officer, like, man, !
don't - that's - that SK, like | said, my uncle's gonna be pissed off at me anyway, but
I'm not - plus it's registered to my uncle. The SKS is registered to my uncle, so why
would | do that? Why would | go shoot at a police - at the police and shoot at

somebody with my uncle’s registered SKS? If anything I'm gonna use Lamar's...

Okay. Okay, you gotta think about that, dude. You're - you're - you're headed to a
house that you're gonna want - you're wantin’ to intimidate somebody for drugs with.
Right. Yeah, but it's not - just to intimidate. I'm not genna - I'm not comin’ there
plannin’ on Killin' nobody.

Hey, we're - we got an officer that’s been shot.

Right. And - and which | feel - totally terrible about. You know what | mean? Like, if

| woulda never even did that none of this woulda been happenin’, but, at the same

time, | can’t control what other people do. If | get shot and | run and - and leave, |
don’'t know what - what Lamar was doin’ back there or how he left or nothin’ because

i was not stickin’ around.
We know the SK was shot.
Okay.

It was fired.

Docket 76465 Document 2019-05](6
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VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

PAGE 31
EVENT#: 150904-0516

STATEMENT OF: STEVEN TURNER

Okay.
And it wasn't by Lamar.

Then who fired - | s- man, on my mom, bro, you're sittin’ here tryin' to tell me | shot a

rifle at some - at a police officer at that. Now, if you was...
Who's fightin’ for...

...talkin" about somebody...

Who's fightin’ for his life right now.

Man, | did not shoot that gun, man. | did not shoot that - when | got shot | ran. There
was no point of me even - like | said, it's hella dark. 1 don’t see nothin’. | don't see
nobody. 1just hear gunshots and somebody sayin’, “Yeah, yeah, what the fuck? Get
the fuck outta here.,” | know it's not the police because, like | said, police, they tell
you to freeze. They tell you the shit that police do, so when that happened, | - | ran
that soon. You don't stick around if you get shot because then afterwards is when
the police came, obviously, after he shot oul - shot at both of us, obviously that's
when the police came ‘cause those first round of fires that were shot at us was not
the police, obviously, because they shot me and | - | ran, There was no lights in the
house. It was - everything was dark. 1t wasn't no - it was no police officers in sight
when | left and | sw- if | had a Bible, man, on my - on my grandma, man, on
everything | love, man, | did not shoot no gun at all. When | got shot | ran. I'm not
fittin’ to sit there and try to play Mr. Big Bad and shoot back, especially if i~ if | know

it's the police. But | - it wasn't the police. That's what 'm sayin’. But if - even if |
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PAGE 32
EVENT#: 150904-0518

STATEMENT OF: STEVEN TURNER

knew it was the police 'm not gonna shoot at the police. That makes no sense.

You're not gonna win.
Okay. All right. Okay. Anything else?

No, man, | just wanna say | do - | really am apo- | apologize for everything that's
happened, for this last couple hours and I'm sorry about, you know what | mean, your
officer, sorry about the officer that's - that's down. | really do apologize. You know
what | mean? But | just want you o know | did not pull no trigger. | did not shoot at
no police officer. That is somethin' - | would never do that, like, period. | just want
you to know that. Like, once | got shot, man, it was, like - it was dark in the house.
Like, that's how | know the police weren't there because it was him yellin’ and sayin’
‘Hey, fuck you. Get the fuck outta here,” him shootin’. And then now if | would've
stayed, that's when the police came, obviously if | would’'ve stayed. 1 ran and took
off. That's why they ended up findin' me way up the street because as soon as | got

shot | left. By the time they got to me my blood and everything on my legs was all
dried up because | was sittin’ there next o the - next to the - on this little couch thing,

just sittin' there, hella nervous and shit, for about a good hour. And then you can -
like, the blood was all drawn up - dr- however you wanna say it. It was dry. And then
I fuckin’ - | start walkin’ and then that's when the police officers pulled up on me, but |
never, ever pulled - | never, ever shot - | never shot a gun. | left it there. | dropped
everything. 1-i-if | shot him, | woulda took it with me. If I'm shootin' at whoever I'm
gonna take it with me. | don’t j- I'm not gonna just shoot at you and then just drop it

and leave. Like, | dropped every- like as soon - | panicked as soon as | felt this buliet
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STATEMENT OF: STEVEN TURNER

hole hit me, | completely panicked, and dropped everything and bumped out. | went,
and ran, and hopped over the wall and left. | was, like, bro, | did not want it to go

down like that.
How many times have you used that SK to do robberies?

Never. That was the - that's the first time. | swear to god I've never - | don't - I'm -

I'm - | have a job, man. It was stupid on my part for even goin’ to do this shit.
How many times have you done robberies”?

F've never done a robbery.

Never before?

No.

Tell me about your arrest history here?

I got a DUI when | first turned 21 and then after that it was just traffic tickets, like,
driving with a suspended license, driving with no insurance or speeding. And...

You been to jail before?

| did, like, three days at City. That was it.
With the DUI?

Yeah, with the DUI.

You've never been here?
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h STATEMENT OF: STEVEN TURNER

ST: Never been to County, no. That was the fir- that's the only time was just that DUL
That was the only time. I'm tellin’ you, man, like, I didn't - that's what - that's what got
my mi- my - my brain is racing. And my mom is tellin’ me, once | talked to her, she’s,
like, “Yeah, Lamar's mom is doing this and doing that” I'm, like, but why - what -
when | left there he was on the - he was, like, layin' there. Like | said, | dropped
everything and hopped over the wall, so if anything, you got - you got the SK and you
got the shotgun all right there because | ran.

CJ:  Okay. Allright. Operator, Detective Jex. The Event# on this is 150904-0516. I'm at
CCDC in the interview room in booking area. Just completed an interview with
Steven Turner. What's your date of birth, Steven?

ST:  12-23-90.

CJ:  12-23-90. The, um, starling time was at 1535. The ending time now is 1630.

THIS VOLUNTARY STATEMENT WAS COMPLETED AT THE CLARK COUNTY

DETENTION CENTER, 330 S. CASINO CENTER BOULEVARD, LAS VEGAS, NV 89101,

ON THE 4™ DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2015 AT 1630 HOURS.

CJ: (NET TRANSCRIPTS)

FIT2015-032

CJ: REVIEWED 09-15-15

——
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Electronically Filed
3/5/2018 9:15 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU,
ores Bl b e

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
LEAH C. BEVERLY
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #12556
200 Lewis Ave
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2211
(702) 671-2600
Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintift, Case No. C-15-309578-1
-Vs- Dept No. XVIII

STEVEN TURNER, #2717636
Defendant.

N N N ' ' ' e

STATE’S OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT’S MOTION TO SUPPRESS
STATEMENTS AND REQUEST FOR JACKSON V. DENNO HEARING

DATE OF HEARING: March 6, 2018
TIME OF HEARING: 9:00 AM

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, District Attorney,
through LEAH C. BEVERLY, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and files this Opposition to
Defendant’s Motion to Suppress Statements and Request for Jackson v. Denno Hearing.

/1
/1
/11
/1
11
/1
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This Opposition is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if

deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.

DATED this _ > day of March 2018.

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney

Nevada Ba 001565VQ

LEAH C. BEVERLY ~
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #12556
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE:

An Indictment was filed on September 23, 2015 charging Steven Turner (hereinafter
“Defendant™) as follows: Count 1: Conspiracy to Commit Burglary; Count 2: Attempt
Burglary While in Possession of Firearm or Deadly Weapon; Count 3-4: Attempt Murder with
Use of a Deadly Weapon; Count 5: Battery with Use of a Deadly Weapon Resulting in
Substantial Bodily Harm; and Count 6: Discharging Firearm At or Into Occupied Structure,
Vehicle, Aircraft or Watercraft. Trial is currently set for April 16, 2018. Defendant filed the
instant Motion on February 27, 2018. The State’s Opposition follows:

STATEMENT OF FACTS:

On September 4, 2015, at approximately 3:45AM, the Defendant and his co-defendant,
armed with multiple firearms, startled the victims awake in their home. The residents of the
home, Eric Clarkson and Willoughby Grimaldi, were sleeping when they heard suspicious
noises in their backyard. They observed two figures, who were later identified as the two
defendants, running across the backyard. The police were notified and dispatched and Officers
Robertson and Greco-Smith arrived to investigate. Officer Robertson spotted the co-
defendants in the backyard and began to open the back door when Defendant Turner fired
three rounds from an AK-47 rifle. One of the rounds hit Officer Robertson in the leg and
immediately after, Defendant Hudson fired a round at the officers from his shotgun, hitting
the doorway next to them. Officer Greco-Smith returned fire at Defendants Hudson and
Turner. Defendant Turner dropped his rifle and fled the scene while Hudson hid in the
backyard. A canine police dog from the K9 unit had to physically remove Defendant Hudson
from where he was hiding because he would not respond to Officers when ordered to
surrender.

Officer Robertson was extracted from the residence and was transported to UMC
Trauma to be treated for his shattered right femur. He was taken into surgery where he required
a titanium rod and plates to be inserted into his broken femur. Defendant Turner was later

apprehended by police.
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I. DEFENDANT WAIVED HIS RIGHT TO COUNSEL DURING HIS THIRD
INTERVIEW WITH POLICE.

In the instant Motion, Defendant claims that during his third interview with police on
September 4, 2015 at 3:35 p.m., Defendant invoked his right to counsel. Defendant claims
because Defendant invoked his right to counsel, all questioning should have ceased and
because it did not, Defendant’s third interview should be suppressed. This claim is without

merit and should be denied. It should be noted that Defendant does not dispute the fact that he
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was given his Miranda warnings by police during his first interview. Defendant also does not

dispute that he was reminded of his rights in subsequent interviews and informed that those

rights still applied.

During Defendant’s third interview on September 4, 2015 at 3:35, the following

exchange occurred:
CJ: And understand that-1 know he, uh- he Mirandized you earlier...
ST: Yeah
ClJ: I-those laws- that still applies. Okay?
ST: All right....

ST: Do I gotta talk to you right now or can I wait ‘till- ‘cause my mom is talking on the
phone, like, on an appointment with my attorney right now, so I don’t wanna, you know what

I mean, to say nothin’. You know what [ mean? Shouldn’t I wait for my attorney to be here..?

ClJ: it- it’s your call, man.

ST: Yeah, I’d rather wait for my attorney.

CJ: You don’t wanna...

ST: Yeah.

CJ: ...talk to me anymore?

ST: I mean, I'll- I'll talk to you. Fine, yeah.
11
/11
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While the State acknowledges that Defendant was in custody at the time of his third
interview, Defendant waived his right to counsel and voluntary spoke to police. As such, his
claim should be denied.

Where a defendant is fully advised of his Miranda rights and makes a free, knowing
and voluntary statement to the police, such post-arrest statements are admissible at trial. See
Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436 (1966); Rowbottom v. State, 105 Nev. 472, 779 P.2d 934
(1989); Stringer v. State, 108 Nev. 413, 836 P.2d 609 (1992). Moreover, when the State seeks

to introduce a statement obtained from a defendant by police, the State need only demonstrate,
by a preponderance of the evidence, that the defendant's waiver of his fifth and sixth
amendment rights was knowing and voluntary. Barren v. State, 99 Nev. 663 (1983); Laursen
v. State, 97 Nev. 568, 634 P.2d 1230 (1981); Scott v. State, 92 Nev. 522, 554 P.2d 735 (1976);
see also Sanchez v. State, 103 Nev. 166, 170, 734 P.2d 726, 728 (1977) (State need only prove

the voluntariness of defendant's statement by a preponderance of the evidence).

In N. Carolina v. Butler, 441 U.S. 369, 99 S. Ct. 1755 (1979), the U.S. Supreme Court

held that a defendant’s waiver of rights need not be determined by a concrete “yes” or “no™

response to the Miranda warning:

The per se rule that the North Carolina Supreme Court has found in Miranda
does not speak to these concerns. There is no doubt that this respondent was
adequately and effectively apprised of his rights. The only question is whether
he waived the exercise of one of those rights, the right to the presence of a
lawyer. Neither the state court nor the respondent has offered any reason why
there must be a negative answer to that question in the absence of an express
waiver. This is not the first criminal case to question whether a defendant waived
his constitutional rights. It is an issue with which courts must repeatedly deal.
Even when a right so fundamental as that to counsel at trial is involved, the
question of waiver must be determined on “the particular facts and
circumstances surrounding that case, including the background,
experience, and conduct of the accused.”

441 U.S. at 374-75, 99 S. Ct. at 1758 (emphasis added, citations omitted).
/1
/1
/11
/1
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1 The Nevada Supreme Court adopted this reasoning in Mendoza v. State, 122 Nev. 267,
2 || 130P.3d 176 (2006):
3 A valid waiver of rights under Miranda must be voluntary, knowing, and
intelligent. “A waiver 1s voluntary if, under the totality of the circumstances, the
4 confession was the product of a free and deliberate choice rather than coercion
or improper inducement.” A written or oral statement of waiver of the right
S to remain silent is not invariably necessary. Rather, a waiver may be
inferred from the actions and words of the person interrogated. A detective
6 read Mendoza his rights in Spanish, and Mendoza never expressed difficulty
understanding the nature ofp his rights or the content OF the subsequent
7 questioning. %urther,.Mendoza never expressed a desire not to speak. A review
of'the totality of the circumstances reveals that Mendoza voluntarily, knowingly,
8 and intelligently waived his Miranda rights.
9 122 Nev. at 276-77, 130 P.3d at 181-82 (emphasis added, citations omitted).
10 In the instant case, Defendant fails to differentiate between the invocation of the right
11 || to remain silent and the invocation of the right to counsel. Defendant claims in this case that
12 || he failed to waive his right to counsel. In Davis v. U.S, the United States Supreme Court
13 || specifically addressed the issue of the right to counsel before questioning. Davis v. U.S, 512
14 || U.S 452 (1994). The Court noted:
12 In considering how a suspect must invoke the right to counsel,
16 we must consider the other side of the Miranda equation: the
need [****17] for effective law enforcement. Although the
17 courts ensure compliance with the Miranda requirements through
18 the exclusionary rule, it is police officers who must actually
decide whether or not they can question a suspect. The Edwards
19 rule -- questioning must cease if the suspect asks for a lawyer --
20 provides a bright line that can be applied by officers in the real
world of investigation and interrogation without unduly
21 hampering the gathering of information. But if
2 we [***373] were to require questioning to cease if a suspect
makes a statement that might be a request for an attorney, this
23 clarity and ease of application would be lost. Police officers
would be forced to make difficult judgment calls about whether
24 the suspect in fact wants a lawyer even though he has not said so,
25 with the threat of suppression if they guess wrong. We therefore
hold that, after a knowing and voluntary waiver of the Miranda
26 rights, law enforcement officers may continue questioning until
27 and unless the suspect clearly requests an attorney. LEdHN[1D]¥
[1D] LEAHN[2C[¥ [2C|Of course, when a suspect makes an
28 ambiguous or equivocal statement it will often be good police
practice for the interviewing officers to
6
526
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clarify [****18] whether or not he actually wants an attorney.
That was the procedure followed by the NIS agents in this case.
Clarifying questions help protect the rights of the suspect by
ensuring that he gets an attorney if he wants one, and will
minimize the chance of a confession being suppressed due to
subsequent judicial second-guessing as to the meaning of the
suspect's statement regarding counsel. But we decline to adopt
a rule requiring officers to ask clarifying questions. If the
suspect's statement [*462] is not an unambiguous or
unequivocal request for counsel, the officers have no obligation
to stop questioning him.To recapitulate: We held in Miranda that
a suspect is entitled to the assistance of counsel during custodial
interrogation even though the Constitution does not provide for
such assistance. We held in Edwards that if the suspect invokes
the right to counsel at any time, the police must immediately
cease [**2357] questioning him until an attorney is present. But
we are unwilling to create a third layer of prophylaxis to prevent
police questioning when the suspect might want a lawyer. Unless
the suspect actually requests an attorney, questioning may
continue. [****19] The courts below found that petitioner's
remark to the NIS agents -- "Maybe I should talk to a lawyer" -
- was not a request for counsel, and we see no reason to disturb
that conclusion. The NIS agents therefore were not required to
stop questioning petitioner, though it was entirely proper for
them to clarify whether petitioner in fact wanted a lawyer.

The Court specifically noted that is perfectly acceptable and preferable for police to ask
clarifying questions about whether or not Defendant wants an attorney or not. In this case, that
is exactly what occurred. Defendant had already spoken to police freely and voluntarily two
times before the third interview after waiving his right to counsel. During the third interview,
Defendant made an ambiguous statement about a lawyer. Defendant asked Detectives about
whether he should wait for an attorney. Then he indicated that he would rather wait for his
attorney. In an effort to clarify and be clear whether or not Defendant wanted a lawyer,
Detectives asked him whether or not he wanted to talk. At that point, Defendant indicated he
did want to talk and the interview continued. Detectives did not ask any substantive questions
about the case after Defendant made the ambiguous statement about a lawyer. Furthermore, at

no other point in the interview did Defendant make any mention of a lawyer. It was perfectly
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rational, as the Court noted in Davis, for Detectives to clarify Defendant’s statements. This is
true especially considering the fact that Defendant had freely spoken with officers previously.

Defendant’s reliance on Dewey v. State in reference to “relevant factors™ is misplaced.

The section of Dewey that Defendant references in his Motion refers to a Defendant’s
invocation of the right to remain silent, not the invocation of a right to counsel. Davis is the

controlling case on the right to counsel. See also Kaczmarek v. State, 120 Nev. 314 (2004).

With respect to Defendant’s request for a Jackson v. Denno hearing regarding the
allegations in the instant motion, the State opposes this request because the current available
record is sufficient for this Court to decide the motion.

CONCLUSION

For the forgoing reasons, the State respectfully requests that this Court Deny the Motion

to Suppress.

~X*
DATED this _ >  day of March, 2015.
STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

T e

LEAH C. BEVERLY
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #0012556
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CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

[ hereby certify that service of State's Opposition to Defendant's Motion to Suppress

Statements and Request for Jackson V. Denno Hearing, was made this S

2018, by Electronic Filing to:

day of March,

TEGAN MACHNICH, Dep. Public Defender
E-Mail: Tegan. Mdchmch «@clarkcountynv.gov

E-Mail: pdclerk@clarkcountynv.gov

JESS MARCHESE, ESQ
E-Malil.:- mauhcscld\x (@msn. u)m/

BYC/ %

C. Jimenez

Secretary of the District Attomey s Office

LCB/cmj/L2
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Electronically Filed
2/27/2018 12:21 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE C?i? :I
0071 C&»—A

PHILIP J. KOHN, PUBLIC DEFENDER

NEVADA BARNO. 0556

TEGAN C. MACHNICH, DEPUTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
NEVADA BAR NO, 11642

PUBLIC DEFENDERS OFFICE

309 South Third Street, Suite 226

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

Telephone: (702) 455-4685

Facsimile: (702) 455-5112

Attorneys for Defendant

DISTRICT COURT DEPARTMENT XVII
NOTIOE OF HEARING

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA DATE 5 l f;& Tiﬁﬂi’iﬁ ﬁﬁbk
ARPROVED BY Sk - JEA.

THE STATE OF NEVADA, ) Dic (8
)
Plaintiff, ) CASE NO. C-15-309578-1
)
v. ) DEPT. NO. XVIII
)
STEVEN TURNER, )
) DATE:; March 6, 2018
Defendant, % TIME: 9:00 a.m,
MOTION IN LIMINE

COMES NOW, the Defendant, STEVEN TURNER, by and through TEGAN C,
MACHNICH, Deputy Public Defender and hereby requests that this Honorable Court prevent
the State or co-defendant’s counsel from introducing certain unauthenticated text messages at
trial.

This Motion is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached Declaration of Counsel, Memorandum of Points and Authorities in support hereof, and
oral argument at the time set for hearing this Motion.

DATED this 23rd day of February, 2018.

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By:_ /s/Tegan C. Machnich
TEGAN C, MACHNICH, #11642
Chief Deputy Public Defender
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DECLARATION

TEGAN C. MACHNICH makes the following declaration:

1. I am an attorney duly licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada; I am
the Deputy Public Defender assigned to represent the Defendant in the instant matter, and I am
familiar with the facts and circumstances of this case.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. (NRS 53.045).
EXECUTED this 23rd day of February, 2018.

/s/Tegan C. Machnich
TEGAN C. MACHNICH
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PERTINENT FACTS

Defendant Turner is facing six charges relating to alleged attempted home burglary
incident occurring on September 4, 2015, during which a police officer sustained a gunshot
wound to the lower body. As part of the investigation in this case, police learned that Mr. Turner
had a past relationship (friendship) with one of the complaining witnesses (homeowners). Upon
information and belief, Mr. Turner and the homeowner had not spoken in months.

Following Mr. Turner’s arrest, the homeowner provided police with some messages from
“black Steve” relating to wanting to meet up (attached hereto as Exhibit A). The messages
come from a “text free” number that is not associated with Mr. Turner and do not identify him in
particular. They also do not reference the exact date or the incident in question.

Given the fact that they cannot be authenticated, or tied to Mr. Turner in any way through
the source or content (beyond the “black Steve” identifier that could be used by anyone), the
State must be precluded from offering them as evidence at trial.

ARGUMENT

This Court should preclude the State from introducing the text messages, or any
testimony relating thereto', as State’s evidence in this case without proper authentication. Any
reference to or presentation of the text messages is irrelevant and unfairly prejudicial. Relevant
evidence is “evidence having any tendency to make the existence of any fact that is of

consequence to the determination of the action more or less probable than it would be without

the evidence.” NRS 48.015. “Evidence which is not relevant is not admissible.” NRS
48.025(2). Additionally, “[a]lthough relevant, evidence is not admissible if its probative value is
substantially outweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice, of confusion of the issues or of
misleading the jury.” NRS 48.035(1).

“Authentication represents a special aspect of relevancy, in that evidence cannot have a
tendency to make the existence of a disputed fact more or less likely if the evidence is not that

which its proponent claims.” Rodriguez v. State, 273 P. 3d 845 (citing U.S. v. Branch, 970 F.2d

" This includes recollection of the text messages, as this would violate the Best Evidence Rule.

3
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Electronically Filed
10/23/2017 9:09 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
0026 Cﬁ“_‘é ,ﬁk—
PHILIP J. KOHN, PUBLIC DEFENDER

NEVADA BAR NO. 0556

TEGAN C. MACHNICH, DEPUTY PUBLIC DEFENDER
NEVADA BAR NO. 11642

PUBLIC DEFENDERS OFFICE

309 South Third Street, Suite 226

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

Telephone: (702) 455-4685

Facsimile: (702) 455-5112
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA, )
)
Plaintiff, ) CASE NO. C-15-309578-1
)
V. ) DEPT. NO. XVIII
)
STEVEN TURNER, )
) DATE: November , 2017
Defendant, ) TIME: 9:00 a.m.
)

MOTION TO CONTINUE TRIAL DATE

COMES NOW the Defendant, STEVEN TURNER, by and through his attorney,
TEGAN C. MACHNICH, Deputy Public Defender, and respectfully moves this court for an
order vacating the November 13, 2017 trial date and requesting a new trial setting on a date
convenient to the court.

This Motion is made based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached Declaration of Counsel, Memorandum of Points and Authorities in support hereof, and
oral argument at the time set for hearing this Motion.

DATED this 23rd day of October, 2017.

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By _ /s/Tegan C. Machnich
TEGAN C. MACHNICH, #11642
Deputy Public Defender
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DECLARATION

TEGAN C. MACHNICH makes the following declaration:

1. | am an attorney duly licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada; | am
the Deputy Public Defender assigned to represent the Defendant in the instant matter, and | am
familiar with the facts and circumstances of this case.

2. The jury trial in this case is currently set for November 13, 2017, with
calendar call on November 7, 2017.

3. With the Thanksgiving holiday, there would only be eight (8) trial days
available if the trial went through the Wednesday of Thanksgiving week. It is my understanding
that Your Honor does afternoon trial days on Tuesdays, Wednesdays and Thursdays, with full
days possible on Mondays and Fridays. That would put our trial at five “half days” and three
“full days.”

4. The State has previously quoted this trial as 2-3 weeks. With over 225
witnesses noticed by the State alone, this seems conservative.

5. | will be out of the jurisdiction the week after Thanksgiving. Specifically,
November 27 — December 1.

6. As of the date of this motion, there are also ongoing questions concerning
what part of the Defendants statements that will be admissible at trial. Those issues are set to be
heard by His Honor on October 31, 2017, and it is anticipated that the Defendants will renew
their requests for severance.

7. The State provided the underlying forensic data pursuant to Defendant
Turner’s request. However, given the delay between the issuance of the defense subpoena and
receipt of those materials (which is of no fault of the deputy district attorneys on this case, but of
the process LVMPD labs use to respond to defense subpoenas), there may be further analysis
required.

8. Based on the foregoing, Defendant Turner requests a brief continuance of

the trial date into the New Year. Defense Counsel reached out to Co-Defendant’s counsel and
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the State in advance of filing this motion. The State responded that they will not oppose the
continuance.

| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. (NRS
53.045).

EXECUTED this 23rd day of October, 2017.

/s/Tegan C. Machnich
TEGAN C. MACHNICH
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NOTICE OF MOTION
TO: CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY, Attorney for Plaintiff:
YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the foregoing MOTION TO
CONTINUE TRIAL DATE will be heard on November i 2017, at 9:00 a.m. in District
Court, Department XVIII.
DATED this 23rd day of October, 2017.

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By:_ /s/Tegan C. Machnich
TEGAN C. MACHNICH, #11642
Deputy Public Defender

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE

| hereby certify that service of the above and forgoing MOTION was served via

electronic e-filing to the Clark County District Attorney’s Office at motions@clarkcountyda.com

on this 23rd day of October, 2017.

By: _ /sl Erin Prisbrey

An employee of the
Clark County Public Defender’s Office
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Las Vegas, Nevada 89155
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Attorneys for Defendant

URT e
DISTRICT CO DEPARTMENT XV
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA _ NOTICE OF HEARING

’ parE 3lelie, Tive § An

THE STATE OF NEV APPRIVED BY ZE-JE0
ADA, ) Bic
Plaintiff, % CASE NO. C-15-309578-1
)
V. ) DEPT. NO. XVIII
)
STEVEN TURNER, )
) DATE: March 6, 2018
Defendant, % TIME: 9:00 a.m,

DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO SUPPRESS STATEMENTS AND REQUEST FOR
JACKSON V. DENNO HEARING

COMES NOW, the Defendant, STEVEN TURNER, by and through TEGAN C.

MACHNICH, Deputy Public Defender and hereby requests that this Honorable Court suppress
any statements Defendant made following his invocation of his right to counsel.

This Motion is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached Declaration of Counsel, Memorandum of Points and Authorities in support hereof, and
oral argument at the time set for hearing this Motion.

DATED this 231d day of February, 2018.

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By:_ /s/Tegan C. Machnich
TEGAN C. MACHNICH, #11642
Deputy Public Defender
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DECLARATION

TEGAN C. MACHNICH makes the following declaration:

1. [ am an attorney duly licensed to practice law in the State of Nevada; [ am
the Deputy Public Defender assigned to represent the Defendant in the instant matter, and I am
familiar with the facts and circumstances of this case.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. (NRS 53.045).
EXECUTED this 23rd day of February, 2018.

Is/Tegan C. Machnich
TEGAN C. MACHNICH
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PERTINENT FACTS

Defendant Turner is facing six charges relating to alleged attempted home burglary
incident occurring on September 4, 2015, during which a police officer sustained a gunshot
wound to the lower body. Mr. Turner was arrested the same day and interviewed multiple times
in the subsequent hours — 07:29 to 07:50, 09:13 to 09:34 and 15:35 to 16:30. During the third
interrogation, Mr. Turner engaged in the follow invocation of his right to counsel

ST: Do I gotta talk to you right now or can I wait ‘til — ‘cause my mom is talking on

the phone, like, on an appointment with my attorney right now, so I don’t wanna, you

know what I mean, to say nothin’. You know what I mean? Shouldn’t I wait for my
attorney to be here to...?

Cl:  T-it-it’s your call, man.

ST:  Yeah, I"d rather wait for my attorney.

CJl:  Youdon’t wanna...

ST:  Yeah.

CJ:  ...talk to me anymore?

ST:  [*pause*] I mean, I’ll - I’ll talk to you. Fine, yeah....

The interview continued for approximately thirty (30) additional transcribed pages. Because his
invocation was clear, and questioning should have ceased immediately, Mr. Turner now moves

to suppress the remainder of the final statement he gave to police pursuant to Nevada law.

ARGUMENT

A person’s right not to incriminate himself is protected by the Fifth Amendment to the
United States Constitution and Article 1, Section 8 of the Nevada Constitution. Holyfield v.
Townsell, 101 Nev. 793; 711 P.2d 845 (1985). “[Tlhe accused must be adequately and
effectively apprised of his rights and the exercise of those rights must be fully honored.”

Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436, 467; 16 L.Ed.2d 694, 719 (1966). (Emphasis added). The

Supreme Court went on to say:
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“[W]e hold that when an individual is taken into custody or
otherwise deprived of his freedom by the authorities in any
significant way and is subjected to questioning, the privilege
against self-incrimination is jeopardized. Procedural safeguards
must be employed to protect the privilege, and unless other fully
effective means are adopted to notify the person of his right of
silence and to assure that the exercise of the right will be
scrupulously honored, the following measures are required. He
must be warned prior to any questioning that he has the right to
remain silent, that anything he says can be used against him in a
court of law, that he was the right to the presence of an attorney,
and that if he cannot afford an attorney one will be appointed for
him prior to any questioning if he so desires. Opportunity to
exercise these rights must be afforded to him throughout the
interrogation. After such warnings have been given, and such
opportunity afforded him, the individual may knowingly and
intelligently waive these rights and agree to answer questions or
make a statement. But unless and until such warnings and waiver
are demonstrated by the prosecution at trial, no evidence obtained
as a result of interrogation can be used against him.”

Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436, 478-479 (1966).

In order for a Defendant’s statements to be admissible at trial, Miranda warnings must be
provided prior to any custodial interrogation. “Custodial interrogation” takes place when a
suspect is (1) in custody, (2) being questioned by an agent of the police, and (3) subject to
interrogation. Boehm v. State, 113 Nev. 910, 913; 944 P.2d 269, 271 (1997). An individual is

deemed “in custody” for purposes of Miranda where “...there has been a formal arrest, or where

there has been a restraint on freedom of movement of the degree associated with a formal arrest

so that a reasonable person would not feel free to leave.” State v. Taylor, 114 Nev. 1071, 1082;

968 P.2d 315, 323 (1998) (emphasis added); also see United States v. Bengivenga, 845 F.2d 593,

598 (5" Cir. 1998); United States v. Moya, 74 F.3d 1117, 1119 (11" Cir. 1996). Additionally, “a

suspect incarcerated on other charges is ‘in custody’ for purposes of the above test.” Boem, 113
Nev. at 913, 944 P.2d at 271. “[T]he term ‘interrogation’ under Miranda refers not only to
express questioning, but also to any words or actions on the part of the police (other than those

normally attendant to arrest and custody) that the police should know are reasonably likely to

481




elicit an incriminating response from the suspect. Koza v. State, 102 Nev. 181, 186, 718 P.2d

671, 674-75 (1986)(quoting Rhode Island v. Innis, 446 U.S. 291, 301-02 (1980)).

Nevada law requires “[p]reliminary hearings on the admissibility of confessions or
statements by the accused or evidence allegedly unlawfully obtained” to be carried out outside
the presence of the jury. NRS 47.090. In addition, the accused may testify at such a hearing
without subjecting “himself to cross-examination as to other issues in the case” and that
testimony is “not admissible against him on the issue of guilt at trial.” Id. A hearing to
determine if a statement is voluntary and if Miranda requirements were complied with, a Jackson

v. Denno hearing, must be requested by the defendant. Wilkins v. State, 96 Nev. 267 (1980).

If the statement was involuntary, it ceased to exist legally and is inadmissible for any

purpose. See, Mimey v. Arizona, 437 U.S. 385; 98 S.Ct. 2408 (1978). If it was voluntary but

Miranda was violated, it can be used only for impeachment if the Defendant testifies and

contradicts the statement. Harris v. New York, 401 U.S, 222; 91 S.Ct. 643 (1971) and Oregon v.

Hass, 420 U.S. 714; 95 S.Ct. 1215 (1975). If the statement was voluntary and the result of
proper Miranda warnings, it can be used for all purposes in Court. Where the Court permits the

Defendant's statements to be heard by the jury, the jury still has an opportunity to decide the

voluntariness of the confession. This is the “Massachusetts Rule” which was adopted by Carlson

v. State, 84 Nev. 534; 445 P.2d 157 (1968). See also, Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112; 825 P.2d

593 (1992). The State must prove by a preponderance of the evidence that the statement was

voluntary. Brimmings v. State, 93 Nev. 434; 567 P.2d 54 (1977); Falcon v. State, 110 Nev. 530;

874 P.2d 772 (1994) and Colorado v. Connelly, 479 U.S. 157; 107 S.Ct. 515 (1986).

With respect to the Mr. Turner, he was clearly in custody for purposes of Miranda, and

his Miranda warnings were read to him before his first interview and further reiterated during the
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subsequent interviews. The concern the defense now has is with Mr. Turner’s invocation of his
right to counsel.

“Once warnings have been given, the subsequent procedure is clear. If the individual
indicates in any manner, at any time prior to or during questioning, that he wishes to remain
silent, the interrogation must cease.” Miranda, 384 U.S. at 473-74 (emphasis added). In order to
invoke a person’s Fifth Amendment right to remain silent, a suspect need not utter some precise,
magical words, such as “I invoke my right to silence under the Fifth Amendment.” Arnold v.

Runnels, 421 F.3d 859, 866 (9th Cir. 2005); Hurd v. Terhune, 619 F.3d 1080, 1089 (9th Cir.

2010) (“Yet a suspect still need not utter a ‘talismanic phrase’ to invoke his right to silence.”).

To the contrary, a suspect seeking to invoke his right to silence doesn’t have to “provide
any statement more explicit or more technically-worded than ‘I have nothing to say.”” Arnold,
421 F.3d at 865; U.S. v. Poole, 794 F.2d 462, 465 (9th Cir. 1986) (Defendant invoked his
Miranda right to silence when he asserted that he had “nothing to talk about.”).

Further, in Carter v. State, 129 Nev. 244, 371 (2013), the Nevada
Supreme Court was clear: The Supreme Court has strongly repudiated
consideration of a suspect's subsequent statements in order to cast doubt
on the clarity of an initial request. Smith, 469 U.S. at 100, 105 S.Ct. 490
(1984) (“We hold only that, under the clear logical force of settled
precedent, an accused's postrequest responses to further interrogation
may not be used to cast retrospective doubt on the clarity of the initial
request itself.”). “[o]nce a suspect requests an attorney, Miranda and
its progeny do not allow police officers to subtly interrogate the suspect
under the guise of clarifying intentions that are already clear. “In the
absence of such a bright-line prohibition, the authorities through
‘badger[ing]’ or ‘overreaching’—explicit or subtle, deliberate or
unintentional-—might otherwise wear down the accused and persuade
him to incriminate himself notwithstanding his earlier request for
counsel's assistance.” Id._at 98, 105 S.Ct. 490 (alteration in original)
(quoting Oregon v. Bradshaw, 462 U.S. 1039, 1044, 103 S.Ct. 2830, 77
L.Ed.2d 405 (1983)).”
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Here, Mr. Turner explicitly told detectives that he wanted to wait for his attorney. This
statement was neither ambiguous nor equivocal. In determining whether the police
“scrupulously honored” Mr. Turner’s right to remain silent, the Nevada Supreme Court has
stated that trial courts must look at certain “relevant factors.” Dewey, 123 Nev. at 491. Factors
to be considered when analyzing whether or not the police scrupulously honored a defendant’s
right to remain silent include: (1) Whether the police immediately ceased questioning once the
defendant asked to end the interrogation; (2) Whether the police resumed questioning only after
the passage of a significant period of time; (3) Whether the police focused on a different crime in
the second interrogation; and (4) Whether the police administered new Miranda warnings before
the second interrogation. See id.; Mosley, 423 U.S. at 105-06. Of these four factors, the most
important or crucial factor “is the provision of fresh set of Miranda rights.” U.S. v. HSU, 852
F.2d 407, 411 (9th Cir. 1988). None of these happened here. The questioning continued,
unabated.

Here, the detectives failed to cease questioning Mr. Turner after he invoked his right to
remain silent. Thus, no time—Ilet alone “a significant period of time”—passed. See Dewey, 123
Nev. at 491 (Court held that the police “scrupulously honored” defendant’s right to remain silent
when the “police waited two hours before they initiated the next interview.”). Additionally, the
detectives continued to question Mr. Turner about the exact same crime that they had questioned
him about prior to him invoking his right to counsel. Under the totality of the circumstances, the
police failed to “scrupulously honor” Mr. Turners right to counsel. Consequently, any and all
statements given by Mr. Turner following his assertion of the right to counsel must be

suppressed.

/117

111717

11

484




~ O

o]

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

19
20

21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

CONCLUSION

For the reasons set forth above, Defendant Turner requests that this court suppress any

statements he made to police after his invocation of right to counsel during the third

interrogation. If this Court requires further information prior to suppression, Mr. Turner hereby

requests a Jackson v. Denno hearing be scheduled prior to trial so that these important

voluntariness issues may be addressed.

DATED this 23rd day of February, 2018.

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By_ /s/Tegan C. Machnich
TEGAN C. MACHNICH, #11642
Chief Deputy Public Defender
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NOTICE OF MOTION

TO: CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY, Attorney for Plaintiff:

YOU WILL PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the foregoing MOTION TO SUPPRESS will
be heard on March 6, 2018, at 9:00 a.m. in District Court, Department X VIIIL.

DATED this 23rd day of February, 2018.

PHILIP J. KOHN
CLARK COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER

By_ /s/Tegan C. Machnich
TEGAN C. MACHNICH, #11642
Deputy Public Defender

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTRONIC SERVICE

I hereby certify that service of the above and forgoing Motion to Suppress was served via
electronic e-filing to the Clark County District Attorney’s Office Clark County District

Attorney’s Office at Motions@clarkcountyda.com on this . day of February, 2018.
w /’)\u

By:  /s/ Annie McMahan

An employee of the
Clark County Public Defender’s Office
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT
VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

PAGE1
EVENT#: 150904-0516

SPECIFIC CRIME:  OFFICER-INVOLVED SHOOTING (NON-FATAL)

DATE OCCURRED: (9-04-15 TIME OCCURRED: 0343 HOURS

LOCATION OF QCCURRENCE: 6728 OVEJACIR
LAS VEGAS, NV 88107

CITY OF LAS VEGAS CLARK COUNTY

NAME OF PERSON GIVING STATEMENT: STEVEN TURNER

poB: RN SOCIAL SECURITY #:
RACE: SEX:
HEIGHT: WEIGHT:
HAIR: EYES:
HOME ADDRESS: PHONE 1:
PHONE 2:
WORK ADDRESS:

The following is the transcription of a tape-recorded interview conducted by
DETECTIVE C. JEX, P# 55907, LVMPD FORCE INVESTIGATION TEAM, on
09-04-15, at 1535 hours.

CJ: Okay. | know that, uh, my partner's talked to ya a couple of times and the - uh,

operator, I'm here with Steven Turner at CCDC. Tell me your date of birth.
SV GENEEER
cJ: @ And understand that - | know he, uh - he Mirandized you earlier...

ST:  Yeah.

CJ: 1-those laws - that still applies. Okay?
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

YOLUNTARY STATEMENT
PAGE 2
EVENT#: 150904-0516
STATEMENT OF: STEVEN TURNER

All right.
A couple of things | want to talk to you about. Okay?

All right.

We know that, uh - that you were, uh - we know you were at the scene. Right?
Right.

Uh, that's no big secret, all that kinda stuff. And, uh, we know you were in the

backyard.

Right.

Right? We know you had the rifle. Right?

Right.

And, uh, tell me where this rifle came into play. Where did it come from?

Do | getta talk to you right now or can | wait ‘til - ‘cause my mom is talking on the
phone, like, on an appointment with my attorney right now, so | don't wanna, you

know what | mean, to say nothin’. You know what | mean? Shouldn't | wait for my

attorney to be here to...?

«I- it - it's your call, man.

¥eah, I'd rather wait for my attorney.
You don't wanna...

Yeah.
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

PAGE 3
EVENT#: 150904-0516

STATEMENT OF: STEVEN TURNER

...talk to me anymore?

I mean, I'll - I'll talk to you. Fine, yeah, But | was back there, man, and the rifle, |
didn’'t know he had it or | figured he did. You know what | mean? ‘Cause it was in
the backseat, and | looked and | seen it back there. And I'm, like, all right, he has the
rifle. You feel me? So, | hopped over the wall. Like | said, we was just lookin’, you
know what | mean, wasn't - | didn't hear no sirens, no noth- | - on my mom, like, |
didn't even know it was the police. All'l - all | heard was gunshots. That's when | got

shot. |- he fell fo the ground. | stumbled and...
Who - who's he fell to the ground?

L- uh, Lamar. He fell and then, like, | stumbled and | was, like, oh shit, and | just
heard somebody yellin', | didn't hear no po- not police. | know what police sound like
or freeze or put the gun down. | didn't hear none of that. | heard the gunshots and
the homeowner that's in the house is screamin’. And then they're shootin’, shools

me in my leg. That's when | turn around, and run, and | hop over the wall. | just run

up the street and | was sittin’ there. Like, there was, like, a couch or somethin’ right
there, like, and | was, like, layin’ right there on the couch. And then that's when | left,

and then started walkin’ up the street and then ran into them.

Okay. Where'd you park your car?

Honestly, | don't remember. | think, like, on the other street or somethin’, | wasn't

drivin’. He was drivin',

You were driving?
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

PAGE 4
EVENT#: 150804-0516

STATEMENT OF: STEVEN TURNER

No, he was driving, Lamar.

So, you - you were ridin’ with Lamar?
Yeah.

Okay. You didn't bring your car?

I don't own a car.

What car do you use to get around?

The bus.
Okay. Okay. Sowho's - I'm - I'm - I'm lockin’ for a third person.

That's what I'm sayin’, | den't understand where a third person comes in the party.
As far as my knowledge, from what | know, everything | - look, when we got there,
there was me and him. There was two people. Anybody else that was there | had no
clue about. There was nobody there. It was only me and him because, like | said,

once we was in the back, and once | got shot and | just took off runnin’. And then

after that | - | didn't - like | was tellin’ the officer at first when - he was, like - | told him
[ didn't even know the severity - | didn't even know there was a police officer there. |
didn’t even know there was police on the scene until | started hearin’ helicopters and
everything like that. But when | was back there | didn't hear not a - wasn't freeze,
police, nothin’. | just heard the homeowner yellin’, like, “Get the fuck-" or somethin’. |
heard boom, boom, boom, and then he shot me in my leg and | ran, Now, whatever

Lamar did afterwards or if there was somebody in the car with him or whatever the
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STATEMENT OF: STEVEN TURNER

case may be, after that, 1 don't know. But | know when me and him got there it was

two people. ltwasn't three people. It was me and Lamar.
Okay, you ca- you're saying you came in his car or your car?

In his car.

Okay. Do you have access to cars that you use?
Nah, 1...

Where you livin’ at?

tlive on Jones and Lake Mead.

Okay, what's the address?

9904 Eugene Avenue.

5904 Eugene?

Yeah.
Who lives there?

Just my mom.
Okay, what does she drive?

My mom doesn’t drive either. She walks to work. She works on Smoke Ranch and

Decatur. She walks fo work.

Are there any cars in your driveway?
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There'’s a car in my driveway.
What is it?

lt's a green Toyota, | think, or somethin’ that my uncle bought from my cousin a

minute ago that the alternator and everything is fixed.

So, is i, like, a car, a sedan, SUV or what?
It's just a car, regular little car...
QOkay.

...that don’t run. It been sittin’ there for, like, the past two months.

Okay.

That's why I'm sayin’ | don't understand, like - really, and then to come - and then to
come to find out that 'm bein’ charged with attempied murder of a police officer, like,
that's crazy to me. | didn't even shoot no guns. That's when | asked the officer, too,

like, "Well, can you test my hands or something, you know what | mean, to see if

there's " but - but he said it was oo late and he couldn’'t do it ‘cause it was past that
time. But, like, 'm not gonna - if - if you look at my record - my record, yeah, | got
DUl and | have traffic stuff. | don't have no - | wouldn't - | would not just flip just to go
and shoot at a police officer. Like, that's one thing I'm not gonna do. Now my mom
is at home by herself. 1 just lost my job - I'm about fo lose my job over this, and it’s,

like, man.

Where do you work?
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STATEMENT OF: STEVEN TURNER

| work at Converse at the South Outlet Malls.
South Qutlet Malis, where is...?

Like, off of Warm Springs and Las Vegas...
Okay.

...Boulevard.

All right.

1 just got a promotion there. | was a full-ime associate, just got a raise and

everything, like...

So why do you wanna go there with a rifle and hit some house? Wh-...
Nah, it wasn't...

Why were you goin’ there?

It wa- it wasn't - it wasn't even a...

What - what was the purpose of goin’ there?

Like, just to go - I'm not gonna lie, just to see if there was some weed around, to be

honest with you.
How do you know that house?
Because I've gotten weed from that house before.

From that house you went {o?
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STATEMENT OF: STEVEN TURNER

Yeah. From the person that lives in that house.

So you go up there with a - with a rifle and your buddy, Lamar, what's he carryin'?
| don't even know. | think he had a shotgun, to be honest with you.
Okay, what about the other gun?

You said the other guy?

Other gun.

Oh, the other gun was a SK, | believe it...

Okay, what about any other guns?

That was it.

So, you're carryin' the SK?

For a while, yeah.

Okay, and - and Lamar’s - you're tellin’ me Lamar's got the shotgun.

Yeah.

Okay. Let's draw a picture. Okay? | wanna draw you a quick picture here. This is

that cul-de-sac, okay?

Yeah.

How did you get into that - point on there where you - where you - how you got into

that cul-de-sac. The house - the house is right up here.
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STATEMENT OF: STEVEN TURNER
8o, | think he parked on the other side of the street over here and then - no, no, no,
he did. He parked on the street and then we came through that side wall right there,
| think, yeah, and then came over from that way. 'Cause we was right here in the
middle of the backyard once he started shootin’ through the glass. ‘Cause he shot

through the glass and that's when | took off through the back - over that back wall

and across the sireet from Rainbow and just took off runnin’.

How many times you shoot?
I didn't shoot at all. That's what 'm sayin’. I've ne- | never shot a gun.

So, when you're in the backyard, what gun do you have?

| don’t remember what gun | had.

Oh, come on, don't...

Okay, just don't...

[ think it's the S - it was the SK. Yeah, it was the SK | had but | had ended up settin’
it down ‘cause we was sittin’ there tryin’ to figure out how do we get in the house. So,
I'm not gonna just walk around with a big ass gun tryin’ to figure out how to get in the
house. So, once | set it down, and then we sittin' there lookir', and then that's when
we come back around. We walkin' - come back and we're walkin' straight behind -
behind the do- glass door right there. That's when all of a sudden | hear boom,

boom, boom through the window. And as soon as | hear it through the window it hit
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STATEMENT OF: STEVEN TURNER

me in my leg. And then that's when | dropped everything. | dropped everything and
just ran. And | was, like - then | hopped over the wall, That's why | was, like, | never
shot a gun. | swear on everything | love, I've never - that's why | went ahead and - |

wish | woulda known that earlier so that way | coulda got tested just to prove myseif.

Like...

So, where did that gun come from, that SK?
|- 1stale it, |took it from...

Where'd you steal it from?

! took it from my uncle. It's a registered gun | took from my ur%cle.
Who's your uncle?

Lawrence Robinson,

Lawrence Robinson?

Yeah.

YWhat's his moniker?

What's his mon-...?

Is - is he running - running with a gang?

Nah, my uncle is not. He's not at all. He’s a hardworking ma{n. That's why | feel bad
about this ‘cause he’s a hardworking man. He's in St. Louis right now for, like - he

gonna be out there for, like, a week. Like, I'm tellin’ you right now though, Detective,

- 496



PR

C.k

ST:

CJ;

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT
VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

PAGE 11
EVENT#: 150804-0518

STATEMENT OF: STEVEN TURNER
Fm tellin’ you right now, | don’t know what Lamar did when he fell. Like, | - | didn't
even see - see him. | didn't even know he got shot until | seen him walkin’ past me
with Band-Aids on his arm when 'm - when I'm here. But when we was there, when

it was me and him in that dark backyard, and all | hear is, "Hey, what the fuck,” boom,

hoom, boom, and then my le- | just felt pressure on my leg. And it just - adrenaline
off top, 1 just ran. It was, like, | went and - | - there's no point in me just shootin’ at
somethin’.  I'm not gonna just shoot at somethin' if | don't know where it's at, if
Lamar's right here. I'm not gonna just do that recklessly. | mean, I'm - [ just wouldn't
that. You know what | mean? When | got shot | just ran. That was it. That's why
I'm, like - when once the officers told me, uh - told me the severity of it | was, like -
like, “What the fuck?” Like, | didn't - | didn't even know that the police were there.
You know what | mean? From when | took off - took off running, | - wasn't no lights,
flashlights around. There wasn't no freeze. There wasn't no put the guns down. It
was whoever was in that house was there and then they start shootin’ in the house, |

mean, shootin’ out the house. And then that's when | just ran. Everything - | left

everything and | just ran. That's why - ‘cause, | mean, | didn’t shoot nothin’. | didn’t

shoot nobody so 1 just took off runnin’.
Was the door open or closed?

The door was - | don't even know. | think it was closed. | couldn't tell the slidin’ door

‘cause it was dark as fuck in there, so it was, like, | couldn’t see.

So, did you try the door?
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The door? No. It's, like, a - it's, like, a window right here, like, that had a fan and |,
like, lifted up the fan real quick and then that was it. | didn't try to open up the door. |
just checked the fan like that and | was, like, oh the fan is open. But then that's when

| was, like, kinda getting’ nervous. You know what | mean? | didn't wanna do it

‘cause I'm thinkin' about my job and everything like that, so that's why we just started
walkin’ through the backyard and then right then and there it was boom. It was, like,
three gunshots, three or four. It was a couple of 'em that came out. Like | said, it sh-
hit me right in my leg and then | took off runnin’. | turned around, hopped over the -
hopped over the wall and then went across Rainbow and went across the street to
those streets right there. Didn’t shoot no gun at all or nothin’. That's what I'm sayin’.
| don't understand why - | don’t understand how that happened. Once he told me
that - that - that was the charge, | was, like, attempted murder of a pol- a police
officer. |didn’t even know the police was there. Like, I- from when | left, there wasn't
no police over there. ‘Cause if that was the - if that was the case it woulda been

police all on that back street on Rainbow right there too where | hopped over the wall

at. They woulda been behind back there too. So, | 5- | know it wasn’t no police there
because, by the time | left, | was outro. | don't know what Lamar did when he was
layin' there or what happened while he was there. | really - | can't speak on that
because | was outro. That's why they had him first and | was gone. | was across the
street, like, by some random house just layin’ there. And | was layin’ right there just,
like, damn, just waitin’ for the helicopters, like, you know what | mean, o go away.

‘Cause, by that point, is when | hear helicopters. So, I'm, like, all right, damn. You
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STATEMENT OF: STEVEN TURNER
know what | mean? It's breakin' into somebody house, like, this is fuckin’ retarded.
You know what | mean? And then - then | got up and once - once | s- wa- started
walkin’, officers came. And, like | said, yeah, | did, | lied to the officers at first. That

was my mistake. And, like | said, that was before | knew the severity of the case. |

had told them that my name was Devonte. | did do that. That was my little - that's
my little brother's name but that's because | didn't know the severity until - once he
told me that and once | knew that - what | was dealin’ with, that's when | was, like,
“All right, look, my name is Steven Anthony Turner.” You know what | mean? *| - |
apologize.” You know what | mean? That's when | did do that, like, and | am wrong
for that but | did not - | didn't shoot nobody. 1didn't - that's what I'm sayin’. |- that's
what's crazy to me is that a police officer is shot, but | never shot a gun, like, at all,
iike, on my mom. Like, as soon as | got shot in my leg | ran. It wasn't no time to
even think about where - who's - where’s the police and let's shoot and w- | mean,
like, nah. As soon as | get hit and | hear somebody yellin’ I'm outro. Lamar layin’ on

the floor, now, Lamar was still layin' there when | hopped over the wall. | don’t know

what he did once | hopped over that wall and ran. | can't speak on that because |

wasn't there, but once | hopped over that wall | was just gone.
So, let me tell you what Lamar - what Lamar told me.
That's what | wanna know

Okay. And, uh, just so you know, you're takin' the hit on everything.
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That's crazy to me, man. Like, that's - that's crazy. For - for - | didn't even - for - |

didn't even shoot a gun though. For me to get charged with that...
You had a gun in your hand.

Yeah, ‘il | got shot, and | dropped it and ran. When | - as soon as | got shot |
dropped it and ran. | hopped over the wall and dipped out. | - it wasn't nc who shot
me and - no, | mean, I've never been shot before in my life so, yeah, I'm - I'm
surprised, like, it's - I'm shot, like, what the fuck. And that's why | dropped
everything, and | ran and took off. [ did not shoot nothin® at nobody. As soon as | got

shot | dropped it. | - | even remember Lamar ‘cause Lamar was layin’ down right

there, and | dropped it right there where he was layin’ at in the backyard. | dropped

that motherfucker, and hopped over the wall and lefi.

So, did Lamar shoot?

| - man, | mean, sh- it only makes sense. | mean, | left. |d-{'m tellin’ you right now, |

didn't...

So, after you left you're sayin’ that Lamar picked up your rifle and shot...

| can't say that.

...(unintelligible)?

I can’t that that's what he did because [ wasn't there. All I can say is that what | did,

from when | got shot, from the owner shootin’ through the door or shootin’ through

the door or shootin’ however - wherever he was shootin’ from and shot me in my leg,
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| turned around and ran. It wasn't no 'm about to be Superman, and try to kil
everybody and oh, I'm about to shoot them. Nah, because | didn’t really want it to go
down like that anyway. You know what | mean? Like, it was just - | was supposed {o
just go - it was just supposed to go..,

So, okay, you go - okay, let's be real here, man.
Yeah.

You go to this house with guns.

but that wasn’t - L didn't...

You've got a rifle.

Yeah, but it wasn't - it wasn't - it was for intimidation factor. It wasn't even like | was

about to just go in here and just - it was just to - just intimidation and once | seen...
Tell me the story about what you were goin’ there for.

| was goin’ over there to get some weed, man.

From who?

From the person, whoever - whoever lived there, so...
How did you know that ;ou’re - that they had weed?
Because | knew them from a long, long time ago.

You've been to that house before?

Yeah, a long, long time ago.
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How long is a long, long time ago?

Psh, two years, maybe.

Okay.

Yeah, like, two, three years. And like I'm tellin’ you right now...
You haven't been there since?

And | have not been there since. And in two, three years | stop - like | said, 1 - | knew
there was a bunch of weed in there. That's the only reason why | knew that. So, | -
that's when | told Lamar, like, about, you know, she be havin' hella weed or whatever
whoopee wham, and he was, like, “‘Oh, well -” he was, like, "Shit, well, oh, you think
it's gonna be easy? You think we can do it? Whoopee wham wham.” I'm, like, "I
dor't know, bro, 1 don't - maybe. | mean, shit, we can try. | mean, fuck it.” That was
stupid on my part. But we went and, like | s- | can't regret it - regret it now. We went.
We parked - we parked the car, hopped over the wali. We was walkin’ through that

backyard, like | said, and somebody started shootin’. And | - # wasn't the police

‘cause if the p- if it was the police that started, that shot me in the leg, then they
would've been - it would've been noticeable. They woulda been sayin’ freeze, you
know what | mean, or, like, hands up. There woulda been flashlights. It wouldn't
have just been pitch black in the backyard with somebody yellin® and start shootin’.
That don’t - | mean, as soon as - as soon as they shot me, 'm outre. I'm runnin’. | -1
leave everything. | don't even care ‘cause | - | just ran. | never been shot before so

the adrenaline was - was fuckin’ with me. But I'm tellin’ you right now, | can look at
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you, | mean, I'm sure you hear this 1,000 times from everybody, but the type of
person | am, I'm not gonna shoot a police officer, especially everything that they got
goin’ on right now. CNN and everywhere you turn it's either an officer killin'

somebody or somebody killin' an officer. I'm not - | don't wanna be a part of that at

all. You know what | mean? It was a dumb decision on my part last night. Yes, it
was a very dumb decision on my part to even try to go get some weed. It wasn't
even that serious. You know what | mean? | - my payday was today. You know
what | mean? Like, that was just retarded of me to do somethin’ like that, but as far
as shooting a gun, | never shot a gun. That's the thing about it. As soon - as soon -
as soon as | got shot | ran. You g- | mean, shit, you can look at the wall, I'm sure it
might be my - might be blood on the wall from where | hopped that back there. And |
hopped and | ran across the street ‘cause by the time [ left the side of the house is -
the sun was comin’ up by then. When we first got there the sun wasn't up, so l was -
| was, like - once | hopped over the wall | was gone, like, right there by that - like |

said, by that house there for a minute. You know what | mean? And then that's

when t left and then ran into the officers and everything like that. But when | was
there at that - when | left, | left Lamar there, That's what | said. | didn't know what
happened to Lamar. | didn’t know what bro was doin’, nothin’. You know what |
mean? I'm not gonna lie, it was at that point, when [ started hearin' gunshots, it's like
every man for himself. You know what | mean? | just dropped everything and | just
ran. You feel me? | don't know what - what he did after | - once | hopped over that

wall and left. | can’t speak on that because | was gone.
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Who was with you in the car when - when, uh, you got in the car?
Lamar. It was me and Lamar.

And where did he get - where'd you - where'd you guys meet up or where'd he pick

you up or what?

He just picked me up from the house and everything.
From this, uh, 5904 Eugene?
Yeah, and then we drove over there.

You guys hang out a lot together or what?

Yeah, we hang out. | mean, we - like, we was hangin’ out a lot and then we had, like,
got into it a little bit. He was talkin’ about, like - talkin’ about my music and everything
like that, so we had got into it, like, just words, nothin’ physical, nothin’ like that, and
then we stopped talkin' to each other for, like, a month. And then | ended up hittin’

him up, like, | wanna say a few weeks ago ‘cause | just lost one of my homeboys
back in San Diego. so I'm, like, time is too short. So, | called him and was apologizin’
to him, tellin' him, you know what | mean, how, | mean, “I'm sorry, bro. If's - the world
toc short,” you know what | mean, * for people to - for us to be even beefin’ like this
when we used to be homies and listen to beats together and everything.” And he
ended up squashin' it. He was, like, "it's good.” You know what | mean? And, shit,
we was chillin’. He would come through and we would smoke together and some

bullshit. And then that's when he hit me with that, like, "Oh, what's up with that -
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what's up with that lady? Don't you got a lady? You - you - you - what's up with that
house aver there?” And | - | had mentioned it to him, like, a long time ago. | was,
fike, but (unintelligible) ‘cause we was just smokin’ and (unintelligible) over there.

And he was, like, “All right.” So, that's when he asked me, like, and I'm, like, *1 don't

know, man.” And that's - | - | - it was a dumb decision on my part, period. | shoulda
never even entertained the thought or nothin’. It's, | mean, I'm wrong for that. You
know what | mean? Like, and it is, it's all - it's my fault. You know what | mean? |
shouldn't - | shouldn't have did that. But me and Lamar, like, we been cool. He hang
out with my uncle. You know what | mean? He call my uncle and everything. He
come through and we barbecue, all kinds of shit. That's why | be, like, | don't
understand this. And then - then it comes to me bein’ back there with him. 'm tellin’
you, | get shot and | run. 1 just took off, man. | didn't stay. Now, I- like, if the police
were there and the police - if the police - they not just gonna start shootin’. The
police gonna tell you, they gonna give you orders to follow before they just start

shootin’. so that's how | know the police weren't there when | was there because

there was no orders. There was no fl- | heard somebody inside yellin’, "Yeah, what
the fuck? What the fuck,” boom, boom, boom. And then that's when | was, like, "Oh,
shit,” and | felt - like, | just felt pressure on my leg, and then that's when | just went. |
turned around and just hopped over that fence, man, uh, up the wall on Rainbow and
just took off across the street. And then Lamar was still, like, well, when we got hit he
fell down and he was layin’ there. And then | just ran. | dropped everything and just

ran right over the wall. And say - if he sayin’ that - somethin’ different than that he
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lyin' like a motherfucker because he know - | looked at him. He - he seen - I-1seen
him. Like, he fell and it was, like, “Brother,” I'm, like, “Come on, Nigger,” and I'm
runnin’. So, anything after that, whatever happened after that is - | wasn't there. Like

| said, | was layin’ on that couch for I don’t even know how long, but | know the sun

was up by the time | started walkin' to the store. It was that long, and then that's
when | seen the police, and that's when | was, like, “Damn,” and | seen everybody
was still outside. That's when | was, like, this - this is a big deal, like, | wonder - |
mean, what - | be, like, they really doin’ this for that right there. And then that's when
the officer - the officer didn't even tell me that until | got to the hospital. That's why |
told him, bein' stupid, like, "My name is Devonte.” | was, like, “No, | wasn't over
there.” 1 did, | lied to the officer at first and told him | wasn't - | told him I was walkin’
to my homeboy house that stay up the street. You know what | mean? And then he
was, like, uh - that's when we got to the hospital and I'm, like, "Well, what's my
charges?” You know what | mean? He was, like, "attempted murder on a police

officer.” That's no - | was, like, "Wait, what? A police officer?” He said, “Yeah,” and,

like, you know, “Why you think all the news cameras is around?” I'm, like, "Are you
serious?” Like, | didn't even know the police were even - | - well, | figured they was
there afterwards but as far as attempted murder with - with me and him, like, that's - |
don’t understand that. It's not even - | been sittin’ here thinkin’ to myself, like, "How
the fuck - how the fuck did the police officer get shot?” 'Cause | didn't even shoot a
gun. I'm tellin’ everybody. 1 got shot. I'm not even - this is my first time | ever got

shot so I'm not thinkin' oh, let's shoot back, I'm gonna shoot back. Like, nah, I'm

S06



CJ:

ST

CJd:

ST:

CJ:

8T:

CJ:

i,

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEFARTMENT

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

PAGE 21
EVENT#: 150904-05186

STATEMENT OF: STEVEN TURNER
panicked. | get scared, you know, I'm gonna run away, period. And that's exactly
what happened, no BS. | never, ever pulled a trigger of no gun, period. When 1 got

shot, | ran.

How did you and, uh, Lamar - uh, did he just come over to the house? Did he call ya,

text ya or what that he was comin’?
He had just...
How did you get hooked up?

He just pulled up to the house. No, | think he called me. He called me and then he
was, like, “Hey, I'm at the side door,” or whatever, and | was, like, "All right. For sure.
I'm at the house.” ‘Cause | had just gotten off of work and, like, | had got off work
8:00. | got over there by my house, ‘cause | ride the bus, so | don't get home ‘i, like,
9:45. So then when I got there and then that's when he ended up pullin' up when |
was at the house. | was smokin’ out - | was outside smokin’ a cigarette, and then

that's when he pulled up. Then he hopped out and we was just t- falkin’ like we

regularly be talkin’. And he was, like, "Hey, what's up,” you know what | mean, "Lel's
go see what's up with that shit.” I'm, like - like | said, it was a dumbass - dumbass

decision and | completely...
Tell me about the, uh - the white Nissan Maxima you guys were hangin’ around.
White Nissan Maxima?

A white Nissan Maxima.
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Hangin' out around where?
Right there in that cul-de-sac.
| don’t know a white Nissan.

And this is - this is - this is what I've got. I've got you standin’ at the back of a white

Nissan M- uh, Maxima with the trunk up.

By a white Nissan Maxima? | was never in a white Nissan Ma- we was in his car. It
was a beige Camry that he drive. | wasn't - a white Nissan Maxima? | don't know no
white Nissan Maxima. That's on everything | love. When | got - I'm tellin’ you the
truth, bro. He came and picked me up in his car. Where - why would there be a

white Nissan Maxima?

Well, that's what 'm askin’ ‘cause I've got - there's, like, what, five or six homes right

around that cul-de-sac.

Yeah, yeah.

| mean, homes down the side of the street gettin’ into that cul-de-sac, and 've got
you in a car right there with the trunk open standin’ at the back of the trunk with

Lamar and one other guy.

And one other guy? There wasn’t nobody else with us. It was me and - unless I'm

fuckin’ - unless I'm really fuckin’ delusional right now, there was nobody else with us.

It was me and Lamar.

Tell me about the guns,
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Like | said, he had whatever he had and that was the SK that my - that | took out the

house.

What about the little handgun?

| don't know about a little handgun.
‘Cause...

Like | said, ‘cause it was only me and him so | don’t know about...

Okay, so there's a little handgun and he's - the - the and, uh - uh, Lamar's teliin’ me

you had the handgun and gave it to him.

Are you serious?

I'm serious, dude.
No, he - 1 - he had a - he has a handgun that he showed me, like, two weeks ago and

that...

Tell me about it.
..was a little .22. A little small .22 pistol that he had.
Okay.

He showed me a small .22 pistol, like, two, three weeks ago, and | was, like, oh okay

or it's a .25 or somethin’. P'm, like, oh, okay, that's what's up. You know what |

mean? And...

Where did he say...

S09



ST

CJ:

8T

CJ:

ST

CJd:

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

PAGE 24
EVENT#: 150904-0516

STATEMENT OF: STEVEN TURNER

And -~ and...
...he got it?

Beats me. | didn't ask him where he got it but 'm sure he bought it off the street
somewhere. You feel me? That's what | took it as was he just bought it off the
street. But he came and showed me and was, like, “Yeah, look. | got this right here.”
Then he tried o get the other homie up the street, John, tock him to go take him to
the gun show. Like, and this was, like, not even a month ago when they had the gun
show at, um -- what's that - Santa Fe Station. They had a gun show over there. He

had the homie, John, go take him over there. He bought bullets for - he bought

shotgun bullets, | guess, and .25 bullets is what John told me. This is when | wasn't
talkin’ to him when he did this. And then John was, like, “Oh, yeah, you know he just
went and bought a gang of bullets,” like, tryin' to be funny, like, “He fittin’ to come get
ya.” I'm, like, “Man, I'm not worried about that." You feel me? But | said - other -

another handgun or whatever that | gave to him or whatever, that's bullshit, period.

That is not the truth, period.

So, when you got up to that - when you got into the cul-de-sac and he parked, you

said he - if you're drivin’ up into the cul-de-sac, you're sayin’ he parked over here?

Yeah, he parked, like - | can't really remember but | know it was on this side of the

street somewhere.

Okay, and that's, uh - that's Lamar.
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Yeah. Now, this white Maxima or whatever that is, | really don't know where a white

Maxima is comin’ from...
Okay.
...unless I'm delusional.

Did you guys open the frunk of that car?
Um, | can’t remember if they were in the backseat or not.
It - that wasn't that long ago, dude.

| know it was just last night but | done ha- fuckin’ sittin’ in jail with a fuckin’ attempted
murder charge. I'm not about to get shit straight, like - but | wanna say they were in

the backseat.

Okay. You go get in the backyard of this house, right?
Right.

How'd vou aet into that backyard?

We hopped over the wall.

Did you guys exchange guns or just throw your gun over and...
Nah.

...climb over the fen-...

Just set it over - yeah, clim- hopped over.

Okay. Now you get in the backyard.
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Yeah.
And you told my partner everything about what you did in the backyard?

Yeah, pretty - yeah, | told him | was back there. We was tryin' to see if they're - I'm
lookin’. | see it was dark, see if there was anybody in there. And | said that little -
that little fan that’s right here on the window, | see that that lifts up or whatever. And
then that's when I'm, all right, then we walk around. | wanna say we went to the -
nah, we didn’t even go back to the car. We walked and checked the other side of the
backyard, and then we were walkin' straight across the backyard. As we're walkin’
straight across the backyard is when | hear the homeowner goin’, “What the fuck?
What the -* and starts shootin’. It's me and Lamar. | swear if it was somebody else
you damn right I'm about to tell who it is and they gonna be sittin’ here dealin’ with
this with me, like, period. I'm not gonna be dealin’ with this by myself and knowin’

there's some other - some other dude that's out there that probably is the one that

was shootin' back, you know what | mean, and was out there. | don't know. [t was
me and Lamar ‘cause | know me and Lamar were walking together, side by side in

the backyard. And then | got hit right here on my calf and | think - | just seen the
bandage, | think he got hit on his wrist. But we're walkin' right next to each other,
boom, boom, and as soon as | see him, he drops. He fell - he fell right there in front
of me and was, like, "Oh, shit. Oh, shit.” And then that's when | hear the person in
the house, and then that's when | tumn around, and | run and | hop over the wall. On
me, you can go back to that house and check that back wall. There's gonna be

blood somewhere on that back wall from my leg bleedin’, and { hopped over it.
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Okay. So you're sayin' there’s not a third person.
No, ...

And you're sayin' that, uh, Lamar picked you up at your house on Eugene.
Yeah.

And you came out the house with your 8K, right?
Yeah,

Yeah? And you say you stole your SK from who?
| stole it from my uncle.

Where's your uncle live?

He's - right now he's stayin’ with us right now.

So was it at your house or?

Yeah, it was at our house.
Sc you took it out the house, went and got in the car with Lamar.
Went and got in the car with Lamar.

Okay, Lamar had a - uh, what was - describe Lamar's gun.

He had a - he had a shotgun. | think he had a .12 gauge ‘cause he'd been buyin’ -

tellin' me he be buyin’ shotgun shells. Well, John told me that one time so, you

Know...

513



CJ:

ST:

CJ:

ST

CJk

ST

CJ:

ST

CJ:

ST:

Ch

ST:

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT
VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

PAGE 28
EVENT#: 150904-0516

STATEMENT OF;: STEVEN TURNER

Do you know where - do you know where he lives?
Who? John?

Lamar,

Lamar? Kinda sorta. | know he don't stay far from me, like, around the corner and to

the left. Yeah, | know where his house, like, kinda sorta is.
Okay. So, you pull up to the house together.

Together?

You leave - you leave Lamar's house or you leave your house...

My house together.
...and there’s just the two of you in that car?

It's just the two of us. My mom - | think my - yeah, my fiancé was outside and my

aunt. They were ali outside for a minute.
They saw you walk out with the rifle?

Nah, they didn't - they didn’t see me walk out with the rifle ‘cause I'm out there just
talkin’ to ‘em while they was outside. And then while we just falkin’ then they go
inside. My mom go in her room and do - go to sleep and whatever, get ready for
work. My auntie and my fiancé, they go in my room 'cause they just go in there
usually and listen to music and shit while they spendin’ time together, thinkin’ 'm out
here just talkin’ with him. So - so | see them I'm, like, "All right.” So we go inside.

He's, like, “You gonna grab it?" So, I'm, like, “All right, fuck it. I'll grab it.” 'Cause at

514



CJ:

ST

CJ:

ST

CJ:

ST

CJ:

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

PAGE 28
EVENT#: 150904-0616

STATEMENT OF: STEVEN TURNER
first | was, like, “But you got a shotgun,” like, “you don't even - what you - that - that
should be intimidation enough.” You know what [ mean? Just to scare somebody.
You feel me? He's, “Well, you gonna grab it?” I'm, like, “All right, well, fuck it.” Then

| ended up -- dumbass decision -- and | brought it with me. Like | said, once we got

there it was me - me and Lamar left together and we pulled up to that house
together. If he's tellin’ you it was a third person or whatever or you see it on camera
or whatever, that's not - that - either that - that's not me - that's not us on there that
you lookin’ at by that white Maxima because we came there in the Camry. 'Cause

his car was there, right, when y'all got there? That's the car | rode in with Lamar.

Talkin’ about the SK, how'd you know whether it was loaded or not?

 just popped it off and then once | popped it off, and then | seen it, and | was, fike, all
right, and | thought it was to...

You're - you're talkin’ about the magazine? You popped...

Yeah.

...the magazine?

The magazine part off. And | looked and then | was, like, damn it look kinda full, so |
had took some out when | was at the house and | put it back in. And then that's

when we got in the car,

Okay, um, you ever shot that rifle before?
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